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Chairman’s Statement

TREESE

For and on behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

RESULT ANALYSIS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, along with the global spread of the novel coronavirus
pandemic and the increasing pressure from economic
downturn, the electronic industry fluctuated significantly. The
Group adhered to implement the strategy of “developing major
customers” and strengthened customer development and
customer services. The supply of FPC and flexible packaging
substrates and components for application in smartphones
and its modules, consumer electronics, new energy car
cells and automotive electronics continued to be the main
development directions of the Group. The Group also achieved
major developments in the supply of the Group's products
to the customers manufacturing wearable products, optical
camera modules and display modules. By proactively improving
the Group's technical capabilities and standards, the Group
enhanced the production and sales volume and strengthened
the cooperation between the upstream and downstream, and

captured opportunities to achieve better operating results.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERES

The turnover of the Group in the financial year of 2020 was
approximately HK$1,676,423,000,
of approximately 14.54% as compared to approximately
HK$1,463,630,000 of 2019. The increase in turnover was
mainly due to the increase in orders from major customers.

representing an increase

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for 2020 was
approximately HK$119,351,000,
of approximately 1.39% as compared to approximately
HK$117,711,000 of 2019. Despite there was a notable increase
in revenue of approximately 14.54% during the year, the profit

representing an increase

was only slightly increased mainly due to the impact of the
substantial increase in research and development expenses.
As of 31 December 2020, earnings per share of the Group
was approximately HK7.79 cents, representing an increase of
approximately 1.70% as compared to approximately HK$7.66
of 2019. The gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
39.28%, which managed to maintain at a stable level. Taking
into account of the Company's profitability, shareholder returns
and sustainable development needs in the future, the Group
proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK1.45 cent per
share for 2020.

In 2020, the sales of the Group’'s circuit boards and
components business increased by approximately 14.00% as
compared with last year, and its gross profit margin increased
from approximately 14.22% in 2019 to approximately 14.88%
in 2020.

In 2020, the intelligent manufacturing factory in the existing
factory of the Group in Nansha, Guangdong, PRC, which was
mainly for the assembling of new application modules of FPC,
had commenced production. EMNZEHMEREREBRAE]
(transliteration “Guangzhou Anbo New Energy Technology Co.
Ltd.”), an associate of the Group, which was mainly for the
development of new energy car electronics module products,
had commenced operation.
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Chairman’s Statement

TREESE

The Group will continue to invest in circuit board business, in
order to ensure the continuous improvement in its capability
to serve the customers. In 2020, by increasing the investments
in research and development, the Group has the capability for
mass production of high frequency and high speed flexible
printed circuit and module products, and buried/blind via High
Density Interconnector products. As a result, the research and
development expenses of the Group increased by 44.99% as
compared to with last year. For the investments in intelligent
manufacturing, the Group will establish an intelligent
management system and carry out intelligent innovation of its
major production lines, so as to promote the construction of
digital factories continuously, save operators and enhance our
production efficiency. By investing in AKMMeadville Electronics
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd (27 EHEF (BF) BIREETAF), the

Group will strengthen the strategic cooperation with it.
OUTLOOK

Due to the global spread of the novel coronavirus pandemic
may result in a prolonged pandemic, the increasing pressure
from economic downturn and the significant fluctuation in
the electronic industry, the Group remains cautious about
the future and will pay close attention to the changes in
the economy, industry and major customers to evaluate its
risk exposures and the impacts on orders and supply chain.
Meanwhile, the Group will enhance its internal capacity, so
that, (i) by adhering to the strategy of “developing major
customers” to strengthen efforts in exploring and serving
major customers in key markets and emerging sectors; (ii)
by strengthening technology research and development and
improving intelligent manufacturing capabilities, to improve
the technical standard of products and the capability for
mass production of high-end products; (iii) by paying close
attention to the safety of supply chain and strengthening the
integration of upstream and downstream resources; and (iv) by
strengthening the localization service capabilities for overseas
market and improving the risk resistance capabilities, the Group
will strive to turn risks into opportunities and continuously
improve its operating results.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERES

The Board believes that, following the popularity in application
of electronic products e.g. the rapid development in electronic
products for new energy cars and wearable products, the
electronic industry will manage to maintain a growth. Upon
overcoming the adverse effects of the novel coronavirus, the
circuit boards and components business is expected to maintain
its continuous growth in the foreseeable future. The Group
will continue to invest in circuit board business and adhere to
the strategy of “developing major customers”, continuously
uplift the technology capabilities of products, pay full attention
to the market opportunities in new application fields, and
strengthen the strategic cooperation with relevant shareholders
and AKMMeadville Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd (Z#EF|E=4E
¥ (EF9) BFREEAT). By following development strategies
such as strengthening integration of upstream and downstream
resources, and enlarging economic scale to promote
operational efficiency, the Group will be able to strengthen
its core capabilities, overcome various difficulties and keep on
improving its operating results, so as to present satisfactory
results and bring favourable returns to its shareholders. The
Group aims at developing into an important international
supplier of circuit boards and components and becoming the

industry leader in the PRC.
APPRECIATION

Mr. Yu Daochun has resigned as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 10 June 2020 due to change of work position.
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee,
a member of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 23 September 2020
due to his other business commitments. On 10 June 2020,
Mr. Liu Jianzhe was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company. On 21 December 2020, Mr. Zhang Guo Qi
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the nomination committee

of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement

TREESE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity ALK SGAREZT SRS ILENIB L
to thank Mr. Yu and Mr. Yang for their contribution to the “EHRZATIELZSE > IWEAITIEDR L E R
Company, and express the warmest welcome to Mr. Liu and Mr.  SRACENARAF] o

Zhang for joining the Company.

In addition, for and on behalf of the Board, | would also like 9 RATELKERREST G HAEH
to take this opportunity to thank the management and all ZEBEERZETBEA—ENEZIBHEN
staff members of the Group for their dedication and invaluable KAESSBRUSE FARZLHAERZE
contributions to the Group in the past year. | would also like F~HEE EHEEBHEEBRE—BUKRZ
to thank our customers, suppliers, business partners and RO FRERES -AEBMBRNHEEESE
shareholders for their continuous support to the Group. The #& > AR A IEE[OR -

Group will do its best to achieve good results and secure ideal

returns for our shareholders.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZREANBEFRAR

Xiong Zheng Feng AEIE %

Chairman F/E

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021 58 - F=BZ+=H
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBEFAEREERE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out below:

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (BEIEI£), aged 51, is the chairman
and the executive Director of the Company. In July 1992, he
graduated from the Department of Computer Science of =5
K2 (Nankai University) and obtained his bachelor degree in
science. He then obtained his master degree in economics from
FIB A B 2B (Nankai University School of Economics) in
July 1995. He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (%
FEBEAEMRAT), the controlling shareholder of the Company,
since March 2001. From April 2003 to January 2011, he was
an alternate director of Raymond Industrial Ltd, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong, and is a non-executive director since January 2011. Mr.
Xiong is also a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. and an executive director of AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited, both of which are subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Xiong is the chairman of the board of directors
of AKMMeadville Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd (Z#EF|E4E
BF (BP9 BEETAR)since December 2019. Mr. Xiong
joined the Company in March 2001 and is responsible for
the Group's corporate policy formulation, business strategies
planning, business development and management of the
Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiong does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBEFAEREERE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang (HBEYE), aged 45, is currently vice
president of GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek"), a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Gao graduated from Shandong Institute
of Technology (LLIE T2 2p%)in July 1998 and obtained his
master degree in business administration from Southern Cross
University in 2006. Mr. Gao joined GoerTek in 2001. Mr. Gao
was appointed as a non-executive Director since 12 March
2015. Mr. Gao does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Jia Junan (EE %), aged 50, is currently vice president
of and secretary to the board of directors of GoerTek. He
graduated from Shandong Institute of Finance and Economics
(W BB BUZPRE) in July 1993 with a bachelor degree in
economics and obtained his master degree in economics from
Shandong University (LUEEAZ)in 2003. Mr. Jia obtained a
doctorate degree in economics in 2008 from Xiamen University
(EF9AE). He is a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Jia obtained a qualification
certificate for secretary to board of directors (EEEGMEE R
F82)issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2013. Mr. Jia
was previously manager of tax department of KPMG China,
Tsingdao branch, and he joined GoerTek in 2010. Mr. Jia was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 November 2015.
Mr. Jia does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
in the past three years, and does not have any relationship
with any other directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the Company.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBEFAEREERE

Mr. Wang Chunsheng (E&4), aged 46, graduated from
School of Mechanical Design and Engineering, Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology GT &I T A 214 i 5%
st T2 2B2)in June 1998. Mr. Wang joined Suzhou Anjie
Technology Co. Ltd (BRINZZRFERMBERLQE) (“Anjie
Technology”)(a substantial shareholder of the Company) in
2000 and is currently the chairman of the board of Anjie
Technology (which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with stock code 002635). Mr. Wang was appointed as a non-
executive Director since 30 January 2018. Mr. Wang does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming (3RFEBH), aged 42, obtained a master
degree in accountancy in April 2003 from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics (RJGEF&8 K £2) . She also obtained a
doctorate degree from The Research Institute for Fiscal Science
of the Ministry of Finance (B3P 8 BRI 28 35 FR) (now
known as Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences (H7[E Bf By A} 2
BEZEB) ) in July 2011. Ms. Zhang is a member of the Beijing
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (At R EE & 5t E6H 17
&) since September 2010, and also a member of the Institute
of Management Accountants since April 2003. Ms. Zhang
is currently a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited and a
supervisor of the finance department of China North Industries
Corporation, the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Ms. Zhang is a director of NORINCO International Cooperation
Ltd. GE A BB & FIRHDBRAE) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000065) since 29
March 2017. Ms. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 24 August 2018. Save as disclosed, Ms. Zhang does
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBEFAEREERE

Mr. Liu Jianzhe (2I##%), aged 52, a researcher level senior
engineer, obtained his master degree in engineering from
Beijing Institute of Technology GEER¥E T AE)in 1995. Mr.
Liu joined China North Industries Corporation, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, in 1995 and is currently senior
manager of the human resources department of China North
Industries Corporation. Mr. Liu was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 10 June 2020. Mr. Liu has not been a
director of any other listed public company in the last three
years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew (G#3E3E), aged 52, is currently
the director of Norton Rowland CPA Limited. He received his
professional training in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and has
worked for UBS Investment Bank as business unit controller
for seven years. Mr. Hung was awarded the degree of Bachelor
of Arts in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
and the degree of Master of Applied Finance by the University
of Western Sydney. Mr. Hung is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member of
Mr.
Hung is also an independent non-executive director of FDG

The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Kinetic Limited and G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited
respectively, companies which shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 17 October
2011. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any relationship with any other directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBEFAEREERE

Mr. Cui Zheng (#£%), aged 66, is currently the Principal
Scientist of Applied Nanotechnology Division of Jiangsu
Industrial Technology Research Institute (JITRI), and the
Director of Printed Electronics Engineering Center of JITRI.
Mr. Cui obtained his doctorate degree in engineering from
Southeast University (BEEAE)in 1988. He is a fellow of
the Institution of Engineering and Technology (previously the
Institution of Electrical Engineers) since 2004. He is also a State
Specially Recruited Expert under the “1000 Talent Plan” of the
Government of the People’s Republic of China since 2009.
He is also the vice secretary-general of National Innovation
Association of Printed Electronics Industrial Technology (&
BIENRIEBE FEERMAIFEEE), and vice president of Touch
Screen Advisor Committee of SEMI China (regional office of
Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International). Mr.
Cui was elected “Scientific Chinese” of Year 2010. Mr. Cui
was previously a visiting fellow at the Cavendish Laboratory of
the University of Cambridge. Further, he was also previously
Principal Scientist at the Central Microstructure Facility of
Rutherford Appleton Laboratory in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Cui was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 3 May 2016. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cui does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang Guo Qi GREl}E), aged 61, received his doctorate
degree in aerospace engineering from the Delft University of
Technology and is currently chair professor of Center for Micro/
Nanoelectronics System Integration and Reliability at the Delft
University of Technology. Mr. Zhang is a Fellow of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) since 2014. He
is currently the Secretary General of the IEEE International
Technology Roadmap of Wide Bandgap Semiconductors, and
also a Co-Chair of the Advisory Board of International Solid
State Lighting Alliance (ISA) since 2010. Mr. Zhang received
the Outstanding Sustained Technical Contribution Award from
the IEEE Electronics Packaging Society (formerly known as
IEEE Components, Packaging, and Manufacturing Technology
Society) in 2015, the Special Achievement Award for Electronic
Packaging Technologies from the Electronic Manufacturing
and Packaging Technology Society of Chinese Institute of
Electronics (CIEEMPT) in 2009, the Excellent Leadership
Award in simulation and modeling of micro/nanoelectronics
and systems from International Conference on Thermal,
Mechanical and Multi-Physics Simulation and Experiments in
Microelectronics and Microsystems (EuroSimE) in 2009, and
Outstanding Contributions to Reliability Research Award from
the European Center for Micro-and Nanoreliability in 2007. Mr.
Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 21 December 2020. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zhang
does not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
past three years, and does not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management, substantial shareholders,
or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (45&3%), aged 60, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. He was previously an executive Director
and has retired as an executive Director on 26 May 2017. In
January 1982, he graduated from the EY¢HE:fiiZE 2 (Faculty
of Laser Technology) of E&EMZEEEMELT (Changchun
Institute of Optics and Fine Mechanics) and obtained his
bachelor degree in engineering. He then obtained his #5258
Z£ (Certificate on continuing education) from the &FHEHRE
HEEBE (Hong Kong Sino-Australia Management College) in
June 2001. From February 1982 to September 1992, Mr. Chai
was employed by the JLER&1ZMNMEEHESFM (Shuguang
Appliances Factory of Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province) as
engineer and branch-factory manager. He then joined #R#
(BM) BEFEXBEEXEMRAT (Alpha Luck Electronic &
Electric Appliance Industrial (Guangzhou) Ltd.) in October
1992 as project manager. In January 1994, Mr. Chai joined the
Company and is responsible for research and development and
overall management of the Group. Mr. Chai has over 28 years
of experience in the flexible printed circuit production industry.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen G#5#iE), aged 41, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Hung graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 2001 and 2002
respectively. She obtained her Master of Laws degree from
University College London in 2003. Ms. Hung is a solicitor
practicing in Hong Kong since 2006 and was appointed as the
company secretary on 13 June 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the turnover of the
Group was approximately HK$1,676,423,000,
an increase of approximately 14.54% as compared to

representing

approximately HK$1,463,630,000 of last year. The increase in
turnover was mainly due to the increase in orders from major
customers.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$119,351,000,
representing an increase of approximately 1.39% as compared
to approximately HK$117,711,000 of last year. Despite there
was a notable increase in revenue of approximately 14.54%
during the year, the profit was only slightly increased mainly
due to the impact of the substantial increase in research and
development expenses.

The turnover for the circuit boards and components business of
the Group for the year was approximately HK$1,651,223,000
(2019: approximately HK$1,448,487,000).
under review, the overall gross profit margin increased to

During the year

approximately 14.74% (2019: approximately 14.26%), of
which the gross profit margin of circuit boards and components
business increased to approximately 14.88% (2019:
approximately 14.22%).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the other income
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$48,909,000,
representing an increase of approximately 18.79% as compared
to approximately HK$41,171,000 of last year. The increase
in other income was mainly attributable to the increase in
government grants and subsidies and scrap income.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the distribution costs
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$27,795,000,
representing an increase of approximately 32.66% as compared
to approximately HK$20,952,000 of last year. The increase
in distribution costs during the year under review was mainly
attributable to (i) the increase in transportation expenses
and other logistics fees due to the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pandemic, and (ii) the increase in wage expenditure
for sales team due to the overall increase of sales.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

R #5[01 B8

HE_ZE-ZF+-A=+—HLFE *&E
Bz & %%491,676,423,00058 0 REEND
1,463,630,00078 708 IN4914.54% o S ¥ %8 -
AFEHRFERR ZFIEREMN-

BHE_Z-ZHF+_A=+—HLEFE &2Q
BB AEMEMAZ119,351,0008 70 &
EEMAI117,711,0008 TTIE R 471.39% o #EA
EEBENFRBEERLN14.54% @ fER
FHEER TZRNZEE R ARG MNAT
=2- 3

E

FAEBE2FEBRREAFEBFTRALY
1,651,223,000B (22— &F 8
1,448,487,000/87t) ClIEAFE RN > BB
EREEHENI4.74% (ZE—HLEFE ' H
14.26%) » ERERRMRAGER ZEF X L
FEMN14.88% (ZZ—NEF 1 £914.22%) °

AEBHE_T-_TFE+ZA=+—HILHF
FE H At A %9 %48,909,00038 7T » BRA FEHIAY
41,171,000 701 £4918.79% o E fth W A 15
10 3 2 68 50 BRRT 48 B e v Bl D e BE fa U AL 38
NOFTER ©

rEBHBE_ZZEF+ZA=+—HILEF
E DA% %427,795,0008 7T BEEMNDN
20,952,000 TiE £#932.66% cEIEEFE R
DEAAIEMEZHRRONZHSRERERE
FE G BEBERAEMYIRE RGN &) EAEH
ERMERHEHEABBKIE M BB
e



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEESN KR

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the administrative
expenses of the Group were approximately HK$45,697,000,
representing an increase of approximately 14.19% as compared
to approximately HK$40,017,000 of last year. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in labor
costs and miscellaneous expenses incurred for strengthening
the preventive measures for pandemic during the year under
review.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the research
and development expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$83,153,000, representing an increase
of approximately 44.99% as compared to approximately
HK$57,352,000 of last year. The increase in research and
development expenses was mainly attributable to the increase
in investments in research and development of new products,
new technologies and new production techniques by the
Group, such as investments in research and development of
high frequency and high speed flexible printed circuit and
module products, buried/blind via High Density Interconnector
products as well as intelligent innovation.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the finance cost
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$10,234,000,
representing an increase of approximately 389.43% as
compared to approximately HK$2,091,000 of last year.
The significant increase in finance cost was mainly due to
the increase in bank loans for the part payment of capital
contribution to AKMMeadville and for working capital.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of the
manufacture and sales of FPC and flexible packaging substrates
(including components), which are used in electronic products.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the turnover of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,676,423,000,
representing an increase of approximately 14.54% as compared
to approximately HK$1,463,630,000 for 2019. The increase
in turnover was mainly due to the increase in orders from
major customers. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$247,139,000,
representing an increase of approximately 18.43% as compared
to approximately HK$208,687,000 for 2019. In 2020, the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$119,351,000, representing an increase
of approximately 1.39% as compared to approximately
HK$117,711,000 in 2019. Despite there was a notable increase
in revenue of approximately 14.54% during the year, the profit
was only slightly increased mainly due to the impact of the
substantial increase in research and development expenses.

During the year under review, the turnover of the Group's
circuit boards and components business was approximately
HK$1,651,223,000, representing an increase of approximately
14.00% as compared with approximately HK$1,448,487,000
of last year. The gross profit margin increased to approximately
14.88% (corresponding period in 2019: approximately
14.22%). During the year under review, the turnover of the
"other” business of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$25,200,000, which was mainly derived from the business of
sourcing and sales of electronic components, and accounted for
approximately 1.50% of the total sales volume of the Group.
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During the year under review, despite being influenced by the
global spread of the novel coronavirus pandemic, decline of
global economy and significant fluctuation of the electronic
industry, the Group continued to adhere to the strategy of
“developing major customers” and strengthened customer
development and customer services, and managed to maintain
an upward trend in turnover. During the year under review,
supply of FPC and flexible packaging substrates for the
manufacture of smartphones and its modules, consumer
electronics, new energy car cells and automotive electronics
continued to be the main development directions of the Group.
The Group also achieved major developments in the supply of
the Group's products to the customers manufacturing wearable
products, optical camera modules and display modules. By
proactively improving the Group’s technical capabilities and
standards, the Group enhanced the production and sales
volume and strengthened the cooperation between the
upstream and downstream, and captured opportunities to
achieve better operating results.

During the year under review, the research and development
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$83,153,000, representing an increase of approximately
44.99% as compared to approximately HK$57,352,000 of
last year. The increase in research and development expenses
was mainly attributable to the increase in investments in new
products, research and development of new technologies,
new products and new production techniques by the Group.
During the year under review, the Group invested substantial
research and development resources in high frequency and high
speed flexible printed circuit and module products, and buried/
blind via High Density Interconnector products. The Group will
continue to increase investment in research and development in
order to continuously uplift technology standard and technical
capability and conducting research and development in new
materials, new products and new production techniques.
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As disclosed in the Company's circular dated 20 December
2017, the Group intended to establish an intelligent
manufacturing factory with ancillary facilities in the existing
factory of the Group in Nansha, Guangdong, PRC for
assembling new application modules of FPC. During the year
under review, production had commenced in the relevant

facilities.

During the year under review, in order to seize the development
opportunity in the field of new energy cars, AKM Panyu (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) jointly established &
ML @M AERERARAE (transliteration
New Energy Technology Co. Ltd.”) with a cooperation partner.
The joint venture, which is owned as to 55% by AKM Panyu,

“Guangzhou Anbo

specializes in the development of new energy car electronics
module products that is expected to facilitate market
exploration and industrial upgrade in the industrial electronics
field by the Group.

On 13 January 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek”, for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a renewed purchase
agreement (the
to the transactions for selling of parts, components and other
products (including but not limited to FPC products) for a term
commenced from 1 January 2020 and expired on 31 December

“Renewed Purchase Agreement”) in relation

2022. Such transactions constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The Renewed Purchase Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, as well as the annual caps for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2022 were approved
by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 February 2020. Details of
the terms of the Renewed Purchase Agreement, the continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020 and
the circular dated 4 February 2020. The annual cap set for
the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB200,000,000. During the year under
review, the Group sold circuit board products of approximately
RMB85,507,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$96,173,000)
to GoerTek and
approximately 2.54% as compared to that of the year ended
31 December 2019 (2019: approximately RMB83,389,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$94,793,000)).

its subsidiaries, representing an increase of
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On 31 December 2019, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and Suzhou Anjie Technology Co. Ltd. (&
INZZRFERDBRAR)(

and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework

“Anjie Technology”) (for itself

materials sale and purchase agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) for a term commenced from 31 December
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020, and the annual
cap of the continuing connected transaction for the year
2020 was set at RMB60,000,000. Details of the terms of the
Framework Agreement, the continuing connected transaction
and the annual cap for the year 2020 were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2019,
15 January 2020 and 31 December 2020. During the year
under review, the Group sold FPC products of approximately
RMB2,166,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,436,000)
to Anjie Technology, representing a decrease of approximately
62.4% as compared with the year ended 31 December
2019 (2019: approximately RMB5,762,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,550,000)). As the term of the Framework
Agreement expired on 31 December 2020, the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its Subsidiaries) and Anjie Technology
(for itself and on behalf of its Subsidiaries) entered into the
Renewed Framework Agreement (the “Renewed Framework
Agreement”) on 31 December 2020 to renew the Framework
Agreement for a term commenced from 1 January 2021 and
expiring on 31 December 2021. Details of the terms of the
Renewed Framework Agreement, the continuing connected
transaction and the annual cap for the year 2021 were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2020.
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On 13 December 2018, the Group proposed to adopt the
restricted stock incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to further
improve corporate governance of the Group, retain and
motivate the Scheme participants to make contributions to
the long-term growth and profits of the Group with a view to
achieving the objectives of increasing the value of the Group
and to promote a greater alignment of interests between the
scheme participants and the shareholders. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board shall select the scheme participants and
determine the number of restricted stock to be granted. The
Company has appointed a trustee to purchase the shares from
the secondary market. At the extraordinary general meeting
held on 31 January 2019, the Scheme was duly approved by
the independent shareholders. On 14 February 2019 and 27
March 2019, the Board approved the initial grant of restricted
stock under the Scheme, pursuant to which 27,500,000
shares of restricted stock were granted to 81 selected scheme
participants on 14 February 2019 at the grant price of HK$0.65
per share and 2,490,000 shares of restricted stock were
granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (executive director) and Mr.
Chai Zhi Qiang (chief executive officer) on 27 March 2019 at
the grant price of HK$0.77 per share. Details of the Scheme
and the initial grant of restricted stock were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 13 December 2018, 31
January 2019, 14 February 2019, 15 February 2019 and 27
March 2019 and the circular dated 16 January 2019. As of 31
December 2020, the trustee had purchased 7,300,000 shares
in aggregate from the secondary market. As of 31 December
2020, none of the restricted stock granted had been unlocked.
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On 27 December 2019, AKM Panyu, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
with Meizhi Investment (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (EE®KE (B
F9) BBRAE)) (“Meizhi Investment”), Xiamen Semiconductor
Ltd. (BEFI+ERKEEHBRRE)
("Xiamen Semiconductor”) and Anmei Ventures (Xiamen)
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (Z =82
(EF) REXRESR X (BRE%)) ("Anmei Ventures”)
for the formation of the joint venture company AKMMeadville
Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (Z#EFIEHEF (EF) B
[RETAB) ("AKMMeadville”). Under the joint venture
agreement, the joint venture company shall be owned as to 6%
by AKM Panyu, 53% by Meizhi Investment, 40% by Xiamen
Semiconductor and 1% by Anmei Ventures. The registered
capital of AKMMeadville is RMB4,500,000,000. AKM Panyu
contributed a total amount of RMB270,000,000 (representing
6% of the total contribution) in the form of cash. On 20
January 2020, AKMMeadville (as purchaser) entered into an
equity interests purchase agreement with TTM Technologies

Investment Group Co.,

China Limited (as seller) and the seller’s ultimate controlling
shareholder TTM Technologies Inc., pursuant to which the
purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire all of the equity
interests of Guangzhou Meadville Electronics Co., Ltd. (EEM
EMHEFAHREAT), Shanghai Meadville Electronics Co., Ltd.
(EB=#EFAEMRAT), Shanghai Meadville Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. (E/8E#4ERIZBRAE)and Shanghai
Kaiser Electronics Co., Ltd. (F'BHBEEFARAE) for a
total consideration of US$550,000,000, and completion took
place on 18 April 2020. Details of the relevant matters were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 27

December 2019 and 23 January 2020.
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OUTLOOK

The Group has become an authorised supplier for a number
of world-renowned high-technology companies. To meet
the requirements of the global supply chain system of such
customers, the Group has established two production bases
(Southern China Guangzhou Factory and Eastern China Suzhou
Factory) and a new overseas factory in India. The factory in
India merely conducts post-assembly operations including
surface mounting and component assembling for customers
and has commenced operation. The Group is also planning
to invest in another new overseas factory in Vietnam to serve
international customers with production bases in Vietnam.
The Group has also established sales centre, research and
development centre, supply chain management etc. which are
independent from the manufacturing system to cater for the
comprehensive needs of the Group’s customers. Under the
guidance of the strategy of “developing major customers”
and with the gradual uplift of the Group's technology,
production, quality management, supply chain management
and information technology capabilities, the Group’s capability
to satisfy the “one-stop demand” of such customers has
also been largely improved. The Group aims at developing
into an important international supplier of circuit boards and
components and becoming the industry leader in the PRC.

Due to the global spread of the novel coronavirus pandemic
may result in a prolonged pandemic, the increasing pressure
from economic downturn and the significant fluctuation in
the electronic industry, the Group remains cautious about
the future and will pay close attention to the changes in
the economy, industry and major customers to evaluate its
risk exposures and the impacts on orders and supply chain.
Meanwhile, the Group will enhance its internal capacity, so
that, (i) by adhering to the strategy of “developing major
customers” to strengthen efforts in exploring and serving
major customers in key markets and emerging sectors; (ii)
by strengthening technology research and development and
improving intelligent manufacturing capabilities, to improve
the technical standard of products and the capability for
mass production of high-end products; (iii) by paying close
attention to the safety of supply chain and strengthening the
integration of upstream and downstream resources; and (iv) by
strengthening the localization service capabilities for overseas
market and improving the risk resistance capabilities, the Group
will strive to turn risks into opportunities and continuously
improve its operating results.
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The management of the Group is of the opinion that, following
the popularity in application of electronic products e.g. the
rapid development in electronic products for new energy cars
and wearable products, the electronic industry will manage
to maintain a growth. Upon overcoming the adverse effects
of the novel coronavirus, the circuit boards and components
business is expected to maintain its continuous growth in the
foreseeable future. The Group will continue to invest in circuit
board business and adhere to the strategy of “developing major
customers”, continuously uplift the technology capabilities of
products, pay full attention to the market opportunities in new
application fields, and strengthen the strategic cooperation
with relevant shareholders and AKMMeadville Electronics

Ltd (ZfEF|EMEF (BF) BREELED.
By following development strategies such as strengthening

(Xiamen) Co.,
integration of upstream and downstream resources, and
enlarging economic scale to promote operational efficiency, the
Group will be able to strengthen its core capabilities, overcome
various difficulties and keep on improving its operating results,
so as to present satisfactory results and bring favourable returns
to its shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations primarily with internally
generated funds from operating activities and existing bank
facilities. It is anticipated that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its present funding requirements. As at 31
December 2020, the outstanding loan balance of the Group
was approximately HK$183,215,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$39,358,000), mainly due to the increase in bank loans for
the capital contribution to establish AKMMeadville and for the
substantial increase in capital expenditure of investing activities
such as the purchase of property, plant and equipment, which
was mainly the investments in civil engineering of the new
intelligent factory of Nansha Factory in Guangdong and the
investments in expanding the production volume and product
capacity of the Group's current flexible printed circuit products
and flexible packaging substrates.
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EMPLOYEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 1,499
full-time employees based in Hong Kong and China (2019:
1,315 employees). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
total labor costs (including Director’s remuneration) for the
Group amounted to approximately HK$187,774,000 (2019:
approximately HK$166,933,000). The Group determines and
reviews the remunerations of its Directors and employees
based on their respective qualifications, experiences,
performances and the market rates, so as to maintain the
remuneration of the Directors and employees at a competitive
level. The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans and insurance schemes in compliance with
the statutory obligations under the laws and regulations of
China and Hong Kong. The Directors believe that being one
of the most important assets of the Group, employees are
important contributors to the success of the Group. The Group
appreciates the importance of staff training, therefore, regular
trainings are provided to the employees to enhance their
technical and product knowledge. The majority of the Group's
employees are stationed in China.

MATERIAL INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material investments during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SUBSCRIPTIONS

On 29 November 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Alpha Luck, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and a subscription agreement
with Anjie Technology respectively, pursuant to which
Alpha Luck and Anjie Technology respectively subscribed
for 103,900,000 shares and 200,000,000 shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$1.5 per share (collectively the
“Subscriptions”). The Subscriptions were completed
simultaneously on 30 January 2018. The net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$454,886,000 (“Net Proceeds
of Subscriptions”). As of 31 December 2020, the Net Proceeds
of Subscriptions had been fully utilized, among which:
(i) approximately HK$156,000,000 was used for the civil
engineering construction of the new intelligent factory; (ii)
approximately HK$112,669,000 was used for expanding the
production capacities and enhancing production capabilities
of the Group’'s existing production plant of FPC products
(all of which was used for acquiring new machineries); (iii)
approximately HK$137,331,000 was used for the enhancement
of production capacities and capabilities of the Group's
flexible packaging substrates products (all of which was
used for acquiring new machineries); and (iv) approximately
HK$48,886,000 was used for the general working capital of
the Group (all of which was applied as supplemental working
capital). The capital utilization was consistent with the intended
use of the Net Proceeds of Subscriptions as disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 20 December 2017.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR PURCHASE OF CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
future plans for material investment or purchase of capital asset
as at 31 December 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,368,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$2,364,000) of the Group were pledged as collateral to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group. The Group did not
have trade receivables pledged as collateral to secure bank
facilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, buildings with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$47,968,000 (31 December 2019:

approximately HK$46,488,000) were pledged to secure the
general bank facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the net cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$129,853,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 39.28% (31 December 2019: approximately
31.47%), which was calculated based on the Group's total
liabilities of approximately HK$964,414,000 (31 December
2019: HK$581,916,000) and the Group's total assets of
approximately HK$2,455,203,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$1,849,066,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly
denominated in US dollars and RMB, while the assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in HK dollars and RMB.
The Group is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures, primarily with respect to US dollars
and RMB. The operating results and the financial position of
the Group may be affected by any changes in the exchange
rates, the Group has not taken any hedging measures in this
regard. Furthermore, the conversion of RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the foreign
exchange control rules and regulations promulgated by the
Chinese government. However, taking into account the Group's
current operation and capital requirements, the Directors
do not consider the Group is subject to any material foreign
exchange risk.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of
HK1.45 cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK1 cent per share) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
4 June 2021.
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"), the

Subject to the approval by the shareholders at

proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Friday, 18 June 2021.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 2 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF SHARE REGISTER FOR ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 21 May 2021 to Wednesday, 26 May 2021 (both
days inclusive) for the purposes of determining shareholder’s
eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM and during which no
transfer of shares will be effected. To be qualified to attend
the AGM, which is to be held on Wednesday, 26 May 2021,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20 May 2021.
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INTRODUCTION

Save for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the
Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (collectively “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules by establishing formal and
transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of
shareholders during the year under review.

As Mr. Yang Zhaoguo resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee, a member of the audit committee and a member
of the nomination committee with effect from 23 September
2020 due to his other business commitments, the proportion
of independent non-executive Directors of the nomination
committee fell below the requirement under Code provision
A.5.1. The Company has appointed Mr. Zhang Guo Qi as
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
remuneration committee, a member of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee on 21 December
2020 and has complied with the requirement under Code
provision A.5.1 with effect from 21 December 2020.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less favorable
than the standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Model Code of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
on all Directors, it is confirmed that the Directors have complied
with such code of conduct and the standard of dealings
regarding securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

During the year under review, the Board consisted of 1
executive Director and 8 non-executive Directors of whom 3
were independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Director:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Mr. Wang Chunsheng

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming

Mr. Yu Daochun (resigned on 10 June 2020)
Mr. Liu Jianzhe (appointed on 10 June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Cui Zheng

Mr. Yang Zhaoguo (resigned on 23 September 2020)
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi (appointed on 21 December 2020)

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategy planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for the Board’s approval before
reporting to the public, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal control and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules
and regulations. During the year under review, the Board and
its audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee have performed corporate governance duties in
accordance with the functions set out in the Code Provision
D.3.1.
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Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman and
other Directors of the Company are set out on pages 9 to 15 of
this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. The executive Director has
sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently. There is no relationship among
the members of the Board.

During the year under review, all independent non-executive
Directors had appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties to protect the interests of
shareholders. Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Cui Zheng, Mr.
Yang Zhaoguo and Mr. Zhang Guo Qi were independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew was appointed
since 17 October 2011 and his appointment was renewed for a
term of three years commenced from 17 October 2020. Mr. Cui
Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
commenced from 3 May 2016 and his appointment was
renewed for a further term of three years commenced from 3
May 2019. Mr Yang Zhaoguo was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from 15 May 2018 and resigned as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 September 2020
due to his other business engagements. Mr. Zhang Guo Qi
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of three years commenced from 21 December 2020. All
of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Under the Code Provision A.4.2, every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence to the
Company. Based on such confirmations of independence, the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

During the year under review, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng was
the chairman and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang was the chief executive
officer.
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The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer were
segregated and were not exercised by the same individual
during the year under review. The chairman’s responsibility
was to manage the Board while the chief executive officer’s
responsibility was to manage the business of the Company.

The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.
Details of the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the

members of the Board during the year under review are as
follows:

REBEFER EERITEBH BB EFE
Do WIFRR—AEE - TEZREREESE
FE MOTBRR[ZHBEREEEARB 2R
5o

EFESTUETRTEEMBIIEEE-

a

EFENEENBEEERNLFEEFTEERZ
SCERETBEUT ¢

Attendance
Director == & RE
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng BEIF g5 4 4/4
Mr. Gao Xiaoguang (Sl e 4/4
Mr. Jia Junan HEwrE 4/4
Mr. Wang Chunsheng TEERE 4/4
Ms. Zhang Xiaoming REEEAZ 4/4
Mr. Yu Daochun REBHLE 2/4
Mr. Liu Jianzhe B@ERE 2/4
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HERSES 4/4
Mr. Cui Zheng EELL 4/4
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo ¥ IKE e 4 3/4
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi SREINE T4 0/4

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
members of the Board will meet on other occasions when a
board-level decision on a particular matter is required. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision in
advance of each board meeting.
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company organised all
Directors to attend training on the amendments of Main
Board Listing Rules and the amendments of financial reporting
standards and accounting standards as well as the impacts
on the Company according to the amendments of the Main
Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards.
All Directors had complied with the requirements set out in
the Code Provision A.6.5 by participating in the continuous
professional development, developing and refreshing their
knowledge and skills, in order to ensure that their contribution
to the Board would remain informed and relevant.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee with written
terms of reference in accordance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of
the Listing Rules, and it was amended on 31 December 2018.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
monitor the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, review the finance
and practice of accounting policies of the Company and
its subsidiaries, and provide advice and comments on the
Company’s draft of annual reports and accounts and half-year
reports. During the year under review, the audit committee
comprised of three members, namely Mr. Hung Chi Yuen
Andrew, Mr. Cui Zheng, Mr. Yang Zhaoguo (resigned on 23
September 2020) and Mr. Zhang Guo Qi (appointed on 21
December 2020). All of them were independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the audit committee was Mr. Hung
Chi Yuen Andrew.

During the year under review, four meetings were held by the
audit committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance of the
audit committee meetings are as follows:
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Attendance
Director 5F & RE
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEiEEE 4/4
Mr. Cui Zheng EEiL 4/4
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo IRl e 4 3/4
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi SREIE T4 0/4
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The Group's unaudited interim results and audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 had been
reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosures were made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in August 2005
with written terms of reference. During the year under review,
the remuneration committee comprised of three members.
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo (resigned on 23 September 2020) and Mr.
Zhang Guo Qi (appointed on 21 December 2020), both being
independent non-executive Directors, was the chairman of the
committee. Other members of the committee included Mr. Cui
Zheng and Ms. Zhang Xiaoming. Accordingly, the majority of
the members were independent non-executive Directors.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include
the determination of specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for appointment or loss of office, and the provision
of recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and feasibility
of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by the
remuneration committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance
at the remuneration committee meetings are as follows:

rEBBE_TE_EF+_RA=+—HLEF
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Attendance
Director == HERE
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo BIKE L& 2/2
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi SREIE ST 0/2
Mr. Cui Zheng EELL 2/2
Ms. Zhang Xiaoming REERR L+ 2/2
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The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and appointment letters of the independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee of the
Company considers that the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and appointment letters
of the independent non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 22 March 2012
with written terms of reference, and it was amended on 31
December 2018. During the year under review, the nomination
committee comprised of three members. The chairman of the
committee was Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng. Other members included
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Yang Zhaoguo (resigned on
23 September 2020) and Mr. Zhang Guo Qi (appointed on 21
December 2020). Accordingly, the majority of the members
were independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee shall review the structure, size
and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge,
experience, past performance and qualification, etc.) and assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
the adequacy of Corporate Governance Code. The committee
is responsible for formulating nomination policy, identifying
candidates for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the nomination, appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession plan of Directors.
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The Company acknowledges that the diversification of the
members of the Board has positive effects on enhancing the
Group’s performance. The Company sees the diversification of
the members of the Board as an important supporting factor
for the Group to achieve its strategic goals and maintain
sustainable growth. In deciding the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural
and academic background, race, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and terms of services. All appointments of
the Board are made on merits with objective consideration of
candidates, while taking into full account of the benefits of
the Board's diversity. The nomination committee reviews the
diversity of the composition of the Board on regular basis, and
monitors the implementation of this policy so as to ensure its
effective implementation.

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the
nomination committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance at
the nomination committee meeting are as follows:

ARBHAEFENESTIEHEALRTN
REREEGRZ - ARFREFEMEAT
ZRERHHEINBRERREFTIFE
BRZBER-ANDERTEFENEAS
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ERANBE FRERIBERESFENEZ T
NE@m - RLEZEERERBRATEFEES T
EREZ AN ERABRZNIT  UERE
HRITZBM

REBEFER RLHEZEGHBT—REH-
EFHFRVEZET TR ZCHFBNT

Attendance
Director 5F HFERE
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng BREIE gt 11
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEiErAE 1/1
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo ¥ IKE e 4 1/1
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi SREINE T4 0/1

The nomination committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors should be recommended to be retained by
the Company.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company was responsible for
considering the appointment of external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the
year under review, the Group was required to pay an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$950,000 to the external auditor
for their audit service.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, and confirmed that the financial
statements of the Company were prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any undisclosed material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen was appointed as the company secretary
on 13 June 2011. Ms. Hung Ching Yuen is an external
service provider to the Company and a solicitor practising in
Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required by the Listing Rules. The
primary contact person between the Company and Ms. Hung
Ching Yuen is Mr. Jiang Maoping, officer responsible for
compliance and legal matters.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company conducts regular reviews on its internal
control system and risk management program to ensure their
effectiveness and adequacy. The Company convenes meetings
periodically to discuss financial, operational, compliance and
risk management control. The purpose of the Group's internal
risk management control and program is to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems. Through
the audit committee, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control and is of the opinion that
the resources for and the qualifications of the staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. The Board is satisfied with present
internal control.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividend to the Shareholders
of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution
of dividend shall be in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association and relevant laws and regulations. The
recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and no dividend shall
be distributed in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. In deciding whether to distribute dividend, the Board
shall consider a range of factors including (but not limited to)
the financial results, earnings, loss and distributable reserve,
operations and liquidity capital requirements, debt ratio and
possible effect on the credit lines, capital requirements, current
and future development plans of the Company, interests of
the Shareholders, and other factors that the Board considered
relevant.

AUDITOR

During the year under review, the performance of the external
auditor of the Company was reviewed by the Group and
recommendation was made to re-appoint ShineWing (HK) CPA
Limited as the external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. The Company
has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
and investors in compliance with the Listing Rules and uses
a number of formal communications channels to report the
Company’s performance to shareholders and investors. These
include (1) the publication of announcements and notices,
financial information and corporate governance information
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Company; (2) the annual general meeting
or extraordinary general meeting which provide a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board; (3) information@akmcompany.com, an
email specifically set up by the Company for communications
with investors, which provides timely replies to the enquires
from investors; (4) the provision of services for shareholders
through the Company’s registered office and share registrar in
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 65 of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. An
extraordinary general meeting shall also be convened upon
request by shareholders of the Company as provided by the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of the Laws of Hong Kong
(“Companies Ordinance”), or, in default, may be convened by
the shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting.
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According to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call an extraordinary general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote
at general meetings. Shareholders of the Company may deposit
at the registered office of the Company a written request,
which shall state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting and include the text of the resolution
to be proposed at the meeting, and shall be signed by the
shareholders who made the demand. Where the Directors do
not, within 21 days from the date of depositing the demand,
duly arrange an extraordinary general meeting to be held
on a day not later than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given, the shareholders who
made the demand or shareholders representing more than
half of the voting rights of such shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting themselves in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which extraordinary general
meetings may be convened by the Directors of the Company,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders who
made the request as a result of the failure of the Directors
to duly convene an extraordinary general meeting shall be
reimbursed by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the Companies Ordinance.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
following the procedure set out in the preceding paragraph.

In relation to proposing a person for election as a Director,
please refer to the procedure available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company's registered office in
Hong Kong at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also send such enquiries and concerns to
information@akmcompany.com, an email specifically set up by
the Company for investor communications.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE-HERELSRS

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report focuses
on the performance of corporate social responsibility of the
Group during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. The Group is committed to improving its strategy
and management in relation to environment, society and
governance through enhancement of infrastructure, internal
participation and external partnership to achieve a balanced
and win-win situation between interests of shareholders and

the society.
STAKEHOLDERS' PARTICIPATION

The Group has established a number of channels to allow
related institutions and individuals in the society (the
"Stakeholders”) to participate in the Group’s operations so as
to understand and oversee the Group's operating performance.
We are committed to creating a harmonious community with
various common interests, thus maximizing the overall social
benefits including the corporate benefits. Stakeholders can
participate in the operation of the Company through the
following means:

Channels and means of
communication and participation

Stakeholders
BEFEA

Key targets and interests

TEARRMEHN BESERANEE

AEEMARERREBHEZZFAARAE
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AEERTE LEMAENER GBMEaRT
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MEBRBANEERN  BEEE—EMEH
ERHAmAERFRE BREECERm&RAEHE

AR EGENmEAE- BEFAE AU
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Company's measures

G

Shareholders and Protection of shareholders’ interests,

investors truthful, accurate and timely enquiries and site visits, disclosure
disclosure of information. of information (including financial
statements) and contact information
of the Company.
BREZEE BEEnGRE EAREEE & BEAS REEAANETER EHM

B~ R o

Shareholders’ meetings, investor

RE (BUMBRE)  AEBEHX-

Publication of notifications and resolutions of

the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of
information of the Company in accordance with
rules and regulations; organization of various
investor activities; publication of the Company's
contact information on the Company's website
and reports, and assuring all communication
channels are smooth and unobstructed.
BRAEEGRRRASBNNRR READEM,;
HEZBEANKREE RS TATABNRE
FREAEMEAT UTRRSEEREELE
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Channels and means of

Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company’s measures
BEHEA TEERRMEER BRBAFANEE AR
Employees Protection of basic rights, Workers union, communication Establishment of workers union to provide workers
compensation and benefits, work channels between employees and with a platform to communicate; payment of
environment, development and management, opinion boxes, staff  salaries and benefits in full and on time; payment
promotion and occupational health activities, training and education. of social security insurance in accordance with
and safety. law; provision of a healthy and safe work
environment; establishment of a fair promotion
mechanism; cared about our employees,
organization of employee activities, trainings and
learning activities.
8T EARGRE BAHENGE ITF T2 BTHEEEEREE ER MUISES RUEIXATA KEEHEMN
BE ¥REM BERREZE2. H 8LEH BIR2ZH. RN RESMTERE ; RERR X2K
TIFIRIE; BUATHEARS  BEET A4
STEE) BlHEH-
Customers Guarantee of the product quality Regular visits or maintain daily Strengthening of quality control, assurance of
and quantity, long-term and stable communication via telephone, emails steady production and smooth logistic process;
co-operation. and various instant messaging tools. provision of adequate products; entering into long
term sales agreements with customers.
ZF EmmENUBRE RARES ERESARREE BHREEN NMBAREEH RELERENERHES, RIER
fEe EEAIARFARER. BER; BIRPBE
Government Lawful operations, payment of Site visits, inspections, work Conducting operation in accordance with the
tax in accordance with the law, conference and discussion, work law; compliance management, payment of tax
production safety, fulfillment of reports, submissions and approvals.  in accordance with the law; strengthening of
social responsibility. the Company's safety management; acceptance
of government supervision, inspection and
examination in accordance with regulations, active
commitment to social responsibilities.
B BERE ORI 2R B RERR-BD TEeEM:D T AEEE aRERE, RENR; NRATZ2E

Suppliers and contractors

HEBREES

THEER.

Fair bidding, long-term stable co-
operation and timely payment.

ATRR REREAE #RY

EY
T—F'j"\o

fEREBRE i

Public bidding meetings and business
meetings, daily communications.

BREGH AXEG BRER.
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Fair bidding, select by merit, performance of
contractual obligations, strengthening of daily
communications, maintenance of long-term
cooperation with quality suppliers and contractors.
ATER 2EER BARTAR MBEER
T RREHEENASERAAE.



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE-HERELSRS

Channels and means of

Stakeholders
EHEFEA

Key targets and interests

TEARRMEHN BESARANEE

communication and participation Company’s measures

AN

Community and the Job opportunities, community

public development, ecological charity, volunteering services and
environment, compensation and participation in the construction of
assistance. the community.
HBEAR RERS HEBEE LREE H  HPHEEE EEED SEER

EEEH- BoitEHEE-

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has complied with international and national
environmental standards and ensured employee’s health
and safety in production, with an aim to establish a green
and civilized environment, to enhance energy efficiency and
minimize both energy consumption and pollutant discharge
through continuous improvements of management standards.
The production factories of the Group have passed the
certifications of 1SO9001, IATF16949 Quality Management
System and I1ISO14001 Environmental Management System, the
audit acceptance of clean production management, and have
received certificates on standardization of safety production.
In addition, the factory in Guangzhou has also passed the
certification of 1S045001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and the factory in Suzhou has passed the
certification of IECQ QC 080000. A three-level environmental
monitoring system has been implemented by the Group to
ensure the full compliance with the relevant national standards
for different types of pollutants. The Group also implemented
an accountability and performance appraisal system to ensure
the specific responsibilities of various levels of personnel in the
execution and management of the environmental protection
system. During the year under review, the various emission
indexes of the Group have complied fully with the relevant
environmental protection standards. No penalty in relation to
the performance of environmental protection has been imposed
on the Group.

Co-hosting of community activities,

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels for the
community and community members; hosting of
community activities, promotion of the building of
harmonious community.

REHEBEZNERE RESEERS BREd
BNHERENEREE HItREH RER
RMEHE

IR RE

FEBERBEBRAMBERNVIRREZE BER
BEZ24EEMNARZSEXBHIRE RS ER
FMABAME REERER B RWEER
FEUEEEKE - AEBZEETRIEB
ISO9001 ~ IATF16949 % B & #1588 % 5215014001
RIEEEREZ  UNRBREEEESEZBERT
HESZL2EERELBE - BENIHIBES
ISO4500 X REL 2 EIRR R Z0E i
PN T 55 @8 3BIECQ QC 0800007 5358 o A e (R
FHESRAMBN T2/ EBERNEMRE > K
EEERRR=-BEBEFE BTHERENY
ZiZH ZESHAEEBAERRGENH
TMEE - REBEFERN AEBESEH RIS
R AR RERE > MARIERIAM
R EMERES -

—ETFFR
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RE-HEKRELSRS

Emissions — The Group puts best efforts to control the amount
of emissions which affects the environment, strengthens its
competence in environmental supervision and has completed
the installment of online supervision device for waste water
and waste gas, in order to realize real-time supervision and
early warning of major pollution emission source. The Group
has installed an online monitoring system to keep track of the
sewage chemical oxygen demand (COD), pH level and flow
measurement, and also an online monitoring system to keep
track of the heavy metal in sewage. Other facilities include
underground water detection well and surveillance cameras
installed at the discharge outlets for the instant feedback of
information. An independent third party with appropriate
qualifications has also been engaged to operate, maintain
and manage these online facilities to ensure their proper
functioning. During the year under review, the operation of
the Group's facilities for the treatment of waste water, exhaust
gas, solid wastes and noise pollution were stable and met all
relevant inspection standards. As such, the Group is pleased
to report that it complied with national and local laws and
regulations on emission control in relation to the control of
waste gas, greenhouse gas emission, waste water discharge,
noise control as well as generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes in 2020.
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(1) Emission of pollutants (1) SHEMBEM
No. Type of emissions Unit Amount Remark
5% R Es Efi UE LB
1 COD Tonnes 7.12 Emissions in waste water
{EEFEE Nig BEKFr 2 HEA
2 Total Chromium kg 2.43 Emissions in waste water
ik T BE K 2 HEA
3 Total Copper Tonnes 0.1 Emissions in waste water
21 U BEKFr 2 HEA
4 Total Nickel kg 2.1 Emissions in waste water
a2 T BEKFr 2 BEA
5 Total Phosphorus Tonnes 0.29 Emissions in waste water
HBBk it BE K 2 HEA
6 Ammoniacal Nitrogen Tonnes 0.39 Emissions in waste water
2R Nig BEKFr 2 HEA
7 Hydrogen Chloride Tonnes 4.24 Emissions in waste gas
SE= i BERFT 2 HEY
8 Sulfuric Acid Fog Tonnes 1.26 Emissions in waste gas
LR i BERFT 2 HE
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(2) Quantity of greenhouse gas, waste water discharge (2) RERE -SKEREREEY
and solid wastes

No. Indicator Unit Amount Remark
B ot EIRRTE B g B
1 Total volume of Ten thousand 1.46 Total emission of CO2 equivalent
greenhouse gas tonnes
emission
BERBBEEINE A TEBZEMAVESERE
2 Volume of industrial ~ Ten thousand 67.56 The Company has excellent sewage
sewage generated tonnes treatment facilities with sewage
treatment rate of 100%
TESKEELES = A REIATENSKEERR
V5K AR R IRIERLZE100%
3 Hazardous wastes Tonnes 2435.78 A qualified hazardous wastes treatment

company has been engaged to handle
all hazardous wastes with 100%
compliance rate in wastes treatment

fElREEE=Y) L EHETEBEENCREEIEE
BREaREEEI100%
4 Non-hazardous wastes Tonnes 184 Non-hazardous wastes of the Company

included mainly scrap materials, used
plastic sheets and used cardboard,
most of which are recyclable
mEBEEY L7 NABEBFBEYTIEZEAR ERBE
KEEHREE > KERe] AR
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RE-HERELSRS

Use of resources — The Group insists on the principle of full,
reasonable and effective use of energy and makes every effort
to eliminate inefficiencies, and uses energy-saving equipment
as well as applies innovative energy saving technologies as
much as possible. The target of the energy conservation
management plan is to save energy, save resources, reduce

BERERA—FTEERFURD S ERBRM
FAERBEREARA BERASZDHFRE
ME>WEEBEAHERE RERBAMEAE
Ao ENRE B RSt 8 B4V BE TR ~ BN B R ~
PR BV IRR SR RESEENHESE
B WS HEKERKRE R BICERERE

consumption, reduce environmental pollution and improve B/VIRIBSRKREEE I HES L IBIENE
economic efficiency. Multiple initiatives have been launched
for energy and resources conservation, optimization of energy
consumption, reduction of environmental pollution and
reduction of power consumption.
(1) Energy consumption (1) BEIRHFE
No. Indicator Unit Quantity Remark
5% E1R T8 Efi g B
1 Use of electricity 10,000 kWh 6,983 The Group mainly used electricity
as energy source. No coal or heat was used
as energy source
REE BTERE rEEFEERERER
BERERAREHMIER
(2) Water resource consumption (2) KEFHE
No. Indicator Unit Quantity Remark
e 5% EIR T8 Bl ¥E B
1 Tap water usage 10,000 81.72 The Group used water supplied by the
tonnes urban water supply plant. There were no
issues related to water consumption or
demand
BZRKAE B ANEEFE AT B 2R KR K
FEACRERMN KR LR EFEREE
2 Reclaimed water usage 10,000 26.36 During the year, the use of
tonnes reclaimed water increased
by 3.86% as compared with corresponding
period of last year
FKERE B FEAMBFAKELA

CREFLEFFH LF3.86%
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=

(3)

(4)

B ERELSRS

Measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

For the emissions of pollutants in waste water, the Group
has been promoting the adoption of technologies and
equipment with a high resource utilization rate, low
pollutant emission and intelligence. The Group has also
been enhancing the use of reclaimed water and reducing
waste water discharge. Sales volume of printed circuits
and components business of the Group in 2020 increased
by approximately 12.28% as compared to 2019, while the
volume of industrial sewage increased by approximately
11.4% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The total amount of emissions of pollutant in waste
water increased by approximately 17.53% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, with water
consumption increased by approximately 10.4% and
reclaimed water usage increased by 3.86%. Efficiency
of waste water treatment and water resource utilization
rate also increased. The total volume of greenhouse gas
emission in 2020 increased by approximately 8.26% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year.

For the emissions of pollutants in waste gas, the emissions
of waste gas has been reduced by enhancing the
operational management of waste gas treatment devices.
The total amount of emissions of pollutants in waste gas
in 2020 decreased by approximately 9.24% as compared
with the corresponding period in 2019.

Means and measures to handle hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes and results achieved

The Group applies stringent measures in the handling
of hazardous wastes and a qualified hazardous wastes
treatment company has been engaged to handle all
hazardous wastes with 100% compliance rate in wastes
treatment. Comprehensive recycling policy has been
adopted for handling general waste with a comprehensive
utilization rate of approximately 85% in 2020.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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RE-HERELSRS

Environment and natural resources — The Group strives
to promote environmental infrastructure and improve the
environmental management system, in order to achieve energy
conservation, reduction of emission, clean production and
safe production and to minimize the impact of production
operations on the environment. The Group has implemented
the full process environmental management on its construction
projects, and introduced the pre-EIA pilot process. The system
of "Three Simultaneities” has been implemented. That is,
the design, construction and production of environmental
protection facilities as well as the main construction project are
carried out simultaneously. For the environmental risk factors
such as the emission of “three wastes” (waste water, waste
gas and solid waste) in the production process, we carried
out research and established a multi-level risk prevention
and control mechanism, and formulated strict environmental
protection measures to prevent pollution and protect the
ecological environment from the sources of pollution.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employment and recruitment — The Group recruits talents
based on the principle of openness, equality, competition and
merits. It provides equal opportunities to employees, creating
a fair and non-discriminatory work atmosphere. Approximately
99% of the employees of the Group are located in China and
the Group strictly observes the requirements of labor laws and
regulations of China without breaching any relevant codes or
regulations. The Group also introduces production operation
staff through professional employment agencies. The Company
treats every employee as equal. Their employment, benefits and
promotion will not be affected by social identities including
ethnic group, race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual
orientation, political camp and marital status.

BRERRAER-—TEEBZNHEERFRER
TERREERZ BROERHF -FEE
E-Z2EE BHRLEEEHRENTE
RIRB rEEBEHEREEEZBRIRRE
BT BRI RITIRIBMEREH
TRTERKR FRET  FRRREERN
=R E HHEEBRETNI=R (B
KBERMERERY) SIRFRERRBRE
BT T 22 11 % Al B B B 122 1 1) Rz 1) E R 1R B9 3R
IRIREE I WOREN A5 RMREERS -

HHESE

EBERBE-—FEEURAR - FE - HF 2
EBNRAIRMAST  HETRHEFERE &
BERVRERBZ TEAE- - AEBEMEBH
BEA99% MU FE > FEEEEBKETES
BERAERERZRE  BERMEBER KA
R AEETEBBEXEFH ARSI ELEER
EET - ARFPEFEH/FE—MUET FEETL
BRI BIFE MR R F e~ 1
[ BURIKA N B EFHE S MM EH
BRE-FBE - HBE
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S EREGBHRS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 1,499
full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
determines and reviews the remunerations of its Directors and
employees based on their respective qualifications, experiences,
performances and the market rates, so as to maintain the
remuneration of the Directors and employees at a competitive
level. The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans and insurance schemes in compliance with the
statutory obligations under the laws and regulations of China

and Hong Kong.

Health and safety — The Group upholds the core principle of
“safety first”, fosters a people-oriented culture and promotes
healthy life and safe workplace. The Group is setting safety
objectives and targets in accordance with the standard
established by International Standard 1SO45001 Occupational
Safety and Health Management System certification and
regularly evaluates to ensure compliance with the Group's
health and safety requirements. The Group’'s Guangzhou
Factory has passed the certification of ISO45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System. In addition to
ISO, the Group has also established a safety committee to
monitor the Group’s health and safety matters. These internal
policies provide the Group with a framework to ensure timely
assessment of safety and to assess the current manufacture
process in accordance with the Government and the Group’s
health and safety standards. Facing the novel coronavirus,
the Group's Guangzhou Factory and Suzhou Factory, being
relatively compact manufacturing enterprises, have strictly
complied with the requirements for epidemic prevention and
control in mainland China, and have set up leading groups
and emergency offices for epidemic prevention and control. By
promoting all the staff to take their responsibilities seriously,
management measures have been implemented in details. With
strict screening of employees’ health conditions, management
and control of external personnel, and assured supply of
epidemic prevention supplies such as masks and disinfectants,
normal working order of the factories is guaranteed. As of the
date of this report, the Group did not experience infections
of coronavirus disease as well as production stoppages and

workplace closures caused by infections of coronavirus disease.
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Development and training — The training of the Group
focuses on important issues while giving a comprehensive
coverage on all matters. In 2020, the Group conducted training
in line with the training requirements for senior and middle
management, professional and technical personnel, first-line
management and production operation staff in accordance
with the training requirements of each position. Independent
professional organizations are engaged to provide trainings
(including online trainings) on various aspects of health and
pandemic precaution, mental health, lean management and
intelligence, in order to cultivate staff with sound physical and
mental health and to enhance and improve the knowledge
and working skills of staff at different levels. During the year, a
total of 568 key training programs have been completed, and
approximately 3,960 hours have been devoted to staff training
for approximately 23,800 employees.

Labour standard - The Group strictly complies with the
provisions of labour laws and relevant laws and regulation
of China and we employ employees who have reached the
legal working age and hold valid identity documents. The
Group recruits on the basis of fairness, just, openness and
voluntariness, and does not force labor to sign an illegal labour
contract. The Group employs employees in accordance with the
requirements strictly, and there is no illegal employment. No
child labor is allowed to work in any workplace of the Group.
The Group also employs interns and temporary workers in
accordance with the law.

BREEIN-AEEBIEREL 2@ H
E N2 TEFE FAEEEZREIGES
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Management of supply chain — The Group has established
a relatively comprehensive supplier management system.
Requirements of confidentiality, integrity and product quality
are made clear to suppliers in the processes of supplier
recruitment, supplier evaluation, materials and equipment
procurement, price negotiation and supplier replacement
to ensure the confidentiality of both the Group's and the
suppliers’” sensitive information, to guarantee the product
qualities and employees’ integrity in the management of
supply chain. The Group requires all suppliers of raw material
to provide test reports on hazardous substances issued by
qualified independent third-party testing institutions and carry
out long-term quality supervision and regular reviews on all
suppliers. In the event that there is a significant change in the
suppliers and/or their qualifications or there is a serious quality
problem in the supplied goods, the Group may suspend the
supplier in question at any time and, if necessary, revoke the
supplier’'s qualification as a qualified supplier of our Group to
ensure the reliability in the quality of our products.

Product responsibility — The Group has adopted the following
measures to improve product safety and quality: in order to
reduce the quality risk in production, a quality assurance team
has been set up, the testing and grading at the product’s key
control point have been more frequent and product quality
issues are followed up in a timely manner; special testing
equipment to conduct internal supervision of product quality is
used and internal quality control processes are strictly enforced;
the "Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE")
directive and the "Restriction of Hazardous Substances”
(“RoHS") Directive of the European Union are complied with
and the halogen-free standard is adopted in the production

process.
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Anti-corruption — We have formulated a “Guideline for
External Relations” for staff and entered into “Agreement on
United Front of Integrity” with suppliers in light of the actual
situation of the Group, in order to strengthen the corporate
governance and internal control, regulate the behaviours
in business operation, safeguard the legitimate rights and
interests of the shareholders and promote the healthy and
stable development of the Company. The Group encourages
employees to report behaviours which are suspected to involve
corruptions and has established a complaint hotline and e-mail.
The Group clearly stipulates that all employees who commit
fraudulent activities are subject to corresponding economic
and administrative sanctions and those who have violated the
criminal law shall be sent to the judicial authorities according
to the laws. During the year under review, such systems
played a sound monitoring and prevention role in the Group's
risk control and anti-corruption management in which no
significant weakness has been identified.

Participation in community — The Group attaches importance
in contributing to the community, improving community
through the devotion of time, energy and resources, offering
assistance to poor people or disadvantaged groups, and
improving the living conditions of the community. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
for the promotion of sustainable development through business
operations, strengthen participation in the community, and
foster a culture of dedication within the community.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of the
manufacture and sales of flexible printed circuit and flexible
packaging substrates (including components) which are used
in electronic products. An analysis of the Group's turnover by
geographical market of its customers and operating segments
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is also
engaged in the sourcing of raw materials and equipment
and trading of flexible printed circuits and related products.
The activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future development are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 8 of this
report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
16 to 30. These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the environmental policy and performance
of the Group during the year under review is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 43 to
55 of this report. The Environmental, Social and Governance
Report form part of the Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The industry which the Group’s businesses operate in and the
performance of the Group are influenced by changes in market
conditions, technology advancement, evolvement in industry
standards, customers’ demands for the Group’s products, and
changes in preferences of the ultimate customers. The Group
operates its businesses in accordance with various industry
standards and government laws and regulations.

The novel coronavirus pandemic and the uncertainty of US-
sino relationship brought higher degree of uncertainties to
the market. Pandemic lockdowns of many countries, the
Huawei incident and disruption of supply of chips resulted in
high market volatility. The Group will pay close attention to
the changes in the economy, industry and major customers
to evaluate its risk exposures and the impacts on orders and
supply chain, so as to implement corresponding measures
promptly.

HES -BRRHEEEZREE

AEETHRARRE B RMEHFRETRYE
REHEINHERARRABRZESME 1NE
EECZF+_A=+—HLEFE FEH
HHES - BERREEFZBAMEREREKR
A e

RIBBERRRER

EAEEHOBEFERNRERREERN
MBI AREFI3EERSENRE - HE
REABBREP -RE-HEREABSBEAL
EXgREN -

TERBRABERRER

AEBEEXTARAETERTERZERAR
B R BUR ASB IR IR ~ ISR R B 1L ~ BT o
BRATERERE BERHAEEERES
EnERREFECEE-FEBZEERE
BREBTERERBUTER

HMERFERARTUKRFEBEREHFIRE
MMBEHERTRSHNAEENS - SEEFH
B ERFMF RRBHFHEERTEN
BIZUKE)  AEBRBE R ELE TEME
EERNEE STERR KR EMMHAERERN
FE UK R EREUE H A I

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR




Directors’ Report
EFEWRS

In order to meet the market demands for product functions
update and new products, the Group has made relatively
substantial investments towards the research and development
("R&D") of new products and new production technologies,
notwithstanding that the R&D expenses of certain projects are
supplemented by government grants. Further, the majority of
the Group's turnover is generated from a few major customers.
Hence, the Group endeavours to respond to such operational
shifts and market demands in a timely manner, to develop
new product application sector, to successfully research and
develop new products and new technologies, to maintain good
cooperative relationships with our customers, so as to avoid
and/or minimize the negative impact of such risks.

Furthermore, the Group is affected by market risks (such as
currency and interest rate fluctuations), credit risks and liquidity
risks during its ordinary course of business. Details of the
financial risks management of the Group is set out in note 26
of the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 84.

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of
HK1.45 cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK1 cent per share) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
4 June 2021. Subject to the approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"), the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Friday, 18 June 2021.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 2 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 June 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year under review in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Mr. Wang Chunsheng

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming

Mr. Yu Daochun (resigned on 10 June 2020)
Mr. Liu Jianzhe (appointed on 10 June 2020)
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Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew
Mr. Cui Zheng
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo
(resigned on 23 September 2020)
Mr. Zhang Guo Qi
(appointed on 21 December 2020)

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third, shall retire from office, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election.
Accordingly, Mr. Jia Junan, Ms. Zhang Xiaoming and Mr. Hung
Chi Yuen Andrew shall retire at the AGM in accordance with
the Articles of Association. Mr. Jia Junan, Ms. Zhang Xiaoming
and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Company's Articles of Association,
the Board shall have power from time to time, and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Mr. Liu Jianzhe, a non-executive Director appointed
by the Board on 10 June 2020, and Mr. Zhang Guo Qi, an
independent non-executive Director appointed by the Board
on 21 December 2020, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reelection at the AGM.

Mr. Yu Daochun resigned as a non-executive Director due to
change of work position on 10 June 2020. Mr. Yang Zhaoguo
resigned as an independent non-executive Director due to other
business engagements on 23 September 2020. During the year
under review, no Director resigned from his office or refused to
stand for re-election to his office due to reasons relating to the
affairs of the Company.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
thereafter will continue until being terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed by the Company
under a letter of appointment for a term of three years which
is terminable by not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives’
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company were as follows:

BERNTEFCHARTITURBEH /=
FOHB ANREBEEED—FRAHSE
EALR=ZERAEEENRIEGHR/ LT
BFATEEFRBUIFATES RELERQ
BIUZERGZE FR=F > LA HTAE
W—rmAs—HELEALVR=ZEREEBEN
fEH#& L

PR EXFRBEEI  BIEEFREA AT HEKM
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REEE CAERERIN RIEZRB G

EERFETHAEMESFFHNEGS
WARMEE100

f 75

MEBARES
RBEE_Z_FTF+_A=+—HILFE &

S Bﬁ!%’&ﬂz%%EEM"FA:ttHE :

Name of Subsidiaries

Name of Directors

MEBAT%TE EEHA
AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. Xiong Zheng Feng (executive Director)
TR (BR) ETBEEERAA BEIFIg (H7TEE)

AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited
ZRANEBFRE EMN) BRAE

Anrick Electronics India Private Limited
Anrick Electronics India Private Limited

Anbo New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
ZBHERERAERRS

Xiong Zheng Feng (executive Director)

BRIEIE B7TEF)

Xie Sheng, Xie Jianjun
His - HEE

Tian Yaguang (Chairman), Wang Xuanrui, Chen Xiang
HEEY (F/EF) ~EBE B

“EERFER
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

(@) The Company

(i) Interest in shares of the Company

EENKRO - HEERMREEEZE

m Rk

BRIXFREEIIN R _BE_ZF+"AH
=+ —R REFERFATRBTHRAERRK
EEREZHBARETRBDHEBEEE (E&
REBEHBSNE(RBERAGHA) (T8
SFRAERG) SXVED) Z M~ EERMD W
BRET UEEBARELEAALALL
BIRIREE 5 R AR B R B 553521% (R 17 < B sC
W AR E EHARR M & PAE L ETA
ERETRSFRF2RETR (MRETR) R
ENEARAB B2 BmEUKA

(a) F2F

(i) HREREREGZEZ

Class and Approximate

number of percentage of total

securities in number of issued

Name of which interested shares in the

Name of Director the Company in (other than under Long/Short Company as at

or Chief Executive which interest is held equity derivatives)  Capacity position 31 December 2020

RZEZEF

RiAEZZ +-A=+-H

EHFENRYE BERAF2H

REREEREZ (i BEITRONEBZ

EEERTHARHSE AELHE TAKSN 5 e/ %E BAERL

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  the Company 9,400,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.61
ordinary shares

REEBRE P Y/NE] 9,400,000% EZEAA #e 0.61
EER

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 7,975,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.52
ordinary shares

RERAE ARE 7,975,000% Bm#EAA e 0.52

BBk
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(ii) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company (i) ZEREERIR G Z
Class and Approximate
number of percentage of total
underlying number of issued
Name of shares in shares in the
Name of Director the Company in which interest Long/Short Company as at
or Chief Executive which interest is held is held  Capacity position 31 December 2020
(Note)
RZIZEZZH
+-ZB=+—-H
WA
REPFERTEZ FaEERRG BEITRH
EZYRBTHASHS AALHE EmZERREE & BE/KE ZEAERLT
(hizt)
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  the Company 1,320,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.09
ordinary shares
RREBEE EN/NE 1,320,0000 EBmEBA HE 0.09
LR
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 1,170,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.08
ordinary share
KEREE /NG 1,170,000 BEEBA #e 0.08
EER
Note: o=
On 27 March 2019, 1,320,000 restricted stock and 1,170,000 RIZE—AF=ZAZ+tH RIEBRLERE
restricted stock have been granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr. EREERBAATARZZ—NEFE+ZB+=
Chai Zhi Qiang respectively at the grant price of HK$0.77 per share in BEMZREMEREZEE BETFERS
accordance with the restricted stock incentive scheme adopted by the B%0.7778 7 3 BIEHR1,320,000/% PR I 1 AR 2
Company on 13 December 2018. There is no change in the number 1,170,000 REIERE - B _F—NF=A
of restricted stock granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr. Chai Zhi _+tHEEHERRE BFEEREERES
Qiang since the date of grant on 27 March 2019. RAEERRBIEREHEHEES
(b) The associated corporation (b) #BEEE
As of 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the BE_ZZF+_RB=+—H EBEF
the Directors, none of the Directors nor chief executive of FIRfl EAABDESFHESTEHAE
the Company had or was deemed to have any interests RAABFEAEEEZE (E&RHH K
or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares B R GISEXVER) 2 B {5 S8 RE AR 15 S B
or debentures of any associated corporations of the ERREAENGAIEEAE T ARERRE SR
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that E%FIE352E 2 RE B F LR RIRE
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of FREEBRAFIEXV BHE7RD B R EE
the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the PR BRI ® AR Bl K B AT P 2 M8 7 0%
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV =

of the SFO and the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year under review or at the
end of the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year
under review.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the RIZE_ZEHF+_HA=+—H BEELAATESE
Directors and chief executive of the Company, shareholders MESTEASFZEN > RAA T IRH AERE
(other than Directors) who had any interests or short positions  IR1pFEEIRIEE H MBS R G SEXVEBFE2 5
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which 39ZWZEXBEAXATDRE 2 EFA KA
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions Sy EZ o EHEES &R I EEMIBER T
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly RAEAEBEEMREATREAT EREZE
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of all issued shares to  EF/TRRMNAEEI0% U L HRFZRE (BE
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any members  BR4MN &AW T :

of the Group are set out as below:

Approximate

Class and percentage of total
number of securities number of issued
in which interested shares in the
(other than under Long/short Company as at
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity equity derivatives) position 31 December 2020
(Note 5)
RZE_E%F
+ZA=+-H
EERAFZH
ERZESENRYUE BETRHBEZ
TERRDHE &1 (BRATTETRR #e/H%E SRl
(Hets)
Alpha Luck (Note 1) Beneficial owner 553,900,000 ordinary shares Long 36.01
ZRBE (Hi1) vt ZoN 553,900,0008 & & #e 36.01
China North Industries Corporation ("CNIC")  Interest in controlled corporation 553,900,000 ordinary shares Long 36.01
(Notes 1 and 2)
HREEAIEBRAR (EAIX) N2 VNSIPA: 5 553,900,0000 & B % H#e 36.01
(iat1%2)
China North Industries Group Corporation Interest in controlled corporation 553,900,000 ordinary shares Long 36.01
("CNIGC") (Note 2)
FEABTXEEERAT RREHAT 2T 553,900,0008% & &% e 36.01
("PERBTE) W2)
China South Industries Group Corporation Interest in controlled corporation 553,900,000 ordinary shares Long 36.01
("CSIGC") (Note 2)
HELBREHEEEERAT RRENAT 2R 553,900,0008% Z &% #e 36.01
(ThERB4%E)) (Hz22)
Goertek (HongKong) Co., Limited Beneficial owner 363,650,000 ordinary shares Long 23.64
("HK Goertek") (Note 3)
EAYMRRARAT BHABA 363,650,000 & B % H#e 23.64
(rEBERAEER) (W223)
Weifang Goertek Trading Co., Limited Interest in controlled corporation 363,650,000 ordinary shares Long 23.64
("Weifang Goertek") (Note 3)
BB EEFERAT EHHE) UNCEE VNP e 363,650,008 & & #e 23.64
(Hr33)
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Class and
number of securities
in which interested

Approximate
percentage of total
number of issued
shares in the

(other than under Long/short Company as at
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity equity derivatives) position 31 December 2020
(Note 5)
RZIZZEE
+ZA=+-H
HERAF2H
BEREZEFENRYE BETRNBEZ
TERRAHE 513 (RAFTETRRS #E/ % HAERL
(rz5)
GoerTek (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 363,650,000 ordinary shares Long 23.64
DA (Hat3) RREFRE 2T 363,650,0000 & B % #e 23.64
Jiang Bin (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporation 363,650,000 ordinary shares Long 23.64
3% (24) RREH AT 2 363,650,0000 & B % #e 23.64
Hu Shuangmei (Note 4) Interest of spouse 363,650,000 ordinary shares Long 23.64
e X (Hi4) el 363,650,0000 @1 #e 23.64
Anjie Technology (Hong Kong) Company Beneficial owner 200,000,000 ordinary shares Long 13.00
Limited ("HK Anjie")
(Note 5)
ZRRE (BA) BRAF (2258) BEEAA 200,000,0008% & @1 #e 13.00
(Hrz5)
Anjie Technology (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporation 200,000,000 ordinary shares Long 13.00
TRRR (H7325) RREFRE 2T 200,000,008 & &% #e 13.00
Wang Chunsheng (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 200,000,000 ordinary shares Long 13.00
TELE (Wie) RREH AT 2 200,000,008 & &% #e 13.00
Lu Li (Note 6) Interest of spouse 200,000,000 ordinary shares Long 13.00
2# (Hzte) fBER 200,000,000% & A% #e 13.00
Notes: k=2

1. As Alpha Luck is wholly and beneficially owned by CNIC, CNIC is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares of the Company held by Alpha
Luck under Part XV of the SFO.

2. As the equity interest of CNIC was owned as to 56.7% by CNIGC and as to
37.54% by CSIGC, both of CNIGC and CSIGC are deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares of the Company held by CNIC under Part XV
of the SFO.

3. As HK Goertek is wholly and beneficially owned by Weifang Goertek, which
in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by GoerTek, both Weifang Goertek
and GoerTek are deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of
the Company held by HK Goertek under Part XV of the SFO.
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4. As at 31 December 2020, GoerTek is owned as to 17.82% by GoerTek
Group Co., Ltd., which in turn is owned as to 92.59% by Mr. Jiang Bin.
Mr. Jiang Bin also owned 11.40% of the issued shares in GoerTek. Ms. Hu
Shuangmei, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Bin, owned 0.66% of the issued shares
in GoerTek. Each of Mr. Jiang Bin and Ms. Hu Shuangmei is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares of the Company in which GoerTek
is interested under Part XV of the SFO.

5. As HK Anjie is wholly and beneficially owned by Anjie Technology, Anjie
Technology is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the
Company held by HK Anjie under Part XV of the SFO.

6. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Wang Chunsheng owned 23.16% of the
issued shares in Anjie Technology. Ms. Lu Li, the spouse of Mr. Wang
Chunsheng, owned 32.17% of the issued shares in Anjie Technology.
Each of Mr. Wang Chunsheng and Ms. Lu Li is deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares of the Company in which Anjie Technology is
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

7. None of Alpha Luck, CNIC, CNIGC, CSIGC, HK Goertek, Weifang Goertek,
GoerTek, Mr. Jiang Bin, Ms. Hu Shuangmei, HK Anjie, Anjie Technology,
Mr. Wang Chunsheng or Ms. Lu Li was interested in any securities of the
Company under equity derivatives.

SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a shareholder of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year under review or at any time during the year

under review.
ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

4. RIZZEFA+ZA=+—HB HTERMVERBE
EBRARER17.82% MABEEEFRABIHZE
BREERI2.59% ERBAETRRBERDTER
11.40% B E1TIMD - AL E 2 - (FRILEMERB) 1
AR FHEB0.66%EHITRMG - RIFEFH LIPS
EBIEXVE > 2B ERPAEEZL T DA ER
MROESEEZFA—MEATRDFIEEER -

5. HRZZEEHZRVRZEBEDER BESEHK
HERGIEXVE LERERARALZETBRFEZ
B—#HARB RO DS # -

6. MNIZZZF+-_R=+—H > ERELENZTEH
RPHEA23.16%EETRA - 2F L (EFLEERE
W) RERBKREF32.17%EEITRMG - R
BERPERGEXVE EEELERBF L LD
WESALZNEBEEREZE—HERB RO TP
R

7. ZABELAFTXE PEESIFE PEISERE
EERBRBRBHRE  RERMG - 2ELE - PE
EREL ZREB - ZERR EEEREARFL
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et -
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RESERVE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to shareholders comprised the retained profit of
approximately HK$45,225,000.

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 88 and note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all of its

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results,
comparable market statistics.

individual performance and

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 13 December 2018, the Group proposed to adopt the
restricted stock incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to further
improve corporate governance of the Group, retain and
motivate the Scheme participants to make contributions to
the long-term growth and profits of the Group with a view to
achieving the objectives of increasing the value of the Group
and to promote a greater alignment of interests between the
scheme participants and the shareholders. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board shall select the scheme participants and
determine the number of restricted stock to be granted. The
Company has appointed a trustee to purchase the shares from
the secondary market. At the extraordinary general meeting
held on 31 January 2019, the Scheme was duly approved by
the independent shareholders. On 14 February 2019 and 27
March 2019, the Board approved the initial grant of restricted
stock under the Scheme, pursuant to which 27,500,000
shares of restricted stock were granted to 81 selected scheme
participants on 14 February 2019 at the grant price of HK$0.65
per share and 2,490,000 shares of restricted stock were
granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (executive director) and Mr.
Chai Zhi Qiang (chief executive officer) on 27 March 2019 at
the grant price of HK$0.77 per share. As of 31 December 2020,
the trustee had purchased 7,300,000 shares in aggregate from
the secondary market. As of 31 December 2019, none of the

restricted stock granted had been unlocked.

PRHIMIREHEGT=

A ZE-N\F+ZA+T=H AEEEZREN
FRAEIME I =M EN s 8 (T5H8) » LUE— P X
EREBZABDER BB RHEESEI2HE
EAAERZERERREFIERER X
FEIRAALAEBREENERZE REFE2HA
FERR BN EEER —R R 2
EFEEREEFHZ2HEE UTRERETHR
FIERERE A NBIBEERAEZTLAEZLS
BEERG ZREFEERZ—AE—A8
=+ —HETZRERINASG LEBIKE
FX#E-RE—AF_BE+HNERZZ
—hFZAZ+tH EETFEMEREEE
SEIERREFRAMRZE > 27,500,0008% R &
HEREZEENR _E—NE_B+EARERRK
HO.65BTTZ IR TFEREFIRETTE 2N
& 2,490,000 REIMREEN ZZ—HLF
ZA -+t HEERKRM0.7T7IBTZR FERK
BYPNTESRLEBLERTHREHESS
TE-HIEZETF+ZHB=+—H" %t
ABRZHRTHEARKRMDIEE7,300,0008
BIFT—Z—AF+ZA=1+—H #BESEH
BIBR B AR EE AR o

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR




Directors’ Report
EFEWRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 57% of the Group’s turnover
and the turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 7% of the Group’s purchases.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates nor any shareholder (who or which
to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company) has any interest in the
top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group during
the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2020.

COMPETING INTERESTS
None of the Directors or their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business

which causes or may cause significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13 January 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek”, for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a renewed purchase
agreement (the “Renewed Purchase Agreement”) in relation
to the transactions for selling of parts, components and other
products (including but not limited to FPC products) for a
term commenced from 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31
December 2022. The Renewed Purchase Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, as well as the annual
caps for each of the years ending 31 December 2020, 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2022 were approved by
the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 February 2020. Details of
the terms of the Renewed Purchase Agreement, the continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020 and
the circular dated 4 February 2020. The annual cap set for
the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB200,000,000. During the year under
review, the Group sold circuit board products of approximately
RMB85,507,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$96,173,000)
to GoerTek and its subsidiaries, representing an increase
of approximately 2.54% as compared with the year ended
31 December 2019 (2019: approximately RMB83,389,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$94,793,000)).
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On 31 December 2019, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and Suzhou Anjie Technology Co. Ltd. (&
NZZ2RE D BRAT) ("Anjie Technology”) (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
materials sale and purchase agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) for a term commenced from 31 December
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020, and the annual
cap of the continuing connected transaction for the year
2020 was set at RMB60,000,000. Details of the terms of the
Framework Agreement, the continuing connected transaction
and the annual cap for the year 2020 were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2019,
15 January 2020 and 31 December 2020. During the year
under review, the Group sold FPC products of approximately
RMB2,166,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,436,000) to
Anjie Technology, representing a decrease of 62.4% as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2019 (2019: approximately
RMB5,762,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,550,000)).
As the term of the Framework Agreement expired on 31
December 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
Subsidiaries) and Anjie Technology (for itself and on behalf of its
Subsidiaries) entered into the Renewed Framework Agreement
(the "Renewed Framework Agreement”) to renew the
Framework Agreement, the term of which was from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021. Details of the terms of the Renewed
Framework Agreement, the continuing connected transaction
and the annual cap for the year 2021 were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2020.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive
Directors) had reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and had confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company has
received report from the independent auditor containing their
finding and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’'s report has been

provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
“related

Details
of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are disclosed in note
33 to the financial statements. The Company has complied

into certain transactions with parties regarded as

parties” under the applicable accounting standards.

with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report,
the other related party transactions disclosed in note 33
were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt
from reporting, announcement and shareholder approval

requirements under the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The articles of association of the Company provides that every
Director, manager, secretary or officer as well as every auditor
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not entered
into permitted indemnity provisions with the Directors. During
the year under review, the Company has taken out and
maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the restricted stock incentive scheme disclosed on
page 69 of this report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group or existed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donations of
HK$10,000 or above during the year under review (2019: Nil).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

AKM Industrial Company Limited
Xiong Zheng Feng

CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

feikPia
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TO THE MEMBERS OF AKM INDUSTRIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 84 to 215, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Allowances for inventories

BB FE (B

FEEHE

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and 2 BiGSHBHREAMFILEI119BH G5t

the accounting policies on page 119.

The key audit matter
MBS EE

EUER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEA TFNAEEEMEE

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of the
inventories as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$206,880,000, net of allowances
for inventories of approximately HK$21,125,000.
UG EMBRE2WFI1VIAFEE R
ZE+_A=+—H EEEZFERHEE
##9206,880,0008 7w (MR ESAEFERBELN
21,125,000 7T) °

Management of the Group reviewed the aged
analysis of the inventories at the end of the
reporting period to determine whether any
provision is required to write off or write down
inventories to their net realisable values, based on
the latest selling prices and current marketable
conditions.
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We identified the allowances for inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
degree of management judgment and estimation
uncertainty to determine the amount of allowances
based on net realisable values.
ARIRBAEEFEEEZRESEIRERE
ENEEEHERIETREN  REEMEES
BEISEABRESFE

Our procedures in relation to the allowances for inventories
included:

FMEFERFEEENEFE !

e Understanding the management’s assessment in
estimating the net realisable values of the inventories
and the Group's policy adopted for making allowances
to write off or write down inventories to their net
realisable values.
EREEERNGHFEEIERBFERNTIGR &5
[ 5T 52 4 8 LU 85 S HUR 7 & 2 P B4 3R R (B P EREX
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e Testing the appropriateness of the aged analysis of
inventories on a sample basis by checking the ageing
date to date of purchase or manufacture.
BEMmEL I REREOPREBENEER LY
PRI ERRE DT @Mt -

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the inventories
by comparing the unit cost of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the latest invoice prices of sale.
BEMEIR BEENRIABEBHEBAMNAL
B MhEREEHFESRFENMGNSEL -

e  Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance
made by the Group by comparing the allowance made
in prior year to actual amount of inventories written
off in the current year.
REFFHNBEERFEEMMEFEENERMEL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d) FIREEsTE1E (&)

EERATESARMEZENKE (RATFER
AHMEERE) WEZTRZATE

Fair value on equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

FLRGAMBREANFEIRFI122EM G5
HER e

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on page 122.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEA TFNAEEERMEE

The key audit matter
RAREtHE

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2020,
the aggregate carrying amounts of the equity
instruments designated at FVTOCI is approximate
HK$371,435,000.

Our procedures in relation to the fair value measurement of
equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
BPEEERATFEFAHMEARENEGETAZ AT
EstERFNERFELE
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Management of the Group has performed fair
value assessment of equity instruments designated
at FVTOCI at the end of the reporting period.
Significant management’s judgments and
estimates, including justification of control of
the invested company, techniques and the use of
unobservable market data, have been used in the
fair value valuation.
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We have identified the fair value measurement
of equity instruments designated at FVTOCI as
a key audit matter because of its significance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and the involvement of a significant degree of
judgments and estimates.
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Reviewing the fair value performed by the
management of the Group, including the review of
the valuation techniques and the underlying data and
assumptions used in fair value measurement with
reference to the available market data and/or other
external available information.
K2EOBHHBEBR HEMINETFSER B
H EEREEREEBETNRATENE SFERGLE
R LA B A B 5t & H 50 AR AU AE R B e R & ©

Discussing with the management of the Group for the
appropriateness of valuation techniques adopted and
reviewing fair value calculations.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 I % AT RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 I % AT RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 I % AT RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Li Man Choi.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Man Choi

Practicing Certificate Number: P03333

Hong Kong
23 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mAEEnkEMEERRTD X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

2020 2019
ZETEF —Z—hE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
VioEz3 FET FET
Revenue PN 5 1,676,423 1,463,630
Cost of sales HE A (1,429,284) (1,254,943)
Gross profit EH 247,139 208,687
Other income HgA 6 48,909 41,171
Distribution costs SaNi=1DN (27,795) (20,952)
Administrative expenses TESZH (45,697) (40,017)
Research and development expenses fiff &% & (83,153) (57,352)
Share of results of associates = WNCIES 2,645 1,202
Finance costs BB R4 7 (10,234) (2,091)
Profit before taxation PRI A& 8 131,814 130,648
Taxation MIE 9 (12,404) (12,937)
Profit for the year KEEmH 119,410 117,711
Other comprehensive income Hthzmam ) -
(expense):
Items that may be reclassified HE B
subsequently to profit or loss: FEmzIEL
Exchange differences arising MEBINEBELE Y
on translation of financial bE 2 A= %R
statements of foreign operations 85,759 (26,238)
Share of exchange differences of FEL B E N Bl 2 [E R EEE
associates 2,495 (106)
88,254 (26,344)
Item that will not be reclassified RERTEEMIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmzHEE
Fair value gain on equity BATESFAHMEE
instruments designated at Wz #m TR
fair value through other NEEWRER
comprehensive income 21,912 8,253
Total other comprehensive income — EfZmUaE (B8) 48%8
(expense) 110,166 (18,091)
Total comprehensive income KEEZENRERE
for the year 229,576 99,620

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= A3

mEoEmkEMEENR=E T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

2020 2019
323 “ZE-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FHET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: W T A LE(EAREEZHF
Owners of the Company KABHEB A 119,351 117,711
Non-controlling interests JEIER 59 -
119,410 117,711
Total comprehensive income for UTFALTREEERFE
the year attributable to: D EUWEHAEEE
Owners of the Company ENNSIEZ =N 229,141 99,620
Non-controlling interests TR 435 -
229,576 99,620
Earnings per share FREF 12
Basic and diluted (HK cents) —E AR EE (B HK7.79 cents#1ll HK7.66 centsiE ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EeMBERRE

At 31 December 2020 H_ZE _FF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECTHF —Z2—NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREE 13 898,327 798,687
Right-of-use assets CREEE 14 51,286 49,064
Interests in associates REE AT 2 15 41,555 36,415
Equity instruments designated BATESAEME®R
at fair value through other Wiz #m TH
comprehensive income 16 371,435 25,808
Deposits for property, ME-BEREZEZIES
plant and equipment 13 26,855 12,952
1,389,458 922,926
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =5 17 206,880 124,848
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E Mg TRIE 18 722,335 679,221
Amounts due from associates FEWHE B 2RIE 15 4,309 -
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRRITER 19 2,368 2,364
Bank balances and cash IRITHERKAIRE 20 129,853 119,707
1,065,745 926,140
Current liabilities mEIEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBENRIE 21 682,033 467,545
Amounts due to associates FETHE N B 278 15 - 4,617
Deferred income IRIE WA 22 15,355 3,968
Tax payables FETIRIE 15,490 13,118
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 144,236 39,358
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 1,869 1,112
858,983 529,718
Net current assets FREMEE 206,762 396,422
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRESEE 1,596,220 1,319,348

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EeMBERRE

At 31 December 2020 H*_ZE _FF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
ZEZEHE —Z—hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Viok:3 FAT TET
Capital and reserves B A e
Share capital f& s 24 921,553 921,553
Reserves Ei] 556,745 345,597
Equity attributable to owners of AT BB ANELER
the Company 1,478,298 1,267,150
Non-controlling interests JEER T 36 12,491 -
Total Equity 4B 1,490,789 1,267,150
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HESE 14 3,349 3,481
Deferred income IRFEUT A 22 49,295 37,262
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 25 13,808 11,455
Bank borrowings IRITER 23 38,979 -
105,431 52,198
1,596,220 1,319,348

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 215 were BE@R _Z_—F=F_+=ZA#fLETE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on T E84E215B VR EMHIwRE WA T

23 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: FIEENREE !
XIONG ZHENG FENG HUNG CHI YUEN ANDREW
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BRIEIZ HEE
o EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mAEEDEHERE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATEE AR
Fair value
through other Restricted
Statutory  comprehensive  stock incentive
surplus income scheme
Share reserve ("FvTOCI") reserve Translation Retained
capital  (note (a) below) reserve  (note (b) below) reserve profits Total
E’A?fﬁ A

AM2E
ERRE W (Y Wﬁ BHERE

HE SARMEE  ABSHER ‘
BE (FithiEE) W) @ (Fahim) HELE RERF| gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER FER TER TER TER TR
At 1 January 2019 RIE-n5-A-H 921,553 33,959 1,021 - (21,474) 252,958 1,188,017
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - n7,711 117,711
Exchange differences arising on translation 5 E/NERH KRR
of financial statements of foreign EXZERER
operations - - - - (26,238) - (26,238)
Fair value gain on equity instruments ETARATEIAEMZE
designated at fair value through Bz BRTIAZ
other comprehensive income ATEW R - - 8,253 - - - 8,253
Share of exchange differences of associates HMABE AT ERZE - - - - (106) - (106)
Total comprehensive income (expense) — AEEZENE (Fx) B
for the year - - 8,253 - (26,344) 17,71 99,620
Purchase of shares under the restricted 1R IR 311 R Z FE) 5+ 2
stock incentive scheme (note 32) BER ﬁ (Wi£32) - - - (5,105) - - (5,105)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BRTLERINGR - 11,273 - - - (11,273) -
Dividends paid (note 71) ERRE W11) - - - - - (15,382) (15,382)
At 31 December 2019 RIF-AE+IA=+-A 921,553 45232 9,274 (5,105) (47818 34014 1267150

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘7|'\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E#ZE _—F _F#F+ _H=+—HIFFZE

EETmEHRE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRR AES
Fair value
through other Restricted
Statutory comprehensive  stock incentive Non-
surplus income scheme controlling
Share reserve (“FVTOCI) reserve  Translation Retained interests
capital  (note (3) below) reserve  (note (b) below) reserve profits Sub-total (Note 36) Total
BATEHA
Ath2E
ERBER lﬂlm(rﬁ’z}-l'-{ﬁ RHERR
B AARMRE  HBREEE R
s (FitlEe)  bE)BE  (FaE) hEkE REEH it i an
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TiEn TR TER TiEn TR TR TER
At 1 January 2020 KZE-%%5-F-H 921,553 45,232 9,274 (5,105) (47,818) 344,014 1,267,150 - 1,267,150
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - - 119,351 119,351 59 119,410
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ RE S ERHH R
financial statements of foreign operat EFZERER - - - - 85,383 - 85,383 376 85,759
Fair value gain on equity instruments EEARLTEIAZMZE
designated at fair value through W BETAZ
other comprehensive income ATENE - - 21912 - - - 1912 - 1912
Share of exchange differences of associates HMEBENAEREE - - - - 2,495 - 2,495 - 2,495
Total comprehensive income for the year rEERENEEE - - 2912 - 87,878 119,351 29,141 435 229,576
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 2B+ E - - - - - - - 12,056 12,056
Purchase of shares under the restricted stk RERHIERE B EBE
incentive scheme (note 32) &t (32) - - - (2611) - - (2611) - (2611)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BRTLTRIGE - 14,128 - - - (14,128) - - -
Dividends paid (note 77) BRIRE W) - - - - - (15,382) (15,382) - (15,382)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEFZAZT-H 921,553 59,360 31,186 (7.716) 40,060 433,855 1,478,298 12491 1,490,789
Notes: gz
(a)  Statutory surplus reserve represented the People’s Republic of China (the (a) AERBREBEETEAREMNE (THE) AEEE-

“PRC") statutory reserves. Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company (as defined
in note 1), the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer not less than 10%
of their post-tax profit to statutory reserves (i.e. statutory surplus reserve)
as reserve funds until the aggregated amounts have reached 50% of their
registered capital. These reserves should only be used to make up losses, or
conversion into capital, or expansion of production and operation according
to the relevant rules in the PRC.

As explained in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, during
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company acquired 2,820,000
(2019: 4,480,000) ordinary shares of the Company from the open market
by the independent trustee of the Company with a total consideration
of approximately HK$2,611,000 (2019: HK$5,105,000) in respect of the
restricted stock incentive scheme of the Company. The carrying amount of
the shares held as at the year-end was presented as a deduction against
equity “Restricted stock incentive scheme reserve” to the consolidated

financial statements.

RBREBRZERKAERE (EXRMEE1) PEMNE
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+ZB=+—BIFE > ARQT R MR 8 5t
BEANBEZEUZTEARARETIZEE2,820,000
BRI (D (ZZE— L4 | 4,480,0008%) > BARELY
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

2020 2019
—ECIEE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXH
Profit before taxation FR AR Al e A 131,814 130,648
Adjustments for: MEHEIEFLRE
Share of results of associates [E(hBE A B 24 (2,645) (1,202)
Finance costs FE K 10,234 2,001
Interest income FEWA (1,563) (2,834)
Provision for allowances for EEFIEEE
credit losses 2,045 402
Allowance for inventories GFEEE 8,413 99
Depreciation of property, ME--BERZEZITE
plant and equipment 145,922 114,234
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZITE 3,684 3,119
Foreign exchange differences on EERARBGTHR
inter-company balances PE 2 = %8 - (9,406)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME- -BERSEZEZEBE
plant and equipment 1,931 2,272
Deferred income recognised B Z IR WA (26,803) (25,112)
Operating cash flows before EEESEHRILE
movements in working capital BeR= 273,032 214,311
Increase in inventories FEEM (79,275) (9,202)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 REME W FRIEE N (7,594) (160,963)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H A E S ZIEE 0 183,649 54,138
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 369,812 98,284
Income Taxes paid BRPTEHR (9,392) (3,373)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEBRSREFE
ACTIVITIES 360,420 94,911
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEME -KRERZH
equipment (238,902) (146,282)
Acquisition of investment in an associate BN —BHEABNKRE - (31,491)
Interest received BUWHE 1,563 2,834
Advances to associates Bl =PN=TE-E N (8,725) -
Purchase of the equity instrument BEHIEEA
designated at fair value through REEFAEMEE S
other comprehensive income P = (303,678) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BEKRRXEFSRIE
plant and equipment 24,152 1,528
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BREXEBRERSFE
ACTIVITIES (525,590) (173,411)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SeHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEER
New bank borrowings raised IR TEE 183,215 45,680
Payment of shares under the restricted 1R 35 BR 5114 A% 223 B
stock incentive scheme s8I TR 1D (2,611) (5,105)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE (1,720) (873)
Government grants received B U BT 22 Bl 47,309 42,748
Decrease in amount due to a shareholder fE{f—%& R& Ee =R IE R L - (17,120)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (45,654) (5,602)
Interest paid 2FE (10,234) (2,091)
Dividends paid ZARE (15,382) (15,382)
Capital contribution from FERRKREEE
non-controlling interests 12,056 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEXEKFASREFE
ACTIVITIES 166,979 42,255
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERREEEHIER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 Geb) $%8 1,809 (36,245)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERREEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 119,707 152,865
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMEEREH I E
RATE CHANGES 8,337 3,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREERRESEERE
AT END OF THE YEAR, BRITH R RIRE
REPRESENTING BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 129,853 119,707
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG MW R M

Y2 8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

GENERAL

AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 9 December 1993.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM “GEM’
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) with effect from 18 August 2004. On 18 June
2014, the Company transferred the listing of its shares
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
registered office of the Company is situated at Rooms
2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and the
principal place of business of the Company is situated at
63 Huan Shi Road South,
Nansha District, Guangzhou City, the People’'s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

Information Technology Park,

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment
and trading of flexible printed circuits ("FPC") and related
products. Its subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) are principally engaged in manufacture and
sales of FPC and flexible packaging substrates, sourcing
and sales of electronic components and other components
and products during the year.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEEmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA™) for the first time, which are mandatorily

2.

RIS RAES] AR BT RMBRS
2R (TEREMBHREEN)

RAFE  AEERERES Y HREE
CERERAETESMAE ((HBEE
FAE)) FREEMZEEBIIEBMBRE
#R| (TEBHBREER) BISEREL
RUTEETEBMBREER  HTH5
“ETEFE-RB-—HAENZERBZAE

effective for the Group's financial year beginning on E B E R AR -
or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to Definition of a Business EAMBREEN  EBNER
HKFRS 3 EELivA |
Amendments to Definition of Material FREGENBEIR EAUNER
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 REBGER
HE8R BT
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BREUBRGEN REEEYE
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 FOR BHEE
and HKFRS 7 ERE39H K
EARUBREEA
FIR2 B

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRSs and the amendments to the HKFRSs in the
current year had no material effect on the Group’'s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

PRSP E SN RAFERBEETE
BYBRTENMIERREL KR LHRE
BUYBREZENZETHEERRAF
ERBEFENHHRERRRR
ZERAMBRRNONRBELBEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Y2 8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

ARG RS R R MY R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole. The application of these
amendments in the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments®

Amendments to Reference to Conceptual

HKFRS 3
Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Cont’d)
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause®
Amendments to Property, plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use?
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Phase 2'
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
Amendment to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 cycle?
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BT RIBIIAESBMBRE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material of such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

5 M B E2HM S > A FESBIRE
ATEFENBABBEIREEERA
FESENGABEBEHHBESENED
BERE— STUBE =R FHEUT:

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active o FE—MMWAHBEBABTRESENINE
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity EHFENEE2ERNEENER
can access at the measurement date; POUERTHBHRE CGRAE) ;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices e FEIMWMABEBEATOESE —HRE

BRNEENEBENTEENBEER

ZHNEABE ; &

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e FEZRBABBABENAGENT
liability. REES PN E R

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FEEFBEHN T

Basis of consolidation REEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate REMBERREEBEARBDURERBT R

the financial statements of the Company and entities HB R elBEGlzBR 2 HEHRk-

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and (iii)

ERIREAER ()THERREHRTE
BN (NVEARERNZASERKERRT]
Bolw 2 B KRS ; Kii) T E A R%R

ERNRRNIFEAEENLREE-

the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the Group's returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and cease when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if the results in the non-controlling interests
have a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

REEE (@)

HEEBRERER LARKRAEFR—IA
U EHREE AAEEEHFGHHRE
DHERENRTFHEER®E

Bt B A B Jh B A S B BV MY B A B HE 1)
BEFREAR URAEBREZMBR
BB AR IE AR

MEARZ WA KX HAAERRGE
flIEEAEERAEETCBEEFZNER
BlzHLESAGEEGREMEE KT
*o

MEARED REMEE KRG XA EE
ERBOBBRAARERS ANRIFER
BE-MEBARZE2EWDEERBRE
NEEAEANNRFFERER BIfEILEEN
FER IR ML IR BB RS ER) o

MHRE REHNELADMBREIFLE
B UEHEBMRAAERZ G5 HR

Bf—%-

FEEREZBRZZMEERRNRT
BEEHEEE B WA -FAXKRRSE
MEBERGE R

RBABZIFEREGZRAAERNE
hHEmOREY) ERREE 2B R
MY RHAEANENRBERRLESN D158
HNBARNEEFE

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG MW R M

Y2 8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Investments in associates (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEE:IE (&)

Investments in associates (Cont’d)

The Group applies HKFRS 9, including the impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate to
which the equity method is not applied and which form
part of the net investment in the investee. In applying
HKFRS 9 to long-term interests, the Group does not
take into account adjustments to their carrying amount
required by HKAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying
amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation
of losses of the investee or assessment of impairment in
accordance with HKAS 28).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is
an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified goods or service provided by another party
before that goods or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from sales of flexible printed circuits,
flexible packaging substrates and electronic
components

The revenue is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Transportation and other related activities that occur
before the customers obtain control of the related goods
are considered as fulfillment activities. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when selling the goods and bears the risk of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The credit
term is 30 to 120 days from the issuance of invoices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract
or modification date. The Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FTEEHIE (&

Leasing (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office properties and staff quarters
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Leasing (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

Except for the short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use).

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, such estimation is
recognised and measured under HKAS 37 “Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Leasing (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Government grants (Cont’d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rationale
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits contributions

Payments to defined contribution plans, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Restricted shares (“Restricted Shares”) granted to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (Restricted stock incentive scheme reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
restricted stock incentive scheme reserve.

When Restricted Shares was expected to vest, the amount
previously recognised in restricted stock incentive scheme
reserve will be transferred to capital reserve. When the
Restricted Shares are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not achieving vesting conditions at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to capital reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Shares held under the restricted stock incentive
scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held
under the restricted stock incentive scheme) are recognised
at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in equity. The number of shares
held by the trustee under the restricted stock incentive
scheme would be eliminated against the corresponding
amount of share capital issued in the calculation of the
earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the average tax rates that are expected to apply to
the taxable income of the periods in which the temporary
differences are expected to reverse.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. TR (&

Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction in progress as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as "right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production
or administrative purpose are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assests (Cont’d)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 3.

ARG RS R R MY R

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assests (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
as the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 3.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEEHEE (&

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont’d)

(if)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and
collectively for others using a provision matrix based on
past due amounts, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 3.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE M B WmRMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. XEEHEE (&

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events of default that have a detrimental impact

on the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset

is credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. TEEHHKE (&

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. XEEHEE (&

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration on the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e  Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and amounts due to associates are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZF_-ZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financing year.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are based on the expected
lifespan and original cost of those property, plant and
equipment respectively. The useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment could change
significantly as a result of technical obsolescence. When
the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment are different from their estimated useful
lives and residual values due to the change of commercial
and technological environment, such differences will cause
an impact on the depreciation charges.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

N\ @\

Fr_A=F—HIFE

EAGFHET REETABABARER
ZEBRKIR

RERBAEEZ &5 R (U037
o AABEFAMGEMBHRERPKRS
NWEE -BE -WAKBZEEURKE
B FU B ~ (55t R R R o il 5t A RR IR &%
ThERESE &R REMKR DB ERANE
R BRERVERZZMGLHTRE-

ZE e RAERRR G R ER  EST
SEEE REBETHE ARFMEEE
ZHIE R A RES] R BIRE R AR
HAR > BUFEAE 5T HARE Re AR SR HARE ST o

HEt FRBEBARARZ EERIR

UTFARBERRTFEERRRAIRESE
NAHT -V HREEEERAGRKREE
FHERABZARIBRIKHEME
2R E 2R

CEN LY EL P R ST
fisst

BERBMLYE BMERRBZAAFH

RFFEE - EStAFERRFGREED
MUZEME -BERREZASAIAE
RRREBSBE-YPE-BERREBZH

B HA B R B (B B PJ At A B 1l £ 3@ BF
HREREH WYX BERKRHBZE
RO BEARNREERERDERKMIR
BEEMA KRG I BFERRFGE
B ARERREEERRPBIZINES
Fe



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

ARG RS R R MY AR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Details of the Group's property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in note 13.

Allowance for inventories

The management reviews an aged analysis of the
inventories for production of FPC and flexible packaging
substrate at the end of the reporting period, and makes
allowance for slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value based on
the latest selling prices and current marketable conditions.

If the net realisable value of inventories is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
inventories is reduced to its net realisable value.

The carrying amount of inventories for the Group as at
31 December 2020 is approximately HK$206,880,000
(2019: HK$124,848,000), net of accumulated allowance
for inventories of approximately HK$21,125,000
(2019: HK$12,712,000). Allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$8,413,000 has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$99,000).

EARG B R G RRABARR
XEEBRIR (8)

ME -BERREZITAEHRFGEE
flist (4

REBYE . BB NGRS BE N
136

FERHE

EEBNRBEHREREEREEBRR
REFEHEERNFERE DT T H
BRI BBEERREEZFIHEFEERE
EhEE EEERBROPBZERER
RBITH RS TR RFE -

WMEEZERFELAEDLNHERR
B AERZFEZREEMAEZEEATE
RFE

rEBR _E-_TE+_B=+—H2Z
FEREEXN%206,800,0008 T (ZF
—NLEE 1 124,848,000 70) (REINBEST
FEREHE21,1250008 K (Z2—A
112,712,000 7T)) cHEZZ-ZF
+ZBE=+—BHIFECHIAETEESE
#9738,413,0008 7t (Z=— L& 99,000
7ETT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group’s unquoted equity instruments are measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based on
significant unobserved inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgment and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of
these instruments.

The carrying amounts of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income for the Group as at
31 December 2020 are approximately HK$371,435,000
(2019: HK$25,808,000). Details of the assumptions used
are disclosed in note 26.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The management of the Group calculates ECL for the
trade receivables, which are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and collectively for
others. The provision rates applied are estimated using
the historical observed default rates of the debtors taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each of the reporting period, these
historical loss rates are reassessed and updated if required
after considering the forward-looking information that
available to the directors of the Company.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 26.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

ARG RS R R MY AR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of trade receivables for the Group
at 31 December 2020 is approximately HK$694,757,000
(2019: HK$664,927,000), net of allowance for
credit losses of approximately HK$2,321,000 (2019:
HK$520,000). The provision for allowance for credit losses
of approximately HK$2,045,000 has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$402,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manufactures and sells electronic products and
provides agency services to the customers. All revenue
generated by the Group is recognised at a point in
time when control of the goods has transferred to the
customers, being when the goods are shipped to the
specific location (delivery).

Sales-related warranties associated with products
cannot be purchased separately, the Group accounts
for warranties in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless the
warranty provides the customer with a service in addition
to the assurance that the product complies with agreed-
upon specifications.

Revenue is recognised from the Group’s contracts with
customers with fixed price and short-term duration.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time.

EARG B R G RRABARR
XEEBRIR (8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

ARG MW R M

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment information

This segment information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM"), for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on type of goods delivered and services provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group had two business segments namely (i) the circuit
boards and components business — the manufacture and
sales of FPC and flexible packaging substrates and (ii)
other.

Principal activities are as follows:

The manufacture and
sales of FPC and flexible
packaging substrates
(including components)

Circuit boards and -
components business

Other - The sourcing and sales of

electronic components

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating and reportable segments.

5. WMARDEER (&

DEWMAREE

AEEREERARRDIE D ZWA
REEDRUWT o

Segment revenue -

external sales Segment results

DEUA - ERSH & DEEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EIEFE “T-nEFE ZBIZE —Z-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FERT FHET
Circuit boards and components business 28 Bt K 48 {4 % %5 1,651,223 1,448,487 180,314 158,238
Other Hh 25,200 15,143 3,116 2,743
Total At 1,676,423 1,463,630 183,430 160,981
Interest income FEWA 1,563 2,834
Central administration costs RRTBA A (45,590) (32,278)
Finance costs =N (10,234) (2,091)
Share of results of associates DEHE AT XS 2,645 1,202
Profit before taxation BRI AR 131,814 130,648

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR




©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG MW R M

Y2 8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs, interest income, finance costs and share of results
of associates. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors, the Group's CODM, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
operating and reportable segments is disclosed as they
are not reviewed by the CODM nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

The Group did not have any significant inter-segment sales
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDERER (&
(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hith3 B ER
During the year ended 31 December 2020 REE_ZE-_EF+-HA=+—HLHF
E
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: STENHESRFEEINIE

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
BRI R AR £ Hith NEBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Provision for allowances for EEBBREE
credit losses 2,045 - 2,045
Allowance for inventories FEEE 8,413 - 8,413
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREZERE
assets 3,684 - 3,684
Depreciation of property, ME- -BEREEITE
plant and equipment 145,922 - 145,922

Release of government grants  EMPNIRE THEERE
for construction of factory Z TR B,

on existing lands (752) - (752)
Government grants for research Fi2$T8 8 2 BT 285

and development projects (26,051) - (26,051)
Government subsidies B &R (7.167) - (7,167)
Other government grants H M T2 G (54) - (54)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HE#WE -HEK

plant and equipment REZ A 1,931 - 1,931
Research and development MEER

expenses 83,153 - 83,153
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Other segment information (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (Cont’d)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included

in the measure of segment results:

5. WMARDEER (&

Hth oy EBER (@)

E (&)

Circuit boards

RBEE_ZTE_EF+-HA=+—HLHE

EHREBEERREBREHEASBER
StEOBEE 2 A -

and components Segment
business Other total

BRI A £ Hith NEBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FHET
Interest income FEWA (1,563) - (1,563)
Interest expenses MEMZ 10,234 - 10,234
Income tax expense PSR 12,404 - 12,404
Share of results of associates — D{GEEE AT S (2,645) - (2,645)

During the year ended 31 December 2019

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

R&E_FE-NAF+_A=+—HLHF

53

SAEOMERREEZMIE !

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
BRI A ER Hh DEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Provision for allowances for EEBBEERE
credit losses 402 - 402
Allowance for inventories FEREE 99 - 99
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ fFAEEEE
assets 3,119 - 3,119
Depreciation of property, ME--BERREINE
plant and equipment 114,234 - 114,234
Release of government grants MNP AE LM EEHKE
for construction of factory 2B ER
on existing lands (1,796) - (1,796)
Government grants for research Fi2$T8 B 7 BUfF 285
and development projects (23,316) - (23,316)
Government subsidies B &R (4,936) - (4,936)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HE#WE -HEK
plant and equipment B P = 2,272 - 2,272
Research and development MEER
expenses 57,352 - 57,352

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDEER (&
(Cont’d)
HAHmEER &)

Other segment information (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Cont’d) RBEE_E—NEFE+_BA=+—HILF

E (&)

EHREBEERREBREHEASCER
SAEDEIBEZRIA

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment results:

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
B MAMER HAth nEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHETT
Interest income FIEURA (2,834) - (2,834)
Interest expenses FERX 2,091 - 2,091
Income tax expense FrigMEx 12,937 - 12,937
Share of results of associates DG A T & (1,202) - (1,202)
Geographical information & &

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas —
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong (country
of domicile). The following table provides an analysis

FERRMEIrEMEEE —FEH (FE
EBER) REE GEMp it L) - TR
TEEERERAEMEBEUESE DRE

of the Group's revenue from external customers by the SBMEEZWAZ DT !
geographical location of the customer:

2020 2019
ZEZEE “T-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
PRC other than Hong Kong HE (FEEER) 1,134,011 1,185,204
Hong Kong H5E 283,690 184,794
Other HAth 258,722 93,632
1,676,423 1,463,630
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Cont’d)

Geographical information (Cont’d)

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment and right-of-

WARDEER (&

wEEX @)

FEBZEREMNIFRBEE (BEY
X BEARBUKRERREE) HUR

use assets are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and other PRl EHEREMEISR
countries:
2020 2019
—E_ZfF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
PRC other than Hong Kong RED (AR 932,221 831,788
Hong Kong 58 164 286
Other Hh 17,228 15,677
949,613 847,751
Information about major customers BREEREFRZEHR

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years

REREBFESAEBIHEBEASTR

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are BI0%EMZzERZWANT !
as follows:
2020 2019
ZETEHF —ZT—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A’ ERE 310,782 383,830
Customer B! Z2RZ 208,024 158,826
Customer C' ERA 205,460 N/AA 1 A3 2
L Revenue from business of circuit boards and components business. ! REERIRRAGFEBZUWA

2 Revenue from Customer C did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HUA
2020 2019
—ETHF —ZE—NEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Release of government grants for BEWIRE T B E
construction of factory on 2 BFFERRM (B1a22)
existing lands (note 22) 752 1,796
Government grants for research and  ZA S IE R ~ BT 2 EL
development projects (note 22) (Ht5£22) 26,051 23,316
Government subsidies (note (a) below) HIFEBN (FXH15(a)) 7,167 4,936
Other government grants H BN 2 /L
(note (b) below) (FxHaEb)) 54 -
Interest income FE WA 1,563 2,834
Rental income BEHA 596 339
Scrap income &R 11,563 6,616
Net exchange gains bE R U s /R 5 - 257
Others Hith 1,163 1,077
48,909 41,171
Notes: Vo2
(@)  The amount of approximately HK$7,167,000 (2019: HK$4,936,000) (@) ZEANRBE_Z-_EFE+_A=+—HL®HF

Bk EZEBAEESES R HAETHN
B EN#97,167,0008 7T (ZF—N4 © 4,936,000
HBTT) ©

represents subsidies from various government authorities in
supporting the high-end technology research and development
activities for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(b)  During the current year, the Group recognised government grants (b) MAFE &R EABFMKAE
of HK$54,000 in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies and relates R AL A BRI AT 2 A554,0008 0> HEFE
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong BAFRMEAMRITZEI 2 ERM -
government.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BRERA
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TET

Interests on: FE

- Bank borrowings —iRITEE 9,702 1,827

— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 532 264

10,234 2,091
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

8.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

8. FRIRAIEF

2020 2019
—TEHF “Z-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Profit before taxation has been arrived [RIRETEFI BRI TIER
at after charging
Research and development expenses 3 & A
Staff costs BTAA 31,704 9,524
Other research and development HihifE & A
expenses 51,449 47,828
83,153 57,352
Directors’ and chief executive's BEERTETHABNS
emoluments (note 10) (H1a£10) 1,455 1,227
Other staff costs HME TR A 169,038 152,155
Other staff’s retirement benefits HMB T ZRIRET BN
schemes contributions 17,281 13,551
Total staff costs BT AR5 187,774 166,933
Less: Other staff costs included in B EF A BRI
research and development BERZBIHA
expenses as shown above (31,704) (9,524)
156,070 157,409
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 950 850
Cost of inventories recognised as ERRAEMAEZZFERA
an expense (note below) (FXbizE) 1,429,284 1,254,943
Depreciation of property, ME-BERREZITE
plant and equipment 145,922 114,234
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 3,684 3,119
Loss on disposal of property, HEYME -BEIREZEE
plant and equipment 1,931 2,272
Provision for allowance for credit losses 15 & 5188 2 B & 2,045 402

Note: The amount includes allowance for inventories of HK$8,413,000 =3

(2019: HK$99,000).

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

9. TAXATION 9. M]IA

2020 2019
—TEHF —Z—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax: BUHEATR IS !
Hong Kong Profits Tax EARFER 1,076 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HE PR 18,581 15,392
19,657 15,392

Overprovision in prior years DS EBEEEE .

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R (RS (8,783) (3,964)
10,874 11,428

Deferred tax: FEIEFRIE .
Current year (note 25) KEE (Mz25) 1,530 1,509
12,404 12,937

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax

rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March

2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the

two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million

of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of Group entities not qualifying for

the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be

taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

RZE-NF=ZRAZ+—R - BEBULZEG
BB _ZT—LERE (B (B75%) %6
Bz (MEHIEZR)) > SIARISIRm ARSI -
HHAERER _T-AFE=ZB-+N\BE
E‘%%Exﬁ(’ﬁﬁé%EE%iE*U’éﬁE%ﬂ

MRS S ERERBRERIE8.25%
ZﬁTEfEZEI%%E/ BRI
RIZ16 5% MEXNBB2HER BT E
BRI AR EFSRMARBERZ
EEBERNEB G RERZ165%2
M—MEBHMIRIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

9.

TAXATION (Cont’d)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of
the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities
in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate
of 16.5%.
provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no

group companies in Hong Kong had no assessable profits.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for each PRC subsidiary and
at its applicable tax rate. Under the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. (“AKM Panyu”) and
AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Ltd. ("AKM Suzhou")
were awarded the Foreign Invested Advanced-Technology
Enterprise Certificate in prior years. AKM Suzhou is
entitled to tax rate reduction from 25% to 15% for three
years commenced from 1 January 2016, which was then
renewed for a further term of three year commenced
from 1 January 2019. AKM Panyu was entitled to tax rate
reduction from 25% to 15% for three years commenced
from 1 January 2015, which was then renewed for a
further term of three years commenced from 1 January
2018.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E#ZE _—F _F#F+ _H=+—HIFFZE

TAXATION (Cont’d)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FRZMEDEGEGE
mRZFRANG N ERROT ¢

MIE (%7

m A B 2 E R

2020 2019

ZEZEHE Z—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHAT TET

Profit before taxation BRI AT E A 131,814 130,648
Tax at the applicable income tax rate  ZBRAFSRNEAE

(note (a) below) WIE (FXMata) 19,772 19,597
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR Z 2 RFEF &

for tax purpose 673 778
Tax effect of share of results of NN —UNCIE S ib 3=

associates (397) (180)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERTINHERER

differences not recognised MBEE - 74
Tax effect on further deduction of MERAE—FTNIFRZ

research and development expenses MBEE (FXHED)

(note (b) below) (3,496) (5,476)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FRHEDRBEHEEZNFEZE 3,218 633
Over provision in prior years MEEE 2 B G (8,783) (3,964)
Effect of different tax rates of MEABRHEMEEZRE R E

subsidiaries operating in other ZARBREZZE

jurisdictions (113) (34)
Deferred taxation arising from KomaN BN TEINR

withholding tax on undistributed P4 2 IRIEFRIE

profits 1,530 1,509
Taxation for the year KEEMRIE 12,404 12,937

Notes:

Hiat -

EBLENALERZIBEEWNB AT A
I AEBMZBRAMAERKRESRIS% (ZT—A
£ :15%)

AKM Panyu is the Group’s major operating subsidiary. Therefore, the
Group's applicable income tax rate is 15% (2019: 15%).

RBEAEIRBIROIRIRG) > REME QB A5
PEZGERMAERXRFEIS0%TEFTE
MR -EERBBEORREREZRBH
X% BERTEMSRIERCEALEARY
{EEDERFR 1575 FE S #0l

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, PRC subsidiaries
can claim PRC income tax credits on additional 50% of the qualified
research and development expenses in the PRC. Such PRC income tax

(b)

credits are allowed, and are accounted for, as deduction from current
income tax expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled and tax
approval is obtained from the tax bureau.

“EERFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

()

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. EZRFETHRAEBZMERE
HEREFHMAL

() EFRFBITHRABZMEFEHR
2131

BE_SE”-_ZHF+_-_H=+—HL

FE
Retirement  Performance
Salaries Benefit Related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments  emoluments
HER RAEH BRR
He Hithig# gEfHR HzRe W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT FET TEx TER
Executive director: BITES!
Xiong Zheng Feng ETIE - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHTER!
Gao Xiaoguang L - - - - -
Jia Junan BEEZ - - - - -
Zhang Xiaoming REER - - _ _ _
Wong Chunsheng IE% - - - - -
Liu Jianzhe (note (2) below) 208 (FXHEE) - - - - -
Yu Daochun (note (b) below) RES (TXHE D) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BuFdGES !
directors:
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew "SR 60 - - - 60
Yang Zhaoguo (note (c) below)  1BKE (FX () 53 - - - 53
Cui Zheng &5 n - - - n
Zhang Guo Qi (note (e) below)  RELNE (FXHiiHe) 3 - - - 3
Sub-total Mgt 188 - - - 188
Chief executive officer THEH
Chai Zhi Qiang (note (d) below) — %E% (Fithis#d) - 698 21 548 1,267
Total A&t 188 698 21 548 1,455

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ
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10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

()

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments are as follows: (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

10. EZRFETHRABZMERE

weEHMAL &)

() EFRFBTHABZMEFER
FWMF : (A&

BE_FT-NF+A=+—HL

FE
Retirement  Performance
Salaries Benefit Related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments  emoluments
ek BRI SRR
ik HEihiER| SER BrRd e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive director: TEE:
Xiong Zheng Feng B - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHTES!
Gao Xiaoguang BB - - - - -
Jia Junan BEZ - - - - -
Zhang Xiaoming REMR _ _ _ _ _
Wong Chunsheng T5% - - - - -
Yu Daochun (note (b) below) REB (TXHE D) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES !
directors:
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HER 60 - - - 60
Yang Zhaoguo (note (c) below) BB (FXHIE ) 72 - - - 72
Cui Zheng ] 7 - - - 7
Sub-total 1N 204 - - - 204
Chief executive officer THeEs
Chai Zhi Qiang (note (d) below) %58 (FXHaH) - 684 83 256 1,023
Total &% 204 684 83 256 1,227

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are as follows: (Cont’d)
Notes:
(@)  Appointed on 10 June 2020.
(b)  Resigned on 10 June 2020.
(c)  Resigned on 23 September 2020.
(d)  Chai zhi Qiang is the Chief Executive Officer.
(e)  Appointed on 21 December 2020.
(f)  The performance related incentive payments are determined

with reference to the Group's operating results and individual
performances.

The Chief Executive Officer's and executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years 2019 and 2020.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

10. EZRFETHRABZMERE
weEHMAL &)

() EFRFBITHRABZMEFEHR

FWE (&)
Vo=
(@) MIZZZFEAB+HEZE-

(b) RK-BZTFARA+HEE

(d) LERTVITHAER -
() MIZE_ZF+_A-_+—HEZF-

(f) BERFHDZHEESDRAERLCEEE
R A8 ARIRMAEE

EXPTRITHBHERAITEE Z M
TTEAREEERARDREAER
EHRMTZRFER -

EXFRRIFRITE S B ILIFALT
EFCHMETBHARFFER/EAT
EEFrRH RFARRM

FR BEEFHTHRRREXE
ERER_ZF-NFR-ZFTZHF
BYERIFEN A 22 5k o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

10.

(ii) Employees’ emoluments and five highest paid
individuals:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
emoluments of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments of the Group, one (2019: one) was
the chief executive officer of the Company whose
emolument is set out in note 10(i) above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

EFRFETHRABZME KA
LEREFMAL @

(i) EEMERELESHFMAL:

REBEE-_Z-_ZTF+-_H=+—H
TFE - AEBLILESHEMAL
ho—%H(ZB-AF ! —R)A/E
NEITEARHE  HEFM P Ll M5
10()&EF B T (CTE—NF [
%) REHMATZFHMESIWNT

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,434 2,278
Performance related incentive BARIFHMY R E
payments 1,219 931
Retirement benefit schemes BARBH FTEIH R A
contributions 276 258
3,929 3,467
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BEZMENFUTEE !
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-NE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A#E
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 FHEITE1,000,0008 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018cE
1,500,0007& 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive officer or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

HE_S_SER_F-—AE+"
A=+—HLLEE FERILRGE
ERTBMEAELBBHMAL
B LR R A SN
AR Z RS RBBEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

11.

12.

ARG MW R M

DIVIDEND

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a final dividend
of HK1 cent per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 totaling HK$15,382,000 (2019: in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 totaling
HK$15,382,000) was declared and paid to the owners of
the Company.

Pursuant to the board of directors’ meeting on 23
March 2021, the directors recommended to declare the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK1.45 cent per share totaling HK$22,304,000. Such
recommendation is to be approved by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

11.

HQ l%\

BE_ZE_ZF+_-_RA=Z+—HIEE
E AR E_ZE—-—NF+A=+—
BEFENKBARESR1EW &5
15,382,000 T (CE—HE : BEE

E_E2-N\NEFE+_B=1+—HIEE":
15,382,000 70) EERALZ T FARAT
TN

RE_ZE-_—F=ZFB_+=-HHNEE®T
B ESEREREEEEF+Z
B=+—HILEFENKRPKESK.45%8
il » & 514922,304,00087C o ZEE B H
RN REBEFEARAGH A

. BRER

ERBBEBEABLERERNRBERT

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the 2t E TR T8 -
following data:
2020 2019
—EEE ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Earnings &7
Profit for the year attributable to REstEERRBA) 2 A AE]
the owners of the Company for A AELAREEGET
the purpose of basic earnings
per share 119,351 117,711
Number of shares
& &
2020 2019
—EIERF ZE-NEF
Number of shares 154 24
Weighted average number of ordinary FR{EstEEREREF 2
shares less shares held under the LB IMEFE A
restricted share incentive scheme BAFEANRGIMERE
during the year, for the purpose of HENETE TRIA RGN
basic earnings per share 1,531,948,210 1,537,398,075

HRBE_Z_ZFR-Z-—AF+Z
A=+—BLEmEFELERABEETEHS
zEEhk HILMEFENSRESKE
EEAEE -

There was no potential ordinary share in existence for the
two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, basic and
diluted earnings per share are the same for both years.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/

13.ME - -BEKRRE ME--BER

DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND BEzEE
EQUIPMENT
Plantand  Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HRERESZ HEMERE HAERE B EEIR Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL FEL TERL TEL TEL TEx
Cost K&
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E-E-H 166,083 602,280 87,112 24142 3,662 198,010 1,081,289
Additions HE - 30,270 5,361 2,163 - 115,905 153,699
Disposals e - (11,750) - (20) - (208) (11,976)
Transfer Ed 1,217 211,801 5,104 - - (218,122) -
Written off W - - (4,176) - - - (4,176)
Currency realignment % (3,656) (16,408) (1,939) (524) (62) (2,112) (24,701)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AE+ZA=+-H 163,644 816,193 91,462 25,761 3,600 93,475 1,194,135
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-%£-F—H 163,644 816,193 91,462 25,761 3,600 93,475 1,194,135
Additions HE - 83,225 4,263 2,676 - 129,181 219,345
Transfer Bk 82,865 37,139 4,415 2 - (124440) -
Disposals HE - (46,462) (1,339) (297) (138) (2,308) (50,544)
Currency realignment ElEn 14,433 56,219 6,119 1,663 171 4,872 83,477
At 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZZF+ZA=1-H 260,942 946,314 104,920 29,825 3,633 100,779 1,446,413
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—-E-H 38,103 228342 20,092 12,259 2,861 - 301,657
Provided for the year EERE 8376 86,651 15,582 3238 387 - 114,234
Eliminated on disposals HERIEH - 8171) - (5) - - (8,176)
Eliminated on written off biigelisais - - (4,176) - - - (4,176)
Currency realignment aRER (984) (6,110) (645) (301) (51) - (8,091)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AE+ZA=+-H 45,495 300,712 30,853 15,191 3,197 - 395,448
At 1 January 2020 RZE-FE-F-8 45495 300712 30853 15,191 3,197 - 395448
Provided for the year EERE 8636 116,373 17,225 3442 246 - 145,922
Eliminated on disposals HERES - (23,544) (549) (235) (133) - (24,461)
Currency realignment % 3417 23,589 2,911 1,101 159 - 31,177
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+IA=T-B 57548 417,130 50440 19499 3,469 - 548086
CARRYING VALUES REfE
At 31 December 2020 RIZZSE+ZA=+-H 203,394 529,184 54,480 10,326 164 100,779 898,327
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-AE+-A=+-H 118,149 515,481 60,609 10,570 403 93,475 798,687
Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/
DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of the estimated residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease of relevant land, or
40 - 50 years

Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years

Over the remaining term of the
lease or 4 years, whichever is

Leasehold improvements

shorter
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged
buildings with carrying amounts of HK$47,968,000 (2019:
HK$46,488,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The buildings are located on leasehold land in the PRC.

Deposits for property, plant and equipment represents
deposits paid to suppliers and subcontractors for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

13.ME - -BEKRRE ME--BER
REZEE (E)

LHEME - -BERKBHEEESRESE
HREERERAERERUTERFE !

‘¥ 1EF 2 ER T >
THHBE40E 504
MUREEAHE)

BB e i 2 5&E 154

MEMEEE  REfTHEPZF
MUBREEAHE)

WMAERE 54

BT 45

RIE-EF+-_B=+—H > ~EEE
EIPERE E547,968,0008 T (ZT—H
F 146,488,000 7T) 2 1BF  fEALREH
FRER—RIBITEEZHERo

ZEBFHURTHEEEZ It Lo
ME-BERRBEZEZESEABEYE

BERZERTEIZENTHERR
DNEBRBZREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ
14. LEASES 14. HE
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) FRESE
2020 2019
—E_EE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Right-of-use assets ERAESE:
— Leasehold land in the PRC —RHEZEE T 46,377 44,717
— Buildings —18&F 4,909 4,347
51,286 49,064

Right-of-use assets of approximately HK$46,377,000
(2019: HK$44,717,000) represent prepayment for
land use rights located in the PRC and is amortised
over 50 years on a straight-line basis.

Besides, the Group has lease arrangements for
buildings. The lease terms are generally ranged from
two to five years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$2,299,000 (2019: 5,299,000), due
to new leases of buildings.

#46,377,0008 7T (ZE—HhF:
44,717,000787T) NEAEE EE
PRAE B4R EDS0F#IHM L
Hh {65 R REFE (T FRIE ©

o AEEERBFHEZHF-HE
HR—RABMFEERF-

BT -_TE+ZA=+—HIE
FE BARTMHEEET FTHEEE
BH0492,299,0008 T (ZEF—HL4F :
5,299,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

14. LEASES (Cont’d)

14. 88 (&)

(ii) Lease liabilities (i) AE&E
2020 2019
—EIEF —F—hnF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current JERH 3,349 3,481
Current Wik 1,869 1,112
5,218 4,593
2020 2019
Amounts payable under HK$’000 HK$'000
lease liabilities HEARETEMRIE FET FET
Within one year —F R 1,869 1,112
After one year but within —FBEMFERN
two years 1,782 1,144
After two years but within MEBEBRFRN
five years 1,567 2,337
5,218 4,593
Less: Amount due for settlement 78 : 1218 3 A B R FE S BIFRIE
within 12 months FReshadEET
(shown under current F)R)
liabilities) (1,869) (1,112)
Amount due for settlement after  121E 8 1 5| EAFE 1 YR IE
12 months 3,349 3,481

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a number of new lease agreements in

respect of renting properties and recognised lease
liability of HK$2,299,000. (2020: HK$5,299,000)

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

IEFE> $$EE$HE¢@¥ET4
ETHHEERZ LERIBEESR

f£2,299,000% 7T
5,299,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

14. LEASES (Cont’d)

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(iv)

(v)

14. 88 (&)

(iii) 738 o FE SR HY TR IR

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
#qE EE
—EEFR ZE-NEF
+ZRA=+—8B +tZA=+—H
IHEFE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TET
Depreciation expense on FREEENERS
right-of-use assets 3,684 3,119
Interest expense on lease liabilities FAE&EF S8 xX 532 264

Others

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
HK$2,252,000 (2019: HK$1,137,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2020, lease liabilities of
HK$5,218,000 are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of HK$51,286,000 (2019: lease liabilities
of HK$4,593,000 and related right-of-use assets
of HK$49,064,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants in other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

(iv) Hfth

Bz _Z_ZHF+/8=+—
HEFE HENRERHEEH
#2,252,0008 T (ZE—NF
1,137,000 7T) ©
(v) THEBIRHIHELY
WZEZZEF+ZHA=+—8H"
5,218,000 8t EAREE A
51,286,000 TN HEERAEEE
B (CEBE—HE 4,593,000 TH
TR & & 15 /% 49,064,000 T A FE A 18
AREE) - HEREHFRHEBAARE
WHEEBSENERED I RN
RAARE -FAEEEFFRIEGERN
Ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 15. R = AT 2t R FEUR /1 B

DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES EREZMIE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Costs of unlisted investments in REE R B
associates JE LR EMA 35,107 35,107
Share of post-acquisition results and ~ FE{SUREE B EF &
other comprehensive income Hitzma 6,448 1,308
41,555 36,415
Amounts due to associates ERBE QB ZHIE - 4,617
Amounts due from associates FE UL B & A B R 4,309 -
Note: The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest free and Wiz ENBE AR ZRIBEBARIKR 28 - BES
trading in nature with the credit term of 30-120 days. MEREERA30HE120H
The following is an aged analysis by invoice date of trade MTFARBRERRREZHBREINNZE
receivables from associates as at 31 December 2020: (T E R BIRRZBRER DT -
2020
—EIERF
HK$'000
FERT
Within 30 days 30HA 3,930
31 - 60 days 31%60H 379
4,309

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEEmRRMEE

17197 N e |
For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

REERT 2 Em R EW (T

EABZMIEA (&)

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 15.
DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

UFARZE-—AE+B=+—H0#%
HZEAMENNZREVBMERTRMZIER

The following was an aged analysis by invoice date of
trade payables to associates as at 31 December 2019:

@A g

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
TET

Within 30 days
31 - 60 days

Details of the Group's associates as at 31 December 2020

and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Place of

establishment

30HA
31%60H

3,989
628

4,617

KEEBMEBEATDIN_E_EF+_A

—t+t—BRZE-NAFtTZR=1t—H

ZEBWT

Attributable interest
and proportion of

and principal voting power held
place of Form of by the Group
Name of associates operation business structure (Directly/indirectly) Principal activities
FEBEEER R
Bl 32 3t Bt HERERLA
HERARLE TEQEMY CERAMRR (B /) TEEE
2020 2019
ZBIBE ZE-hE
EMTmZBEETERAR The PRC Sino-foreign enterprise 30% 30% Manufacture and
(TEMZ %) HE HNEEDRE (directly)  (directly)  sales of flexible
(transliteration as New (B8 (B#)  packaging
Career Guangzhou Electronics substrates
Company Limited, BIERHEERY
“New Career") HHEER
NIRKZHEBERAE The PRC Sino-foreign enterprise 48% 48% Manufacture and sales
(M IRz H) HE HAEERE (indirectly) (indirectly)  of flexible copper
(transliteration as Jiujiang Flex (F1%) (B clad laminate and
Co., Limited, “Jiujiang Flex") relevant products
BERHERNY
BB ER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
22 March 2019, Z#7F (ER) EFBEXBRAT
(transliteration as AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd., "AKM Electronics Panyu”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into: (1) the equity
transfer agreement with JIERIICITEREE AT
(transliteration as Jiangxi Changjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.,
“Changjiang Chemical”, a state-owned enterprise with
limited liability established in the PRC, which is owned
as to approximately 71.89% by SIARICIETARA
B (transliteration as Jiangxi Changhua Chemical Ltd.,
“Changhua Limited”) and is an indirect subsidiary of A
B R HEEREABMRR/AST (transliteration as China South
Industries Group Corporation, “CSIGC”), a wholly state-
owned enterprise with limited liability established in
the PRC is a shareholder and a connected person of the
Company) in relation to the acquisition of 38% equity
interests in Jiujiang Flex (the "Acquisition”) and (2) the
equity transfer agreement with Capital Loyal Limited (R
BEAPR/ATE), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and an independent third party) in relation
to the acquisition of 10% equity interests in Jiujiang
Flex (collectively referred to as the "Acquisitions”), at
a total consideration of approximately RMB28,182,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,491,000).

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

15. RBE R B 2 K FE /B

EABZWIE ()

REAQ2BHBA-_Z—HLE=ZAH
Z+ZHHRAM AR EZENWE A S
ZRA (BR) BFEEERLAE (T2
MEHBET) (WETIARICIARE
ZFr8E ((RIeT)) (—ERAPEKILZ
ERSETCHEHACE RIARECLEIAR
~NEl TRIEBARAT) BEBEHNT71.89%1H#
moATEEREFREESRARE (TH
Haass) —HRPERIZERS
FEEBECEURSTAT ZREREHE
BALD) ZHEBREBAR) STXEERS
BFE WENTIEKTH38% R E (T
BEE) RQBEREBRLE (—ERE
BEMRIZERAR A — 2B
BZHNUERRZER WEATLE
R HT10% M (A TIEES1E)) 48
REBLYOAE ANEK28,182,0007T FHERL
31,491,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Jiujiang Flex is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sales of flexible copper clad laminate and relevant
products. The directors of the Company consider that
the Acquisitions will facilitate the Company to capture
pioneer advantage in the research and development of
new materials and better equipped the Company for the
5G network era. Besides, the formal inclusion of Jiujiang
Flex into the supply chain system of the Group following
the Acquisitions will create strategic synergies within the
Group, and is anticipated to increase the sales income of
Jiujiang Flex, thereby achieving enhancement of the overall
results of the Group. The Acquisitions were completed on
23 April 2019.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements, prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The associates are accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

15. IREE QB 2 e o K FE MR B

EABZMIEA (&)

NIBRRHTEEFREERHBES
BAEEEFEERRERERMm -AAT
EFAE WEFERANRATEBER
MRS EEES > WBA QB FFE
I ZESGHEAR R e I oh » TR e
RUEERTHBEXNMARERH
EREABR I EANERNZIBRE BB
W AR A LR R e BBy S E U
AN RMBEALSEBZEREXE WES
BERZE-AFMNA-+=H5%M-

FEEBERAD ZMBENBEZHIIW
T TIHBENRBIEREARIRRE
AU BREENRRZMBREANME
Sz R BMEABDEREmEANZFLR
BMBREIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 15. REE NE Z Hm K FEW 1 Bk

DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

EABZMIE (&

New Career BN 2R
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 8,716 6,246
Current assets MENEE 39,096 17,023
Non-current liabilities ERFERE (282) (715)
Current liabilities REIEE (27,943) (8,315)
Net assets BEEFRE 19,587 14,239
Proportion of the Group's ownership ~ ZNEBERBE QAT 2
interest in the associate AR LA 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of REFFELHBERBZ
the associate BEFE 5,876 4,272
Revenue N 48,193 30,813
Profit for the year REEHF 4,393 1,793
Other comprehensive income KREEHEMEE
(expense) for the year Wa (Bx) 955 (313)
Profit and total comprehensive NEE R R
income for the year Hitzma= 5,348 1,480
Group's share of profit NEBEL R 1,318 538
Group's share of other FEBRGEMEENE
comprehensive income (expense) (FAR) 286 (94)
Dividend received from the EWHE AT ZKRE

associate during the year

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

EABZMIEA (&)

15. IREE QB 2 e o K FE MR B

Jiujiang Flex NIRRT
2020 2019
—TEHF —Z—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 19,376 22,069
Current assets MEEE 76,936 59,354
Non-current liabilities ERETERE (918) (2,231)
Current liabilities mEaE (25,921) (17,086)
Net assets BEFE 69,473 62,106
Proportion of the Group's ownership ~ KNEBERBE QAT 2
interest in the associate AR R LA 48% 48%
Goodwill mE 2,332 2,332
Group's share of net assets of the REEEGHE QT2
associate BETRE 33,347 29,811
Revenue WA 104,881 62,974
Profit for the year KEERF 2,765 1,383
Other comprehensive income (expense) ZAxEEHMEE
for the year W (%) 4,602 (25)
Profit and total comprehensive income AREEHH KEMEEULE
for the year 7,367 1,358
Group's share of profit NEB LR 1,327 664
Group's share of other comprehensive s & fE (5 ELth 2 W &
income (expense) (FA=) 2,209 (12)

Dividend received from the associate
during the year

BRBMEATDZRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

Z2HEmTH

16. EEHRAFESFARMEZE RS

INCOME
2020 2019
B8R —Z—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Equity instruments designated at fair 5 EAEAFEF AEMEE
value through other comprehensive Wz #m TR
income
— Unlisted equity investments in: — R TFEENIELST
RS :
AKMMeadville Electronics LR EHSE
(note (a) below) (FXHtaE(a)) 331,511
Other investee company HtwigEH A8
(note (b) below) (FXftaEb)) 39,924
371,435
Notes: g2
(@) Unlisted equity investment in AKMMeadville Electronics (a) MNZEFEHEBEFNIELTERRDRE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, AKM Electronics Panyu HE_Z_ZEFF+_A=+—BLEE XK
(as defined below), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, REL2ENBARZRAIEREF (EERET
established a joint venture company, Z#EFIEZHEET (EFY) B X)RETHE=ZARILGERNDRREFNEHES
PREEF/AE (transliteration as AKMMeadville Electronics (Xiamen) T (EFM) BRSEELQE ((ZEFEHEET) >
Co., Ltd., “AKMMeadville Electronics”) with certain third parties RN BEEEFERZAB% D - N2
in which AKM Electronics Panyu owns 6% equity interest in the TEMA » LA EM#E T UCE M E R =R
company. In April 2020, AKMMeadville Electronics acquired four PRC RRILAB FEREEENRERIRER B1F
incorporated companies which are mainly engaged in the research HER BB ELHR  ERERIEERKRIE
and development, production and sales of rigid printed circuit BFEB - HMEFRABERNMAE -LER
board products, including substrate-like printed circuit board (SLP), HE ZMEXRZNHEE2RAATEEHS
high-density interconnect board (HDI), integrated circuit packaging TE-NAF+ZAZ+tHERIZZZFE—A
substrate (IC substrate) as well as related electronic assembling, and “+=HMAEL-
microelectronics and optoelectronics products and details of these
two transactions were disclosed in the Company’'s announcements
on 27 December 2019 and 23 January 2020.
(b)  Unlisted equity investment in other investee company (b) MEMBBREASTNIELIRREE

The amount represented the Group’s 5.76% (2019: 6.40%) unlisted
equity interests in another company established in the PRC. The
investee is engaged in research and development of semi-conductor
packaging substrates.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

BRSBEAERNPERINS —BATZ
576% (ZZ—H4F : 6.40%) AUIE LR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

16.

o /%5 R M st

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company have elected to designate
this investment in equity instrument as FVTOCI as they
believe this investment is not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in foreseeable future. This investment
is denominated in RMB other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity.

Details of the fair value measurement of these unlisted
equity investments are disclosed in note 26.

16.

BEERATESARMEZE Y=
2T R (8)

FAAREFEEEBERNZSTET LAY
REBEASRAFESAEMEE LT T
HREERXBZERELIFFIERZ A
T A TR R P) R 2R & o L TR B LA
MEBERZIESE I AR
=0

ZEFLHEEATESFEFBIRMN
FE269 I EE o

The carrying amount of inventories for the Group as at 31
December 2020 is approximately HK$206,880,000 (2019:
HK$124,848,000), net of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$21,125,000 (2019: HK$12,712,000).

. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2020 2019
B8R ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET
Raw materials R 75,524 32,282
Work in progress + G 89,835 54,143
Finished goods SAY G 41,521 38,423
206,880 124,848

KERRZZEZZFE+A=+—8B2
FEREEX%A206,880,0008 T (T
— L 124,848,000 7T) » BEHIRE
ERE£21,125,0008 7T (ZE—NE .
12,712,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables include the following balances:

18. B 5 R Hth & RIE

8 5 K A FEWGRIA B8 T 5 A 6

2020 2019

ZETEF —Z—hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Trade receivables B EWRIE 697,078 665,447
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERERE (2,321) (520)
694,757 664,927

Other receivables HpE W E 19,454 8,831
Prepayments SEINEN 8,124 5,463
27,578 14,294

722,335 679,221

As at 1 January 2019, the gross amount of trade
receivables arising from contract with customers amounted
to HK$506,486,000.

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to
120 days to its trade customers. Before accepting any
new customer, the management assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

A TE-NE—-H—H ELXBEFLRE
NP E 5 E TR IE 48 5E % 506,486,00078

JT ©

AERODHEZERRHEZEERNF
B30E120RANE-EEMEMHTERLZ
A EEEENGEERERZEEER
THREERIZAZEERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 18. B R HMEWRIE (&
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, MUTRIRIREHFR CGAEE AT HE
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on 183 B RIS (RINRZEERRE
the invoice dates (other than bills receivables which are TIZEEFEEER BAEREZEERZEA
presented based on the issuance date of relevant bills) BHAZ275 2 R REBRRIN ZBRE 247 !

at end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates:

2020 2019
—EEHE ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TET
Within 30 days 30HA 367,561 332,680
31 - 60 days 31E60H 134,212 157,915
61 — 90 days 61290H 101,881 97,291
91 - 120 days 91&120H 73,939 54,475
121 days — 1 year 121BE1F 17,164 22,566
694,757 664,927
As at 31 December 2020, the amount due from a N _EZTEFE+ZA=+—H REWYK
shareholder, Goertek (Hong Kong) Company Limited, — LR EEBRN T RRERATINX
amounting to approximately HK$43,388,000 (2019: 18#43,388,0008 7t (Z&E—h & .
HK$70,297,000) was included in the Group's trade 70,297,000/87T) BEst AREBNE ZE
receivables. WRIE o
As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due from N ZEZEFE+ A=+ —H ERBE
associates amounting to approximately HK$4,309,000 N BFRIAEL4,309,00058 T (ZTB—HEF
(2019: HK$1,207,000) was included in the Group's trade 1,207,0008 T) B st AXEENE Z EUW
receivables. Details are set out in Note 15. FIE o s IFH N MIEE150
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The Group's trade and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

18.

B 5 Rk HMEWRIR (&

DAEREBEBRIEGR LN ZEEKS]
BZAEEE S KHEME BB
Lk

2020 2019

b g2 3 “EB-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

United States dollars (“USD") E5 (MEm)) 13,389 72,182

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Details of
impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are

set out in note 26.

19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group

and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits of the Group carried at fixed
interest rate of 0.02% per annum (2019: 0.02% per
annum). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon withdrawal of banking facilities. The pledged bank

deposits are denominated in HKS.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank

deposits are set out in note 26.

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months which carry at
floating interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.00%

(2019: 0.01% to 3.00%) per annum.

Included in the Group’s bank balances are short-term
deposits of approximately HK$112,605,000 (2019:

HK$43,796,088) kept in banks located in the PRC.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

20.

AEEREERFEPABEAEEZ
B EE S ERRRNERRE. 55
T L1t 8 1 T B 8 425 B 5 LR I
526

. ERIFIRITER

ZA AR BIRFIRIT 20 BIFRER
FTAREBZERRTEE RILDEAR
BEE-

AEEZ BIRFRITFRLEE FHE
0.02% (ZF—N%F : F£7]%0.02%) 5t
B BHEMRITHFRBIREERITEE R
RS - EIRIRIRITFRUL B TTE B

B IR IR 1T 17 X B9 R B 5F 15 5% 18 UM B
5526,

IRITHERRIRE

SRITE R BEIEUNF0.01%E3.00% 2%
FEMEKE (CTE—HE 0.01%E3.00%)
FEERIBAODNR=ZMEE ZEHIETT

REERTEGEEEREVURTREZ
$R1T 7 A HATER49112,605,00058 T (=
— £ © 43,796,088% 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Cont'd) 20. IR1THERKRIRE (&
In addition, included in the bank balances and cash are the I SRITE R RIRSBIE T UBERE
following amounts denominated in currencies other than EERCIEEBEMIIZEBINEZ R
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are: 15 .
2020 2019
—EEHE ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
usb x7T 14,866 17,591
Korean Won (“KRW") wEEE (T8E)) 226 62
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set IR1THEER N IR & YR B AP s B 8N Y
out in note 26. 526,
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. B REMERIE
Trade and other payables include the following balances: B REMBENHRIBEEIE NG
2020 2019
T EHF —Z—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Trade and bills payables B ENRIERENEE
(note (a) below) (FxXHtat(a)) 515,268 335,844
Payables for acquisition of property, WHEMZE BB REREZ
plant and equipment eI FRIE 47,830 31,371
Accrued staff costs FEET 8 TRy 43,051 36,965
Construction payables fEfT T2 78 151 9,379
Amount due to a shareholder FE — % IR IE
(note (b) below) (FXHt&£b)) 7,723 5,303
Other tax payables HMENRIE 19,849 8,967
Received from restricted stock U BY B PR 114 B 2B B 5t 21
incentive scheme 10,973 12,221
Other payables and accruals HMENRIE R Es & 37,188 27,495
682,033 467,545
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

Trade and bills payables

The following is an aged analysis by invoice date/bills issued date of
trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting period:

21.

B hHEMENRIR (&

Mtat -

(a) EZEMRERECRE

UTFRRREAARZEZEAN

RELAEAH

22 B RNRBERENREZRE DT

(b)  Amount due to a shareholder

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
participated in certain research and development projects with its
shareholder, FEZ2Ss TEEBERAF (transliteration as China
North Industries Group Corporation (“CNIGC") a wholly state-owned
enterprise with limited liability established in the PRC which is a
shareholder and a connected person of the Company), the amount
represented the research and development fee paid by CNIGC to
the Group in relating to certain research and development projects.
CNIGC research and development projects were extended during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and expected to be completed within
a year.

(c)  Others
The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in

currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

2020 2019

ZEIEE —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 30 days 30HBA 248,663 218,502
31 - 60 days 31E60H 117,831 70,503
61 — 90 days 61E90H 72,286 40,365
91 - 120 days 91E120H 34,053 6,370
121 days — 1 year 1218E1F 41,786 103
Over 1 year 1 £ 649 1
515,268 335,844

(b) FEN—RRERE

HEZ-ZERZE-AFE+ZBE=+—H
TFE A5EEHEERRTIEERTEERS
RAE (MMPEEETE > ARPEMRINER
2EAACE TAXAIREREAEAL) 2
HETHMEEE EHSHEETHRSEITER
FEBMBETHEEBELZNNAEER - HE
ARTH¥WHBEEEEOREE ST+
B=+—HItEELER LERR—FERTM

(o Hit

DEREEERIEER SN2 EBIEZ K

EHE S RAMBARE#HIINT

2020 2019

—ETEE ZE-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

usD ESS 21,193 30,610

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

22.

DEFERRED INCOME

22, BEWA

2020 2019
—TEHF —Z—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Government grants received M FRIBENE 2
in respect of: BT 2B
Development of new products and FREMERURKERZE
plant and equipment (note (a) below)  (FX/tzt(a)) 40,414 17,714
Construction of factory on existing RIRBLHERKE
lands (note (b) below) (FXHizEDb)) 24,236 23,516
64,650 41,230
Less: Amounts to be recognised in B RERIEm NS 2 IE
profit or loss in the
following year (15,355) (3,968)
Amount shown under non-current EREBBEE TR EE
liabilities 49,295 37,262
Notes: V=4
(a)  Development of new products and plant and equipment (@) MEBWERKBEUAKREZE

The Group has undertaken certain research and development
projects. During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total amount
of HK$26,051,000 (2019: HK$23,316,000) was released to profit or
loss in relation to part of the subsidy of research and development
expenses incurred on the development of certain new products and
plant and equipment.

Construction of factory on existing lands
During the year, an amount of HK$752,000 (2019: HK$1,796,000)

in respect of the release of government grant for construction of
factory on existing lands of the Group was credited to profit or loss.

AEEBEREBEETHHEE BHE_S_ZT4&
+ZA=+—HILEFE  %A%026,051,0008 T
(Z=Z—H4E :23,316,000870) WELEEDH
BEREDZ HIORRHEETHESRBEN
RS EEEN B oA ERSRRER-

RIRA LM EEERE
FROBBREANRASEERAE LM EEERK

BB 2R752,0008 7T (ZT—H4E:
1,796,000/ 7T) Bt Atz o

“EERFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. $R1T1EE
2020 2019
—TEHF “Z-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Bank Loans — Secured RITER—FILF 183,215 39,358
Analysed as: Sk 1=
- Current —RE 144,236 39,358
— Non-current —3IEREN 38,979 -
183,215 39,358
The carrying amounts of the above LB REREE
loans are repayable (based on (REBEERHETEETE
scheduled repayment dates set out EBEFHEER) EE
in the loan agreements):
— Within one year ——&FR 144,236 39,358
— Within a period of more than one —BiE—FErBIERE
year but not exceeding two years 29,936 -
— Within a period of more than two —HEAMFEETEARE
years but not exceeding five years 9,043 -
183,215 39,358
Less: Amount due within one year BOmEIBEE TR
shown under current liabilities R—FEREH 58 (144,236) (39,358)
Amount shown under FRBABEE T~ &5
non-current liabilities 38,979 -

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans amounting to ACECEF+_RB=1+—H RITEXR
approximately HK$183,215,000 (2019: HK$39,358,000) £ 884 74183,215,0008 7T (ZE—HE:
were secured by charges over buildings and bank deposits 39,358,000/ 7T) WIRITHERUNER >
of the Group (note 29). EFRIRITERIERR (F5529) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

23.

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings of the Group
were borne interest at variable rates and repayable within
one year.

At 31 December 2020, the Group obtained bank
borrowing of approximately HK$183,215,000 to finance
the general working capital of the Group. The bank
borrowings of the Group were borne interest at variable
rates and repayable within one to three years.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are
as follows:

23. IR1TfEE (&

RTE-NAFE+ZA=1+—H > AEHIR
TEERAEMERF B TAR—FRE

N ZEIZE+ A=+ —H AEER
15#9183,215,00078 ST RUSR 1T 20 > LA
NEAEEN—KREBEEE - AEENIRTT
BRI AEFE > WAR—E=F
MEE-

AEMESZSEMNE JMEERTLR]
) SBEWT -

2020 2019
—EEHE =—NEF
Effective interest rates: BIEM =

Variable-rate borrowings 2EEE Hong Kong London
Interbank Interbank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
("HIBOR") 2% ("LIBOR")
-4.35% +1.5%P.A.
HIBOR+1.5% LIBOR+1.5%
P.A. PA.
FEARITRAE WIGRITEE
e (TEARIT RE (RIERTT
FZEFS1) BIZEFED)
2%%E4.35% SM1.5%8
BEBIRT Sl ES s

EE$35

5 11.5% 89

FFEHB

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in

NEMERBERINEER NI ZEEKS

currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant Bz AEBRTEEHIIWT :
group entities are set out below
2020 2019
—ECIEF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
UsD E7T 135,685 39,358
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. lRZ&
Number of Share
shares capital
in8E fi& s
HK$'000
FHBT
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 31 December 2019 and S ZE—NEFE+ZA
at 31 December 2020 —t+—BERRIZEEF

+=ZB=+—H 1,538,237,500 921,553

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following deferred tax liabilities arise from the

temporary difference associated with the undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries and movement thereon

during current and prior years:

25. IRIEFRIE

UTFAEEDEKNERSZARDEEF
HEzEREBEMEE ZRIEREBRER
RERKAFERBEFEZAHRES !

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—HF—H 10,196

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) Hi8m RN (H7529) 1,509

Currency realignment Bl (250)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RN_E2—hF+_A=+—HxK

—EEF—F—H 11,455

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) Bi8H RN (B229) 1,530

Currency realignment EkiAe 823

At 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+"HA=+—H 13,808

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

25.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has deductible temporary differences in respect of
accumulated provision for allowance for credit losses and
accumulated allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$2,321,000 (2019: HK$520,000) and HK$21,125,000
(2019: HK$12,712,000) respectively. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$248,000,000 (2019:
HK$226,545,000) available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operated in the PRC of approximately HK$238,080,000
(2019: HK$225,108,000) will expire from 2020 to 2023.
Other tax losses arising from group companies in Hong
Kong may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amount to approximately HK$154,837,000 (2019:
HK$148,717,000).

5. EIEMIA (A2

RBEPR AEBEERAEEHBEE
RN BERFEZ RS BERBAZA
MR Z 38D B492,321,0008 T (ZF
—1% 1 520,000/ 7T) 521,125,000/ 7T
(ZEBE—RFE :12,712,000587T) c ARF
BIRETER] T B 2R 8 A T 31 R ER B = 58
(R ILE W 4% A 52 55 0] 30 6L G B = BB R SR IR
ERIBE E ©

PRSI ANE B R o] I8 R 2R e R
MMz KRB AR IER#E49248,000,000
BT (T2 — N4 1 226,545,000 70) ° B
A 2R 2R e SR 75 i A 2 JR R BT BRI (A Ik
EHEDIEERIBEE - N HEES ZH B
NEELERFEDRIBRE4238,080,000
BT (CZ— .4 225,108,000 7T) #
A _ECEFEFE T —FIHH-EEA
EAREBEEZHEMRIEGE FER
ko

RBEFRECEMERZE A2 N\EFE—
B—HiE X EME A ST EE & T
FTEIRM R EBBMTEINR - RR a5
REPHRIEMBAB R BFMESE
B B EBEAY154,837,00058 70 (ZF
— L5 1 148,717,000 7T) 1EHIEIEFR 1A
o
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26. TR TH

Categories of financial instruments ST AER
2020 2019
—ECEF “E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBIERATEC SMEE 850,741 795,829
Equity instruments designated IEEABR AT EFTAEM
at FVTOCI cENEzERTA 371,435 25,808
Financial liabilities B =R
Amortised cost R R A 845,399 449,582
Lease liabilities HESE 5,218 4,593
Financial risk management objectives MERMEEERE

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s
daily operations. The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instruments designated at FVTOCI, trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due
from (to) associates, lease liabilities and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

THTIAHNAEBRAREBGREE-
FEEZIETHIAGEEEARA
FEFAEMEZENZZREZTA B
R EAMMEWRIE  ERPIRITERRIT
B RIRE S B 5 R A RIE - B

(M) BMELTRE. HEERRIRTHE
E-2EEMIBZHFBENABMER
BE-TXHINAZSERIABHAZAR
RufFEERZFREREZBR - BEEEEE
REEZE R LR (R K B A Rt R EY
ER=A i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG RS R R MY AR

R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk

Foreign currency risk management

Certain trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, bank balances and cash, sales
and purchases of the Group are denominated in US$,
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group has not used any financial instruments to
hedge against currency risk. However, the management
monitors foreign currency risk exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:

26. TR T H (&

MBERBREEBR (@)
15 3 B
S B R R E

FEBZETEZREMBWRE E5
REMEMRERITEE . RITEFRK
REUARBMERRBLHUET FARE
REBRERINEGR HE &R
RIS R o A5 B R A B AR A R
TARSHEBAR A EEEEEIN
KRR TEEFERZBHEITEAINE
N

RESEEH AEELUMNESHEZERE

EREMEEZIREENT :
Liabilities Assets
& BE
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEIZE FNF ZBIFF ENF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TET TER TER TER

usb ES

156,878 69,968 28,255 89,773
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
US$5% (2019: 5%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis represents the trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
and bank balances and cash where the denomination are
in US$, the major foreign currency risks. A positive number
indicates an increase in post-profit for the year where
RMB weakens against US$. For a 5% strengthens of RMB
against US$, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year, and the balances below
would be negative.

26. &R T H (&)

MBERKREEBR (@)

15 E B ()

SEHRE

TERFREERHARERETHAER
BE5% (CE—NF 5%) ZHERAE5%
(ZE-NF 1 5%) REEEHING
X RIREE 2 E - BRE DN
EORERBEZLUINESHEZEREA
B Wit E AR ERMIMEERZ5%
(ZZ—NF 1 5%) EHFHFE - HU
E (E2INERKR) sHE RE DA
®EBFKREMBUWRIE B 5 REMEN
MIENRITEEURIRITER RIS
ARERETRE EHMARTEERR
BBENIEM - HRARBRETIHES%
RHFRGRREENE—EHFZER
FE MTMEHRRERaR-

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit A4 E R EHF
for the year: CRiZ) 58 -
usb 7T (5,466) 842
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits (see note 19)
and lease liabilities (see note 14).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances (see note 20) and bank
borrowings (see note 23). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of HIBOR (2019: LIBOR) arising from bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the each reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2019: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$8,886,000 (2019: post-tax
profit decrease/increase by approximately HK$787,000).

26. R TH (&

MBERAKREEBR (@)

15 E B ()

FE R &

AERTEAHEEEBEFRTER (BN
F19) MMAESE (IiH14) 2 R FER=E
BB o

AEETFEHIRTER (RIEE20) &R
TEE (RME23) 2 RERFIXER &
EEFER T EMNREPEER - AT BE
BERAMNEXRRE WRRELBIREKRT
REBRFEBAMORITE - AEEIER
ERAERER TBETRIRTEEESE
WEBRTERTR CE-—NEF KA
RITEEFRE) KEe

BRUE DA

TXHEREDRDERIFTETIAR
BEPROMNXRRET - BRI HR
RNBREPROREESHIENE
BEEHARESEMER -SOEER (CF
—NE I S0EER) N EAITEBAE
EEEANERNEE2RAKERFFRA > I
AREEBHNXRGENELEHRTE-

WA EFA,/ TFTHR50EEE (ZZT—H
FIS0EEREE  MEMPIBEEEERT
& REBMMBRREB R R, BN
8 886,000/8 7T (ZE—NF : BB
b 1 AN49787,00058 7T) ©
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26.

ARG MW R M

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investment in equity securities measured at FVTOCI. The
Group invested in unquoted equity securities for investees
operating in research and development industry sector for
long term strategic purposes which had been designated
as FVTOCI. The Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk on the unlisted
equity securities in financial assets designated at fair value
through OCI at the end of the reporting period. Should
the discount rate for lack of marketability on such unlisted
equity securities had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/
lower and all the other variables were held constant,
the Group’s FVTOCI reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$13,102,000 (2019: increase/decrease
by HK$2,500,000) arising from the equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on each individually for
debtors with significant balances and collectively for
others. The provision rates applied is estimated using the
historical observed default rates of the debtors taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each of the reporting period, these
historical loss rates are reassessed and updated if required
after considering the forward-looking information then
available to the directors of the Company. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

26. R TH (&

MBERAKREEBR (@)

15 B /@ 2 R B 1B 5T 1
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26.

ARG MW R M

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
90% (2019: 90%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 15% (2019:
19%) and 68% (2019: 72%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively within the circuit boards and
components business segment.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with good
reputation and high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, amounts due from associates pledged bank
deposits and bank balances has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and has assessed the expect
credit loss rate under 12m ECL method based on the
Group’s assessment in the risk of default of the respective
counterparties.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26. TR T H (&

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

Internal credit rating

—  External credit rating

— Actual or expected significant adverse change in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations

— Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor

MBERBREEBR (@)

15 B /m 52 R B B 5T G (4)

AEERNSEIEERZBEOME
UERREZEERSHEFESEEERR
RELA - HFEEERAREEREL
o AERRRREEREEZEERON
KR 24 2 W50 H BRBV AV R BR ELL 8L
ETEERAGEXFUENRIBEER-
AEENEREMARNDBEETFR LH
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

26. ®FtTH (&)
HEARSIERE ()

15 B /m 2 R B 1B 5T 1 (#)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

AEBIAEEERETHRTEEEU

comprises the following categories: T4ER] -
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
A E &R it B 2 RINIEA HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
EER REHFENRRE LRI MBEHRE FEBEHEERE- 12EARBEERE
EEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
after due date not credit-impaired
FEE BHEAEERHBAREN BRERIBEERER FERRPEESE- NEARPREESE
BREERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
5% BRBBNHELNERNENIOENEDIEIN FEORDNEERE- FENRREERE-
R’ EERBEEEM BREERE BIEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-  Lifetime ECL -
impaired credit-impaired
B BENSKRPEELREERE FERRBEERE- ZEDRBEEEE-
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
23] BEURSKRBEHARARENIBRSG AMAEEN  HAESRZH MRS RIZH

[EIFRIRR R E BT
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26.
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

TRMITHE &
MBERBREEBR (@)

15 B /m 52 R B B 5T G (4)

TREVAERREZRARBEEGREF
HHETMEENEERR

assessment:
2020 2019
ZBEIBE EhF
Gross Gross
Internal credit carrying carrying
Note rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount
1288 HFEH
e WEEETSR FEHEESE HEIREE REREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RBHENTHEZERMEE
Trade receivables 18  Notes (a) & (b)  Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 697,078 665,447
below
B o EWIE Mzt @)k b) GEPEBEERE
—FEERE
Other receivables 18  Low risk 12-month ECL 19,454 8,831
HiEW I e REABEHEESSE
Amounts due from associates 15 Low risk 12-month ECL 4,309 -
FEW & A B FIA HE R REREHEESE
Pledged bank deposits 19 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,368 2,364
BIRRIRITER e REABEHEESSE
Bank balances and cash 20 Low risk 12-month ECL 129,853 119,707
RITHR R RIRE HaEk REREHEESE
Notes: st .

(@) As at 31 December 2020 the gross amount of trade receivable arising
from contract with customers amount to HK$697,078,000 (2019:
HK$665,447,000). The balances of trade receivable are no past due
over one year.

(@ MIZ_ZE+_RB=+—H RELEHNE
EHE 5 N RIEAE%8 4697,078,0008 T (=
T — L4 | 665,447,000 7T) - B EWGRIBER

AR RN —FREA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(b)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the expected credit losses for individually significant trade
debtors and collectively for others.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired

26. AT H (&

MBERKREEBR (@)

15 B /m 2 R B 1B 5T 1 (48)

Kzt o (&)
(b) HMEZFERREMS AEEEBESEHHR

HEANEIFRNEERE UEFENREREES
Bt EERRF AEEHEKRE FBYGRIA
BRETERMEEGE MEMBBTIRRIE
BEEETE -

TRETRBEHLEHENEZEHUEREES
BRIEEERE. ERHREEINFERRA
HEEBENES-

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

FEITER

EEEE

(BIEERE)

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 January 2019 RIZ—h&—B—H 127
Increase in allowance BEEM 402
Exchange adjustments R (9)
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R - E—hE+_-_B=+—HAER_Z_ZE&#—F—H 520
Increase in allowance BEE 2,045
Exchange adjustments R (244)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZZ2F+-A=+—H 2,321

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
has applied HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as
there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Group determines ECL for other receivables, amounts due
from associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances by
assessment of probability of default. During the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, in view of the nature of these balances,
historical settlement record and good reputations of the banks, the
Group considers the provision of impairment allowance for other
receivables, amount due from associates, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances is insignificant.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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26.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Group will have
insufficient resources to meet its financial liabilities as they
fall due. The Group's strategy to manage liquidity risk is to
ensure that the Group has sufficient funds to meet all its
potential liabilities as they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management also monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

26. R TH (&

MBERAKREEBR (@)
REEZEE

NPETABREFIERRERTEERE
HHEHTMEBEZRAR ~EBEER
HETABZRBREERREAERAR
RESNEIMFKEMIEEERE

ERPpESRRBEESE ~EETEE
REFEEEIRTEZRERRESF
BEEKF EtMAaT-EEEERHEES
RBERERER 2T E - EEETER
ERTEEZHARERETERZL

RPEL &

TEREREERFTEESRERZHT
GREHRABER AR BEAEBAETRZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26. ERET A (&)

MBERBREEBR (@)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d) TEEZ R (B)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d) B EZ X ()

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

TREFENSERXEZHERE - HAS
MEBAFHEEX ARMRSEREBENR

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the EHRZFRAEFH -
end of the reporting period.
On demand Total Total
and less undiscounted carrying
than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  cash flows amount
REX
Kb KiIrHRRE
15 1828 2E5E MERE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTET FTET
At 31 December 2020 RZBEZSE
+ZA=+—-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FirEEREE:
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMEMTIE 662,184 - - 662,184 662,184
- Bank borrowings — RIS 144,236 31,433 9,495 185164 183,215
806,420 31,433 9,495 847,348 845,399
Lease liabilities HEaR 2,112 2,234 1,980 6,326 5218
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-hEF
+ZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FirEEsRas:
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMENTIE 405,607 - - 405,607 405,607
- Amounts due to associates —EN¥E AR A 4,617 - - 4,617 4,617
- Bank borrowings —iRIEE 39,726 - - 39,726 39,358
449,950 - - 449,950 449,582
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,432 1,432 1,960 4,824 4,593

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 26.
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The Group's equity investments are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these equity
investments are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique and input used).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

£RTH #Z
ERMIEMATENE
FEENBREARERSRSHEFBAFL

Bt TRIITUABEREREZA
FE (CHZREER ERFIBEE -

BB BEN L FEFEBNTEEE

measured at fair value on a recurring basis HEELTFE
Relationship of
key inputs and
Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input inputs to fair value
TEBABEK
EXTHERBAYE
SREE RUTHENATE  ATESR RERGRIZGARE EXTTRRGARE BRATEZBR
2020 2019
ZEI%E “ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER TR
Unlisted equity instruments 371,435 25,808 Level 3 Market approach: Discount for lack of The higher discount for
designated at FVTOCI RA3 estimated net profits marketability 25.60%-  lack of marketability, the
EEARATESAEMS with main multiple 29.80% (2019:29.80%),  lower the fair value.
BRENFELTRATA being Price-to- determined with BEamRBLELs

Earnings multiples of reference to the share ~ AFED{Te
comparable companies  price of listed entities in

and a discounted
rate for lack of
marketability

similar industry
SRELTELITERZ
kEETRZTAME

TR EERE E EZITIR5.60% (CF
DEYDUELRAT —AF129.80%)
NHREEHMHBZH

BHeniEE

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

RAFER > BB 8RB12 R 4R 532 B
BE%-

Annual Report 2020 —E_TFFIR




(=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEEmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

26. &R T H (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERTANRTFESE

(Cont’d)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd) HEERFE (B

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets on recurring basis:

BFfEZHER:

(&)

BIEEMBEUAFENENEZEEE

REEUEENSMEEETEIRATF

Financial assets

at FVTOCI
BATEHA
Hithz2mk=
ZEMEE
HK$'000
FE7T
As at 1 January 2019 R_&E—hE—HF—H 18,078
Fair value change recognised in OCI REMEEBGERERZ AT EEE 8,253
Currency realignment BHEA (523)
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 N ZE-AFE+ZA=+—8kK
—EIEF—B—H 25,808
Purchased of equity instrument designated EEEEARATES AREME2E NS
at FVTOCI RREmITA 303,678
Fair value change recognised in OCI REMEEBERRZ A FEEE 21,912
Currency realignment BEHRE 20,037
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZZF+"A=+—H

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages the capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings disclosed in note 23, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital
structure through the raising of bank borrowings and the
redemption of existing debt.

27.

BEARERERE

AEEYEABBSHERESEEN
ERMEBELE RREBELELER
BAL B AR KRB AR A EE
SEA8 AL RS BUB L R o

AEBZEARBOEEMF23WEZIR
TEE MRS AREEFERE UKL
NEEAEANRGORTZ (SGREEETREK
)

FEREEERBEERELANE - A5H
ERIETNARZBERERZ B
WiEEBEMBITEERBEREEE
DR EHBEERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

28. MEFAFEEREZHIR

TREVNAEERETHMELEREZ
2y (BRERTEY) -RETHELEZE
BiEAEAERZGARERERN > HIR
TRERID (HERKREAEGHKS
) REMETHZREMNE

Lease Dividend

liabilities payable Borrowings Total

HEaF e S BE “act

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FExT FET

At 1 January 2019 R ZE-hF—B—H - - - -

New lease arrangement MEEZH 5,299 - - 5,299

Financing cash flows RERERE (1,137) (15,382) 40,078 23,559

Foreign exchange translation HNEEIR 167 - (720) (553)

Dividends declared (note 71) BEIRKE (Hat11) - 15,382 - 15,382

Finance cost incurred BEELERERA 264 _ _ 264
At 31 December 2019 and NZE—hE

at 1 January 2020 +ZB=+—HkK

—T”_TF—-HA—H 4,593 - 39,358 43,951

New lease arrangement MEEZH 2,299 - - 2,299

Financing cash flows RERERE (2,252) (15,382) 137,561 119,927

Foreign exchange translation HNEEIR 46 - 6,296 6,342

Dividends declared (note 71) BEIRKE (Hat11) - 15,382 - 15,382

Finance cost incurred BELRBERA 532 - - 532
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEHF

+-B=+—H” 5,218 - 183,215 188,433

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 29. EERR
At the end of the reporting period, certain bank deposits, RB|BER > FPIEFRITER - BF
buildings, right-of-use assets and trade receivables were FRARBEERBZERBARIESD TR 7F
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the REAEEERETEECEBFRUT

Group as follows:

2020 2019
—E_ZF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank deposits RITER 2,368 2,364
Buildings ‘¥ 47,968 46,488
50,336 48,852
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. BEAKIE
2020 2019
ZEZEHE —Z—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BEME -BERREZ
acquisition of property, plant and BEARSZ BEJABERN
equipment which is contracted for e BmRANEE
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 98,947 83,658
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

31.

ARG MW R M

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of approximately HK$43,000
(2019: HK$37,000) represent contributions payable to the
MPF Scheme by the Group, which contribution is matched
by employees.

The employees employed in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The state-managed retirement benefits scheme
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately HK$17,259,000 (2019: HK$13,597,000).
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

31. BIREFEHE

REBAFMBEEAEZAERERRIL
BEIMEAERE (BRBEEEL) R4
ElREMEMEEKRE XA Z R
B s B MR A A43,0008 T (ZE—H
£ 137,000 7m) > IhHAEBEZ N T RE
EtE 2 ER MEE S EHERMER

AEBPENBLARAREZRBEATE
BNEEZBEERAEBHEEZRE -
AEEERRARBRHHAZVHE A
FEALEEABENE REaERREM
HEWERATEZ 2 BEERAERRETE
A 217,259,0008 7T (ZE—H4EF
13,597,000 70) o REE R RKEF 5
B —SEEAREZTAFHREZ
HRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive
scheme

The restricted stock incentive scheme (“the Scheme”)
of the Company was approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors on 13 December 2018, and was
duly passed by the independent shareholders by way
of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on
31 January 2019.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to further improve
corporate governance of the Group, retain and
motivate its participants of the Scheme (”Scheme
Participants”) to make contributions to the long-
term growth and profits of the Group with a
view to achieving the objectives of increasing
the value of the Group and to promote a
greater alignment of interests between the
Scheme Participants and the shareholders of the
Company.

(2) Scope of Scheme Participants

The Scheme Participants shall include the
executive director(s), members of the senior
management and management personnel who,
as determined by the Board of the Directors,
contribute directly to the overall business
performance and sustainable development of the
Company.

32. PRI A R 5t &l

(a) PRI AE G EIME

AT Z PREINE R BB ST 8 (M5
)R- N\F+ZB+=H%
EFEBEREM TR _T—NF
—B=+t—HR&GTZRREFIKXE
FEBUKRRENER-

(1) B&

STEEREE—PHUELEEREY
NEER BB KRBT 2R
E (Tst81248 %) BREEEDN
REERKGAIFEER  HXK
EIRALAEREENER &
STE2HEHEAQNTRRZE
IR B —2 o

(2) E/ZHEEZEHE

SHEIZ2HEREEARTHN
TEF SREEBEABURKEE
FEBENHEARRBEEE
MEBEREEETENEE
BBHAE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive
scheme (Cont’d)

(3) Restricted Stock

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the
directors shall select the Scheme Participants and
determine the number of restricted stock to be
granted. The Company will appoint a trustee to
purchase the Shares from the secondary market
and a grant price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants (the “Trust”).

(4) Maximum Grant

The maximum total number of Shares comprised
in the restricted stock to be granted under the
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the Scheme at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company (i.e. 31
January 2019). As of 31 January 2019, the
Company’s total number of issued Shares was
1,538,237,500 ordinary shares.

(5) Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be effective for a term of
10 years commenced from the adoption date
(i.e. 31 January 2019), unless early termination
is proposed by the board of directors and
approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Unless otherwise required, the restricted stock
granted before the termination of the Scheme
shall remain effective and could be unlocked
according to the terms of the Scheme.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

32. IRAIME RSB 58 (2

(a) FREIMERFMBEME @)

(3)

REIERR

REE EFEREEHT 2
B3 B TE 1R R T B PR I AR
RHEB - A RARELERFEAE
“HRHEBERD SHE2HEE
BEZNRTER (M558 -

(4) ®#FLR

(5)

RIETE R F RS R EFR
BROBROBE BB LR
BAEBBTEAKCEANERE
FAAEHEEH BIZZ—H
F—B=+—H) ARE BT
PR ASHEEEM10% o R —E—N.E
—A=+—H > ARBBEETEK
h48%841,538,237,500R 5@

Pz o

5t 8 B3R

SHEAMBATF BXMA
B ZE2—hF—B=+—H)
EetE RIFKEFTRALE
RABIRRALEIRATAR LE o BRIF
SERE  SRIES 8RR
FRIPRGIME IR A BB R LA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive
scheme (Cont’d)

(6)

7)

Determination of the Grant Price

The grant price of the restricted stock to be
granted to the Scheme Participants shall be
determined by the Board. The base date for
the determination of the grant price is the
grant date. The pricing basis of the grant price
shall not be set lower than the highest of the
following: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the grant
date; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the grant
date; and (iii) the average closing price of the
Shares in the 20 trading days, 60 trading days or
120 trading days immediately before the grant
date. The grant price shall be 50% of the pricing
basis and shall not be lower than the most recent
audited net asset per Share.

Lock-up Period and Unlocking Period

In principle, the lock-up period (the “Lock-up
Period”) shall be for a period of not less than
two years commencing from the grant date,
during which the restricted stock granted to the
Scheme Participants shall be locked up and shall
not be transferred, used as guarantee or for
repayment of debts.

In principle, the unlocking period shall be for a
period of not less than three years commencing
from the expiry of the lock-up period. Eligible
restricted stock will be gradually unlocked during
the unlocking period.

32. RGBS 8 (2

(a) FREIMERFHEEME )

(6) EFIEKIIEE

EEERBEER T 285
HIPREI MR EMNEFEE BT
BENETEEHARTH K
FTERNECEREERBERT
FINEREES (IRHNETH
B PRER RV UL T8 ; (i) BR 1D
REERFHZAEERZH
T R PP IRV AW E 5 &
(D N ERZEE T HAI20ME 3
ZH 60ERXRZHI120E 5
BHFEHWHE R FERRR
BEBEENSOREE  BFE
BERREPNCEZSEREE
FEo

(7) BREHRAFEER

HER(TREER) BERTH
R EARDIEME - RREH
W R T ET 8 2 EE B RBIE R
ERRIEE  TSEE ARE
RAEZEES -

BMERSERER R ZBER
Al LR DR =F -G ERBHIME
RER P REINZE D R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 32. RN E BT (&
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) FRHIMEREEZHMBIETEME &)

scheme (Cont’d)

(8) Initial Grant (8) BHXEF
Under the Initial Grant, approximately an TEEXRETE @84fistE| 2K
aggregate of 27,500,000 restricted stock will be EBT45H4927,500,0000% R
granted to 84 Scheme Participants. BIMERREE o

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant (9) BEKRIEFHIBEHEIEIF
Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant are as BAETHMEERGUT
followings:
Unlocking Period Performance Assessment Target
i SH HA EXEEZER

First Unlocking Period o

55— 1B .

the return on equity (“ROE") for 2019 shall be not lower than 9%
and not lower than the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;
TE-NFFEEWGRE (TROE) RERI% > BERNMERHIRRE
75D EKTE ;

based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2019
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than 75 percentile of
benchmarking enterprises; and
UZZ2—tEHBERESARBREANANAER —2—NEHE
RERABHAE ANATESRFIEREENMEN20% > B NMERHE
hETSDUBEKT ; &

based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2019 shall be not lower
than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of benchmarking
enterprises.

MUAERBR ZE—LtFENRERAREY —E—NFEHBRADN
BERBREREENMEN20% > B REREEREISDMUEKTF-
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32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 32. FREIME R E Bt E (&
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) PREIMGRREZHBTEIBE (&)

scheme (Cont’d)

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant (9) BEXEFHIEEIEIE ()
(Cont’d)
Unlocking Period Performance Assessment Target
fif2 S5 HA EEETER

Second Unlocking Period e  the ROE for 2020 shall be not lower than 10% and not lower than
the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;
B (B #R sH AR o ZETZHFROENMEN10% > BRBERERBZETSHMIEKT ;

e based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2020
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than the 75 percentile
of benchmarking enterprises; and

s UZTE—LEFERBRERATNEEANGHNAER —Z_ZFHE
REABER AWATESEMNIEREFTENR20%  BEMERER
BEISHAUBKT ; &

e  based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2020 shall be not
lower than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of the
benchmarking enterprises.

o UARRENZIE—LENKEWAREY —T_TFEBBARN
BEWEmIEREERER20% B MEREIRRETSDAEKTFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 32. FREIME R E Bt 8 (&
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) PREIMGREEZHBTEIE (&)

scheme (Cont’d)

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant (9) B XEFHIEHEIEIE ()
(Cont’d)
Unlocking Period Performance Assessment Target
fige $H 4R EEETBER

Third Unlocking Period e the ROE for 2021 shall be not lower than 11% and not lower than
the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;
5 =B RRSHHR o EZ—FROERMEMN11% > BRBRERBZETISHMEKT ;

e based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2021
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than the 75 percentile
of benchmarking enterprises; and

s UZTE—LEFRBRESRANEEANGINAER — 2" —F5H8
REABER AWATESEMNIEREFTENR20%  BEMERER
BEISHAUBKT ; &

e based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2021 shall be not
lower than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of the
benchmarking enterprises.

o UARRENZE—EtENKEWAREY T —FEBKBARN
BEWmEREERER20% B MEREIREETSDAEKTFE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

(Cont’d)

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive

scheme (Cont’d)

(10) The Unlocking Period of Initial Grant

The details of the Unlocking Period of Initial

Grant are as followings

32. RGBS 8 (2

(a) FREIMERFABAEME &)

(10) B K& FHIREHAT

ERETFEEHFBOT

Proportion
Unlocking of unlocking
arrangement Time of unlocking shares
f SH 22 HF iR 5 5 R i 854 EE 1)
First Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 24 months from 33%
the Grant Date to the last trading day within 36
months from the Grant Date
55— 1B A7 85 R BEETHE24ERBRMNEERZ BEER T H36ME 33%
ARMERE—EXZHERL
Second Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 36 months from 33%
the Grant Date to the last trading day within 48
months from the Grant Date
55 Z{E AR s HR BEETHIEEARMNEERS BEER T H4I8E 33%
ARMERE—EXZHERL
Third Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 48 months from 34%
the Grant Date to the last trading day within 60
months from the Grant Date
55 = 1B 7 s R BEETHIE4BERRNEERS BEER T H60E 34%

Details of the Scheme were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 13 December
2018 as well as the circular dated 16 January

2019.

AANRE—EXZBEERL
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE —ZF —FF+_—H=+—HILFE

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(b) Initial Grant of the Restricted Stock under the
Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 14
February 2019, on 14 February 2019, the Board of
the Directors approved the granting of 27,500,000

restricted stock (the

"Restricted Stock”) under the

Scheme to 81 selected Scheme Participants, details of

which are as follows:

An aggregate of 27,500,000 Restricted Stock,
representing approximately 1.788% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 14 February
2019 was granted to 81 Scheme Participants,
including executive director(s), members of the
senior management and management personnel
who contribute directly to the overall business
performance and sustainable development of the
Group.

Grant Date: 14 February 2019.

Grant Price: HK$0.65 per share.

The Grant Price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants at their own cost.

All the Restricted Stock granted will be subject
to the Lock-up Period of not less than two years
commencing from the Grant Date, during which
the Restricted Stock granted to the Scheme
Participants shall be locked-up and shall not be
transferred, used as guarantee or for repayment
of debts.

Please refer to the Announcement and the Circular

for details of other specified conditions and timing for

unlocking under the Scheme.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(c¢) Further Grant of Restricted Stock under the
scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 27
March 2019, the Board of the Directors approved the
granting of 2,490,000 restricted stock under Scheme
to Xiong Zheng Feng, an executive director and Chai
Zhi Qiang, the chief executive officer of the Company,
details of which are as follows:

i. An aggregate of 2,490,000 restricted stock,
representing approximately 0.162% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 27 March
2019 was granted to Xiong Zheng Feng and Chai
Zhi Qiang, including executive director, members
of the senior management and management
personnel who contribute directly to the
overall business performance and sustainable
development of the Group.

ii.  Grant Date: 27 March 2019.

iii. Grant Price: HK$0.77 per share.

iv.  The Grant Price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants at their own cost.

v.  All the Restricted Stock granted will be subject
to the Lock-up Period of not less than two years
commencing from the Grant Date, during which
the Restricted Stock granted to the Scheme
Participants shall be locked-up and shall not be
transferred, used as guarantee or for repayment
of debts.

Please refer to the Announcement and the Circular
for details of other specified conditions and timing for
unlocking under the Scheme.

32. [REIMERZHENETE (B2

() RFBFABNE—TEFRFERT

REARSHBEAZZ-AF=A
“t+tHRzZaf EFEHERES
EMAITEEFRERKRARATITH
MBH R E R IZ F2,490,0008% PR &1
RE>FHBWTF

i,  #2£2,490,0008% FR I MEARZE (18
ER_ZE—-—NE=B=Z++tH
KRB BEITRAL0.162%)
%&ﬁ%*fhm%&%%ﬁs%@ BIEH
TEE SHREBASRYEAE
%I%%%%%%%ﬁ&%ﬁ;é%%ﬁ
BIEHEMZEE AR

i. ¥R ZE-AE=R-+t
Ho

i. ®TER: 8KRER{PH.778T

iv. RYERAHGEZRESE
S ffe

v. FABEETFHRGIERIZESR
BTEHERTHESADRME
ZRER EIHE BT E
2 E13E 7 PRI IR A R SHE
TREE ARNERIEERR

%

B RS8R T H 4 TE IR 1 R AR 3R
REzHB F2RRAMARZE
UO
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

(Cont’d)

(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two
(2019: three) Scheme Participants resigned from the
Group and accordingly, 1,850,000 (2019: 2,750,000)

restricted stock was forfeited thereon.

Set out below are details of the movements of the
outstanding restricted stock granted under the
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2020

32. IRAIME RSB 58 (2

(d) RIFFHBIFIRITEMRBIERT

BE_S-_FF+-RB=+—8H
tFEFE MR (ZFE-—NAF: =
Z)FE2HEERAEBRMFT

K t51,850,0008%

—E—fF

2,750,0008%) 18 RA BR &I M IR =4 8

I o

TXHIWEE_S_SER_ZT
—hE+_B=1+—BLEEERE
STER T ARITERGIMR ZEE

and 2019: AUEEIE
Outstanding
Granted Expect to Forfeited as at
during vest during during 31 December
the year the year the year 2019
17
—E-NE
+ZA
izl =+-H
FREF REAER FREK T
During the year ended HEZE—NF+-H
31 December 2019 Z+—HItFE
February 14, 2019 “2-NFZR+IEH 27,500,000 - 2,750,000 24,750,000
March 27, 2019 “Z-NE=AZ+tH 2,490,000 - - 2,490,000
Total st 29,990,000 - 2,750,000 27,240,000
Weighted average fair value SRMEFHAFE
per share (HK$) (%) 0.7179 - 0.7198 0.7178

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

32. BAIEREHE 38 (4

(Cont’d)
(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme (d) RIFFABHKRITERBERE (&)
(Cont’d)
Outstanding Outstanding
asat1 Granted Expect to Forfeited as at 31
January during vest during during  December
2020 the year the year the year 2020
S
i —EC%8
k- k32 +ZA
—RA—H B =+—-H
x®iE  EREF REAEE FREK K1
During the year ended E
31 December 2020 +ZHA=+—H
ILFE
February 14, 2019 “Z2-NE
ZA+mH 24,750,000 - - 1,850,000 22,900,000
March 27, 2019 “E-NE
ZAZ+tH 2,490,000 - - - 2,490,000
Total @z 27,240,000 - - 1,850,000 25,390,000
Weighted average fair value &MRINEFEIIAFEE
per share (HK$) (%) 0.7178 - - 0.7185 0.7177

In respect of the Restricted Shares granted during
the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted
average fair value per share on the date of grant was
HK$0.7199.

The estimated fair values of the Restricted Shares
granted are approximately HK$19,552,000.

MEBEE_ET—NAF+ZA=+—H
EFEERFTHEREGMEREMS  ©
BEYTHHENSRNEFHLAFES

0.71998 T °

BRTHRBIMEREZ G ATFEN

19,552,000 7 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme
(Cont’d)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

32. [R&IMERRZE SR ST E (&

(d) REIFFBBIRITERBIERR (@)

ATEFAENAR-FBHEER
Nt RN AZIRLT ¢

As at As at

14 February 27 March

2019 2019

RZE-AE RIF-IAE

—_R+mA =A=++H

Life of the restricted shares PR 51 1 B = F HA 2 years 2 years
Risk Free Rate =R E 1.56% 1.56%
Expected volatility TEHRR IR 57.63% 57.63%
Expected dividend yield TEEARG B X 0.00% 0.00%
Spot Price REE 1.289 1.249

Expected volatility was determinated by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price
over the previous 2 years. The expected life of the
restricted shares used in model has been adjusted,
based on management is best estimate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company acquired 2,820,000 (2019: 4,480,000)
ordinary shares of the Company from the open
market by the independent trustee of the Company
with a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,611,000 (2019: HK$5,105,000) in respect of
the restricted stock incentive scheme of the Company.
The carrying amount of the shares held as at the year-
end was presented as a deduction against equity
“Restricted stock incentive scheme reserve” to the
consolidated financial statements.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

BREREBEIERERBRERBE
W EFE RS IRIBEE - REL PR
Bz EREHEREEERE
ZREMFHEHAR

BHE_TZ-_ZTE+ZA=+—HIE
FE> AN B FRGI MR Z M E st
BHRAABDZBILZTEAR QR
M5 E2,820,0008% KA B EEK
(ZT— N4 4,480,000) > KB
#72,611,0008 7T (ZE—N5F .
5,105,000 7T) - RAFERFAN
KROEEDSBEERFEMBRERA
R0 2 B TR 1 B 22 8k Bh St 21
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

32. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 32. PREVME R B =8I (&)
(Cont’d)
(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme (d) RIBEABNKRITERFIMERE &)
(Cont’d)
During the year, the Group do not fulfill the unlocking MRARFEE R > 258 B 5% i PR &%
condition under restricted stock incentive scheme. SEREGTEIE T 2 RERG R
Therefore, no Restricted Shares was expected to vest It B st 8/ 2 B E TR AR B R 1%
by the Scheme Participants and all the Restricted RERMARSIMREMDREER
Shares are remain at the Trust. Ho
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B. MM ARS
(a) Saved as disclosed in the respective notes, the Group (a) BRI EFEEEEN  RAFE
entered into the following transactions with related AN REBEINE E AR N
parties during the year: R
2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Shareholders B ER
— Sales (note (d) below) —tHE (FXHE()) 98,609 101,343
— Purchases of raw materials —REEREMN - (52)
— Technology and — SRS ERTER
technical fee paid (844) (20,745)
Associate = l/NE|
- Sales —iHE 14,631 11,812
— Purchases of raw materials —REEREMN (25,644) (27,074)
— Rental income received for office —#IAZEFEEZUTA (387) (339)
- Sales proceeds for disposal —HEME - BERZEN
of property, plant and THE PRETIE
equipment - 150
— Finance cost paid —ZIRE K - (182)
Fellow subsidiaries EEN N EPAE]
— Rentals paid for office AL YNE e (120) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group
is significant influenced indirectly by CNIGC, a state-
owned enterprise established in the PRC.

The Group also conducts business with other state-
controlled entities. The directors of the Company
consider those state-controlled entities to be third
parties so far as the Group's businesses with them are
concerned.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks which are stated-controlled entities in
its ordinary course of business.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the transactions with other state-controlled entities
are not significant to the Group’s operations.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
-agl-'_ﬁ

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. AR5 (&

(b) BFEEMBEREHNEEEEZ

X%/ KR

FEBKERMAEZKERIEEAA
PR EZSEEERS TR 2
¥ (TRREREE]) T8 1E5h
AEEBEIRPEMILZEA T
FPERSEIXEERTE-

A& E R R E A RIER B FEET
EB -ALNDERIR HEEEA
HEZEBMS  HFEFIEFIEE
RE=F-

s FEEEREEREBBRESD
HEAERENEEZETIRTIIL
BERG BEER - BERHEM—
RIFTTIEE-

ARBEFRHRHEMBIRIER T
REIRGHAEEZEELIFEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. Bt AR 5 (&

() FEEBABZHE

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

(d)

The emoluments of key management personnel
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
represented emoluments paid to directors of the
Company as disclosed in note 10 (i).

The emoluments of key management personnel are
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Sales of goods to shareholders

Amount represented sales of goods to Goertek (Hong
Kong) Company Limited amounted to approximately
HK$96,173,000 (2019: HK$94,793,000) and Suzhou
Anjin Technology Company Limited amounted to
approximately HK$2,436,000 (2019: HK$6,550,000).

(d)

HE_S_SER-F-AF+Z
A=+—HLFE TBEBARZ
DS I 100 TR B 2 (I A A B &
EE2BEo

FTEEEBABZNEHFMNERS
BEBEEARBERHEEZETE -

migRHEE @

TREENSERELZRERATH
EE 496,173,000 7T (Z2—1,
£F 194,793,000 70) » A& MNZ R
HMEROBRAGHEERNEE
BI49%2,436,0008 7T (ZE—NE
6,550,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

34. ARB MBI RR KL GHRE

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hnEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FERSEE
Plant and equipment MIZE~ R ek 23 33
Right-of-use assets FREEE 202 410
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZRE 781,018 466,740
Investment in an associate R—EBE R ZRE 3,616 3,616
784,859 470,799
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories 78 2,716 4,575
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMmEWSRIE 91,414 68,187
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL IS BB A B R IE
(note (a) below) (FxXHt52(a)) 317,160 438,178
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITER 2,368 2,364
Bank balances and cash IRTTAERREIRSE 8,164 21,993
421,822 535,297
Current liabilities MENEE
Trade and other payables B RkEMEMTRIE 168,095 25,087
Amount due to an associate R —EE R B RIE
(note (a) below) (FXHta#(a)) - 628
Tax payable FEH IR I 687 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 31,942 -
Lease liabilities HEaR 84 210
200,808 25,925
Net current assets EREBEE 221,014 509,372
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREER 1,005,873 980,171
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

34. ZRBHHR AR KRR (B

2020 2019
—ETHE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Capital and reserves B AR B 1
Share capital % 7 921,553 921,553
Reserves (note (b) below) & (FXHEED)) 45,225 58,422
Equity attributable to the owners of NAEEB AEGER
the Company 966,778 979,975
Non-current liabilities FERBEIE
Bank borrowings RITEE 38,979 -
Lease Liabilities HEAE 116 196
39,095 196
Total equity HarE 1,005,873 980,171

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf HTIESEARES

by:

XIONG ZHENG FENG
DIRECTOR
SRIEUE
EE

HUNG CHI YUEN ANDREW

DIRECTOR
EF

ARBZHBRRNREEEFTEN
T—FZAT+=ZA#tAETRETE I

=

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries/Amount due to
an associate

At as 31 December 2020, the amounts due from
subsidiaries (2019: amounts due from subsidiaries and
amount due to an associate) were unsecured, interest

34. ZRBHHBRRR KRR (B

(a) FEURPHE ABIRRIE,FEM —RABHE
YNSIE S|

RZZZZF+-A=+—H0 B
MEBABME (TT—NE | EKK
B RBE IR K BN — R B E AT

free and repayable on demand. IH) AEEF - RERNERFKEE
(b) Movement in the Company’s reserves (b) FREEEZEE
Restricted
stock
incentive
scheme Retained
reserve profits Total
PR 1l 14 B 2=
BT RIREE REBEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RIEB—h%F
—H—H - 81,395 81,395
Loss for the year and total AEEBBRAFEE
comprehensive expense for 2 EE 8%
the year - (2,486) (2,486)
Dividend paid BARE - (15,382) (15,382)
Purchase of shares under the 1R [R5 14 iR Z B ED
restricted stock incentive BELEE )
scheme (note 32) (Hta£32) (5,105) - (5,105)
At 31 December 2019 and N ZE—NF
1 January 2020 —f— H +—HK
ZEIEF
—A—H (5,105) 63,527 58,422
Profit for the year and total ~ AFEGHRAEE
comprehensive income for 2 W AR EE
the year - 4,796 4,796
Dividend paid BEfNKE - (15,382) (15,382)
Purchase of shares under the 1R % IR 114 A% Z 8k
restricted stock incentive BistEEEE R
scheme (note 32) (Ht:%32) (2,611) - (2,611)
At 31 December 2020 N B _=E
+ZB=+—H (7,716) 52,941 45,225

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 35. "RAFIMB AT Z5$1E

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RIE_EE/R_ZE—NF+_H

2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows: —t+—BZzAEEWBRABZFBWT :

Place of Attributable
establishment and equity interest
principal place  Form of held by the
Name of subsidiaries of operation business structure  Paid-up capital Company Principal activities
Rz 3t B K HARERE
WEAE%HE TELEME TREAMES BRER EERAER — FREH
2020 2019
ZEI%E 5%

ZiEF (BB 78R The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$21,700,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of
BIRAF (transliteration as enterprise FPC and flexible packaging
AKM Electronics Industrial substrates
(Panyu) Ltd.

ZHER (BB) ETEXERAT @ SEBELE 21,700,000%7% 100% 100% HERHEZUERRK

ZUHEER

ZREMNEFRE @M) BREAF The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$37,642,460 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of
(transliteration as AKM enterprise FPC and flexible packaging
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) substrates
Company Limited)

ZRABFRE @GN BRAT HE PEBERE 37,642,460 7T 100% 100% HEKRHEZMUERR

HEZMHERR

Anrick Electronics India India Wholly owned-foreign US$1,447,948 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of FPC
Private Limited enterprise

Anrick Electronics India HE SEEERE 1,447 948% 7T 100% 100% BERHEZEERR

Private Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

35. xRFIMB AT ZEHE ()

Place of Attributable
establishment and equity interest
principal place  Form of held by the
Name of subsidiaries of operation business structure  Paid-up capital Company Principal activities
st K HARERE
WEARRME FTEGEHE EERERETS HEEX EERAERD — FREEH
2020 2019
515 ZENF
HEZENEFERAT Vietnam Wholly owned-foreign VN$ 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of FPC
(transliteration as AKM enterprise 13,909,000,000
Electronics Vietnam
Company Limited)
HEZRNEFERAT e PEBELE 13,909,000,000 100% 100% RERHFEZUERR
HEE
EMZEHERNKAERAT  The PRC Foreign enterprise ~ RMB23,333,333* 55% - Development of new energy
(transliteration “Guangzhou car electronics module
Anbo New Energy Technology products
Co., Ltd.") ("Anbo")
BNZEMERNEERAS  PE SERE NG 55% - BERERSEN
(r=i8)) 23,333,3331t* BFEAER
* Pursuant to the contribution agreement between the Group and a * BREAEER-—LE=ZFNIEHBHE &

third party, the Group and the third party agreed to contribution
share capital of RMB27,500,000 and RMB22,500,000, respectively to
Anbo.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years and at the end of both years.
36. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY

During the current year, the Company established a PRC
investee company, Anbo, with a third party in which the
Company owns 55% equity interest in the company.
Particulars of Anbo are set out in note 35 above.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT

SEAE=SREDIAREIAAER
27,500,0007% Fz A B 622,500,0007C A9 B 45 ©

B /B8 A B S 8 K B FF B AR
BITERNEBHRES

FEEMBATNFE

REFE ARBDE-—BE=ZFMI—F
PEKRERNARE ZABHEAZR AT
55% M o LRI B ESXMIEE35
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiE —F _—FF+_H=+—HILFEZ

36. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 36. IEEEMRBATIMNESE (&
SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information of Anbo is set out ZIENTHBERBESHIWT !
below:
2020
—E_ZfF
HK$'000
Anbo Z18 TFHT
Current assets BB E 13,203
Non-current assets ERBEE 28,862
Current liabilities MBEIEE (11,144)
Non-current liabilities JEREha’E (3,162)
Net assets BEEFE 27,759
Equity attributable to owners of Anbo ZIENEE ARG R 15,268
Non-controlling interests of Anbo ZIENIEERE D 12,491
Revenue W e 19,001
Expense sz (18,871)
Profit for the year KEE @A 130
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KANBHEB NELRF 71
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests  JE#% B& #8 2 FE 5 & A 59
Profit for the year KEEw A 130
Other comprehensive income attributable to KABEBE AEGEMEZEWNG
owners of the Company 462
Other comprehensive income to FFEREREGEME2EE
the non-controlling interests 376
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEEMEEUE 838
Total comprehensive income attributable to KRBIEB ARG EE N GEEE
owners of the Company 533
Total comprehensive income attributable to JEER R RS 2 E U AR ER
the non-controlling interests 435
Total comprehensive income for the year NEELEWmEEE 968
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Bt 75 1 &
RESULTS
E ¥
Year ended 31 December
BE+ZA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZZIEF “Z-NE ZE-N\F ZE2—tF ZB—E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTET TAT AT TAT
Revenue N 1,676,423 1,463,630 1,223,803 1,118,838 821,662
Cost of sales HE A (1,429,284) (1,254,943) (1,071,832)  (898,627)  (646,373)
Gross profit el 247,139 208,687 151,971 220,211 175,289
Other income Htrr A 48,909 41,171 56,253 17,874 15,037
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE - - - (3,224) -
Distribution costs DA (27,795) (20,952) (19,433) (16,760) (15,897)
Administrative expenses THZH (45,697) (40,017) (41,187) (36,551) (31,852)
Research and development expenses  F 2 & (83,153) (57,352) (63,774) (79,882) (92,122)
Share of results of associates EEBENE£E 2,645 1,202 163 40 -
Finance costs Ei= 1% (10,234) (2,091) (215) (2,850) (5,198)
Profit before taxation BRIREDEF] 131,814 130,648 83,778 98,858 45,257
Taxation RIA (12,404) (12,937) (14,444) (19,850) (17,567)
Profit (loss) for the year REEHEN (518 119,410 117,711 69,334 79,008 27,690
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEERERE
At 31 December
®+ZB=+—8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Z2IEF “Z-NE ZE-N\F ZE2—tFE ZZ—E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET AT TART
Total assets BEE 2,455,203 1,849,066 1,671,449 1,268,416 981,651
Total liabilities Bafr (964,414) (581,916) (483,432) (529,973) (497,594)
1,490,789 1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 484,057
Equity attributable to ARNEIEB NEGER
owners of the Company 1,478,298 1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 483,426
Non-controlling interests KRR 12,491 - - - 631
Total equity aEn 1,490,789 1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 484,057
AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFEZARAT
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